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What I saw… 
• Bicycle Realm 



Recommendations 

• Reduce speed limit for the entire corridor through 
DESIGN…..(.5 Mile, 20 second difference) 

• Buffered bike lanes ideal, 6’ bike lanes acceptable 
• Increase number of crossings 
• Adopt Continental or Ladder Style Crossings 
• Retime the crossings based on context 
• Embrace ITS technologies for signals 
• Enforce city code 



Questions? 



CONSENT CALENDAR 



MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY 
COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COEUR D’ALENE, IDAHO, 

HELD AT THE LIBRARY COMMUNITY ROOM 
 

September 1, 2015 
 

The Mayor and Council of the City of Coeur d’Alene met in a regular session of said Council at 
the Coeur d’Alene City Library Community Room September 1, 2015 at 6:00 p.m., there being 
present upon roll call the following members: 
 
Steve Widmyer, Mayor 
  
Amy Evans   ) Members of Council Present 
Dan Gookin    )   
Kiki Miller        )    
Steve Adams   ) 
Woody McEvers  ) 
Loren Ron Edinger  )   
      
CALL TO ORDER:  The meeting was called to order by Mayor Widmyer. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  The pledge of allegiance was led by Councilmember Adams. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR: Motion by Miller, second by Adams to approve the consent 
calendar.  

1. Approval of Council Minutes for August 18, 2015. 
2. Approval of Bills as Submitted. 
3. Setting of General Services and Public Works Committees meetings for September 7, 

2015 at 12:00 noon and 4:00 p.m. respectively. 
4. Approval of Beer/Wine License for Shopko Stores Operating Co. LLC., 217 W. 

Ironwood Drive (new) 
5. Approval of Beer/Wine License for Gambrinus LLC., 225 W. Appleway Avenue (new); 

Laura and Doug Nelson 
6. Approval of transfer of Cemetery Lot 12, Block 21, Section G, Forest Cemetery from 

David Wiks to Estelle Wiks-Duggan  
7. Resolution No. 15-043 -  A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE, 

KOOTENAI COUNTY, IDAHO AUTHORIZING AN AGREEMENT TO PERFORM 
SUBDIVISION WORK WITH LAKE FOREST, LLC., MICHAEL P. FITZGERALD, 
SENIOR MEMBER, FOR LAKE FOREST WEST 1ST SUBDIVISION. 

 
ROLL CALL:  Miller Aye; McEvers Aye; Gookin Aye; Evans Aye; Adams Aye; Edinger Aye. 
Motion Carried. 
 



 
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS:  
 
TAXI LICENCES:  Randy Tetzner, Coeur d’Alene, expressed concern regarding taxis licensed 
within Coeur d’Alene.  Recently he found several taxi companies had improper insurance 
coverage.   He is concerned with the safety of citizens.  It costs approximately $3,400 to insure 
one taxi per year, so those violating the law are getting an unfair competitive advantage.  He 
would like to see more stringent revocation of licenses for these violations. Councilmember 
Gookin explained that the City is working on revising these regulations and staff can inform Mr. 
Tetzner regarding any upcoming meetings on the issue.    
 
PARKS KUDOS:  Tina Johnson, Coeur d’Alene, said she has recently been to other 
communities and has witnessed how much better maintained our city parks are than many other 
cities.  She has been to all but three city parks and appreciates them all.  She thanked the Parks 
Department for their hard work and great maintenance of the parks.     
 
MID-TOWN:  Gregg Johnson, Coeur d’Alene, represents the midtown property owners.  He said 
that 60 days ago the urban renewal agency informed them that the proposed project had been 
stalled.  He is hoping that they start from square one and that they are open to all new ideas from 
a museum to art theater, to open space.  He would like the project to be the right fit for the 
neighborhood.  He expressed frustration with communication with the urban renewal agency.   
 
 
APPOINTMENT:   Mayor Widmyer asked for the Appointment of Joseph Sonnen to the 
Pedestrian Bicycle Committee.  
 
MOTION:  Motion by Gookin, seconded by McEvers to approve the appointment of Joseph 
Sonnen to the Pedestrian Bicycle Committee.  Motion carried. 
 
Mayor Widmyer noted that his mother was in the hospital and wished her a speedy recovery.   
 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 15-044 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE, KOOTENAI COUNTY, IDAHO 
AUTHORIZING AN AMENDMENT TO THE ADOPTED 2010 TRAILS MASTER PLAN. 
 
STAFF REPORT:  Trails Coordinator Monte McCully explained that an amendment was 
needed to the 2010 Trails Master Plan to allow for the addition of bike lanes from Government 
Way to Honeysuckle on Kathleen Avenue.  The street overlay has recently been completed so 
this is an opportune time to add the bike lanes.  This will provide a connection to the several 
trails that already exist.     
 
MOTION:  Motion by Gookin, seconded by Evans, to approve Resolution No. 15-044 
Authorizing an amendment to the 2010 Trails Master Plan.     
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DISCUSSION:  Councilmember Gookin expressed a desire to complete the portion of bike lane 
on Kathleen Avenue near Home Depot but understands the need to widen the street first. Mr. 
McCully clarified that no parking would be removed with this project and the Pedestrian Bicycle 
Committee wanted to bring this forward with a future plan amendment; however, the overlay 
provided a current opportunity.   
 
ROLL CALL:  McEvers Aye; Gookin Aye; Evans Aye; Adams Aye; Edinger Aye; Miller Aye. 
Motion carried. 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-045 
  
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE, KOOTENAI COUNTY, IDAHO 
AUTHORIZING A JOINT POWERS SUBSCRIBER AGREEMENT WITH ICRMP TO 
FULLY INSURE THE CITY OF COEUR D’ALENE FOR LIABILITY AND PROPERTY 
DAMAGE AND REJECTING THE ADDITIONAL TERRORISM COVERAGE AND SHARE 
IN THE COVERAGE PROCURED FOR ALL ICRMP MEMBERS. 
 
STAFF REPORT:   Finance Director Troy Tymesen recommended entering into this agreement 
for the second year and membership costs for fiscal year 2015-16 will be $349,466.00.  ICRMP 
has assured the City that historically and going forward it intends to keep increases moderate and 
reasonable. ICRMP’s liability insurance limits are $2,000,000 per occurrence and $5,000,000 in 
total aggregate, and all members have a deductible of $5,000 per incident. ICRMP offers many 
and varied resources for employee training and sample policies to educate and reduce risk.  The 
increase for this year is $12,598.00. He explained that the plan is not customizable, other than the 
terrorism coverage, which would be an additional cost of $167,000.00.   
 
MOTION:  Motion by Adams, seconded by Edinger to approve Resolution No. 15-045 
Approving a Joint Powers Subscriber Agreement with ICRMP to fully insure the city for liability 
and property damage and rejecting the additional terrorism coverage and share in the coverage 
procured for all ICRMP members.   
 
DISCUSSION:  Councilmember McEvers asked for clarification regarding what the terrorism 
coverage would include.  Mr. Tymesen explained that it would be a terrorist causing damage to 
structures and/or causing liability.    
 
ROLL CALL: Gookin Aye; Evans Aye; Adams Aye; Edinger Aye; Miller Aye; McEvers Aye. 
Motion carried. 

 
COUNCIL BILL NO. 15-1016 

Ordinance No. 3516 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE, VACATING A WATER LINE 
EASEMENT IN THE RIVERSTONE WEST SILVER PLAT SUBDIVISION, RECORDED IN 
BOOK “K” OF PLATS, PAGE 483, RECORDS OF KOOTENAI COUNTY, GENERALLY 
DESCRIBED AS A 20.0 FEET WIDE WATER LINE EASEMENT LYING IN THE 
NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 10, TOWNSHIP 50 NORTH, RANGE 4 WEST OF 

3  Council Minutes September 1, 2015                             Page                        



 
 

THE BOISE MERIDIAN, CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE, KOOTENAI COUNTY, IDAHO; 
REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES AND PARTS OF ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT 
HEREWITH; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING FOR THE 
PUBLICATION OF A SUMMARY OF THIS ORDINANCE AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE 
HEREOF. 
 
MOTION:  Motion by McEvers, seconded by Gookin, to pass the first reading of Council Bill 
No. 15-1016.   
 
ROLL CALL:  Evans Aye; Adams Aye; Miller Aye; McEvers Aye; Edinger Aye; Gookin Aye. 
Motion carried. 
 
MOTION:  Motion by McEvers, seconded by Edinger, to suspend the rules and to adopt 
Council Bill 15-1016 by its having had one reading by title only. 
 
ROLL CALL:  Evans Aye;  Adams Aye; Miller Aye; McEvers Aye; Edinger Aye; Gookin Aye. 
Motion carried. 

 
COUNCIL BILL NO. 15-1017 

Ordinance No. 3514 
 
AN ORDINANCE ENTITLED "THE ANNUAL APPROPRIATION ORDINANCE FOR THE 
FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2015" APPROPRIATING THE SUM OF 
$85,862,812 TO DEFRAY THE EXPENSES AND LIABILITIES OF THE CITY OF COEUR 
D'ALENE FOR SAID YEAR; LEVYING A SUFFI¬CIENT TAX UPON THE TAXABLE 
PROPERTY WITHIN SAID CITY FOR GENERAL REVENUE PURPOSES FOR WHICH 
SUCH APPROPRIATION IS MADE; LEVYING SPECIAL TAXES UPON THE TAXABLE 
PROPERTY WITH SAID CITY FOR SPECIAL REVENUE PURPOSES WITHIN THE 
LIMITS OF SAID CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE, IDAHO; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; AND PROVI¬DING AN EFFECTIVE DATE HEREOF. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED, by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Coeur d'Alene, Kootenai 
County, Idaho: 

Section 1 
That the sum of $85,949,225 be and the same is hereby appropriated to defray the necessary 
expenses and liabilities of the City of Coeur d'Alene, Kootenai County, Idaho, for the fiscal year 
beginning October 1, 2015. 
  

Section 2 
That the objects and purposes for which such appropriations are made are as follows: 
 
GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES:  
Mayor and Council $247,345  
Administration 305,263 
Finance Department 798,078 
Municipal Services 1,587,774 
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Human Resources 264,861 
Legal Department 1,200,180 
Planning Department 558,908 
Building Maintenance 497,773 
Police Department 13,272,575 
Drug Task Force 29,710 
ADA Sidewalks  
COPS Grant  
Fire Department 13,567,735 
General Government 49,250 
Engineering Services 1,306,016 
Streets/Garage 2,898,101 
Parks Department 1,973,062 
Recreation Department 723,984 
Building Inspection 937,133 
     TOTAL GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES: $40,217,748  
  
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND EXPENDITURES:  
Library Fund $1,509,151  
Community Development Block Grant 529,424 
Impact Fee Fund 1,842,000 
Parks Capital Improvements 524,000 
Annexation Fee Fund  
Insurance / Risk Management 372,000 
Cemetery Fund 304,272 
Cemetery Perpetual Care Fund 127,500 
Jewett House 29,355 
Reforestation/Street Trees/Community Canopy 103,500 
Arts Commission 7,300 
Public Art Funds 324,000 
     TOTAL SPECIAL FUNDS:                                $5,672,502  
  
ENTERPRISE FUND EXPENDITURES:  
Street Lighting Fund $584,150  
Water Fund 8,310,421 
Wastewater Fund 16,265,161 
Water Cap Fee Fund  850,000 
WWTP Cap Fees Fund  2,500,000 
Sanitation Fund 3,737,479 
City Parking Fund 167,896 
Drainage Fund 1,257,307 
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     TOTAL ENTERPRISE EXPENDITURES:          $33,672,414  
  
FIDUCIARY FUNDS: $2,661,900  
STREET CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS: 2,842,000 
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS: 882,661 
GRAND TOTAL OF ALL EXPENDITURES:   $85,949,225  

 
Section 3 

That a General Levy of $17,658,461 on all taxable property within the City of Coeur 
d'Alene be and the same is hereby levied for general revenue purposes for the fiscal year 
commencing October 1, 2015. 

Section 4 
That a Special Levy upon all taxable property within the limits of the City of Coeur 

d'Alene in the amount of $2,839,529 is hereby levied for special revenue purposes for the fiscal 
year commencing October 1, 2015. 
 
 Section 5 

The provisions of this ordinance are severable and if any provision, clause, sentence, 
subsection, word or part thereof is held illegal, invalid or unconstitutional or inapplicable to any 
person or circumstance, such illegality, invalidity or unconstitutionality or inapplicability shall 
not affect or impair any of the remaining provisions, clauses, sentences, subsections, words or 
parts of this ordinance or their application to other persons or circumstances.  It is hereby de-
clared to be the legislative intent that this ordinance would have been adopted if such illegal, 
invalid or unconstitutional provision, clause, sentence, subsection, word or part had not been 
included therein, and if such person or circumstance to which the ordinance or part thereof is 
held inapplicable had been specifically exempt there from. 
 
 Section 6 

This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force upon its passage, approval and 
publication in one (1) issue of the Coeur d'Alene Press, a newspaper of general circulation 
published within the City of Coeur d'Alene and the official newspaper thereof. 
 
STAFF REPORT:  Mr. Tymesen explained that the financial plan is an estimate of revenues 
and expenditures (including interest and principal payments on debt) for the upcoming year.  The 
expenditures are classified by department as well as by fund or service and the revenues are 
classified by source.  Included in the budget are actual revenues and expenditures from the prior 
two fiscal years, budgeted revenues and expenditures for the current fiscal year, and proposed 
revenues and expenditures for the upcoming fiscal year.  He reviewed the previous budget and 
tax increases, revenues, and expenses.  The Fund Balance is currently at $6,100,000, which is 
14.5% of expenditures. The revenues proposed include a 1.75% increase in property tax revenue, 
no foregone property taxes, and $827,349 in new growth property taxes.  The proposed budget 
includes 21.09 new full time equivalent staff positions.   
 
DISCUSSION:  Councilmember Gookin questioned the effect of moving the street light fund 
fee to being paid out of the General Fund.  Mr. Tymesen explained that it is approximately 
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$584,000, so if it were moved to the General Fund expenses would need to be cut to cover it as 
the high water mark has already been set.  He further clarified that a revenue source would need 
to be determined to cover the expense.  City Attorney Mike Gridley explained that under Idaho 
Code the City can collect a fee for services, for example, water and sewer as opposed to a tax.  
The street light utility was legally established and it is justified by all citizens use the lighting.  
Mr. Gridley clarified that if it was moved to the General Fund it would make more of a burden to 
the property owners.  Mr. Tymesen explained that there has been a $194,787 increase in 
projected revenue from the State than they projected earlier.  Councilmember Gookin expressed 
a desire to adjust the property tax increase accordingly.  Councilmember Miller asked for 
clarification regarding the effect that a large fund balance has on the interest rates the City is able 
to get.   Mr. Tymesen explained that the GFA recommends several months of cash reserves on 
hand, which should be in the double digit percentages.  Councilmember Edinger asked what the 
difference in property tax increase would be if it were adjusted according to the new revenue 
figures.  Mr. Tymesen clarified that it would be approximately .75%.    Councilmember Adams 
asked how the City could get to no property tax increase.  Mr. Tymesen stated that the remaining 
funds needed could come from the Fund Balance and/or hiring at a slower pace throughout the 
year rather than on October 1.  He clarified that there are some risks in taking the remaining 
amount from Fund Balance as the bulk of the expenditures are for on-going personnel costs.  He 
looks to continued growth and slow hiring to help cover the Fund Balance.    
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS:    
 
Susan Snedaker, Coeur d’Alene, expressed disappointment that the budget only reflected an 
increase in code enforcement to a part-time person.  She believes that it should be funded to 
allow for more pro-active enforcement.  She expressed concern regarding the public art fund and 
questioned the need for $5,000 in education and training, when there are pieces that need 
maintenance.  Total revenue is $101,000 for maintenance and she requested the Council sunset 
the collection of the fee for a while. Councilmember Edinger explained that the public art fund is 
funded from public works construction projects and is a designated fund so it can’t be used for 
other items.   
 
Councilmember Edinger asked if the City is collecting money for moorage and launch fees.  Mr. 
Tymesen explained that there are pay boxes that are on the honor system, and they are monitored 
by Diamond.   He further explained that the launch was not originally in the new design and so 
the fees cannot be collected the same way as they were in the past.  Councilmember Adams 
noted that the art fund is established by ordinance and could be repealed.  
   
Larry Spencer, Post Falls, noted that he sent an e-mail to the Mayor and Council regarding the 
legality of collecting street light fees.  The City of Sandpoint City Attorney determined that there 
was no legal authority for them to collect a fee.  The cities of Rathdrum and Post Falls have 
received information from their attorney that the fee could be challenged and likely overturned.  
He clarified the difference between a fee and a tax, with a fee only benefitting the person paying 
the fee, otherwise it is a tax.  He noted that the City of Seattle had to refund $18,000,000 because 
a street light benefits all people not just one.  He expressed concern with City Councils taking 
their legal advice without question.   
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Councilmember Gookin asked staff to contact the City of Sandpoint for information.  Mr. 
Gridley noted that the Council could repeal the ordinance and thereafter would need to amend 
the budget accordingly.  He clarified that there has not been an Idaho Supreme Court case 
regarding the constitutionality of a street light fee and explained the benefit of the street lights 
and that a rational analysis has been completed.   
 
MOTION:  Motion by Gookin, seconded by Miller to propose a zero percent property tax 
increase in the appropriation ordinance; using the newly projected state revenue and $134,646 
from the Fund Balance to make up the difference in revenue.  
 
DISCUSSION CONTINUED:  Councilmember Adams expressed appreciation for being able to 
make the budget balance without a property tax increase so he would be in favor of the motion.  
Councilmember Edinger asked if the $134,646 could be paid back to the Fund Balance 
throughout the year.  Mr. Tymesen explained that the Fund Balance could be replenished 
depending upon variables throughout the year, but he does not assume pay back at this time.  
Councilmember Gookin commented that the City is affected by Urban Renewal Agencies 
(URA), as funds are not given to the City during their term and that upon retiring of the URA 
district the City will get a boost in income.  Mayor Widmyer noted that staff and previous 
administrations have strengthened the City so that it is in a position to bring forward a zero 
percent property tax increase and thanked all of those that have put in the hard work over the 
years.    
 
ROLL CALL:  Adams Aye; Miller Aye; McEvers Aye; Edinger Aye; Gookin Aye; Evans Aye. 
Motion carried. 
 
MOTION:  Motion by Gookin, seconded by: Edinger, to pass the first reading of Council Bill 
No. 15-1017. 
  
ROLL CALL:  Adams Aye; Miller Aye; McEvers Aye; Edinger Aye; Gookin Aye; Evans Aye. 
Motion carried. 
 
MOTION:  Motion by Gookin seconded by McEvers, to suspend the rules and to adopt Council 
Bill 15-1017 by its having had one reading by title only. 
 
ROLL CALL:  Adams Aye; Miller Aye; McEvers Aye; Edinger Aye; Gookin Aye; Evans Aye. 
Motion carried. 
 
V-15-3– VACATION OF A PORTION OF EXCESS E. SHERMAN AVENUE RIGHT-
OF-WAY ADJOINING THE NORTHERLY BOUNDARY OF LOTS 1 AND 2, BLOCK A 
OF THE BOUGHTON AND KELSO ADDITION PLAT.   
 
STAFF REPORT:  Engineering Project Manager Dennis Grant explained that the applicant has 
requested the vacation of a portion of city owned right-of-way that adjoins the northerly 
boundary of their property on the south side of 8th Street and Sherman Avenue, specifically 
known as 728 E. Sherman Avenue.   The right-of-way was dedicated to the City in 1903.  The 
existing Sherman Avenue right-of-way fronting this parcel is wider that the parcels abutting this 
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property and is therefore not needed.  The vacation area contains street trees and the property 
owner has agreed to provide a street tree easement.  Forty-four notices were mailed out and three 
(3) responses were received; one each for, against, and neutral.   
 
Mayor Widmyer called for public comments with none being received.   
 
DISCUSSION:  Councilmember Miller explained that after the Public Works Committee 
meeting she noted the street trees within the right-of-way. She learned that Urban Forestry was 
unaware of the vacation and asked them to become involved which resulted in a tree easement. 
She requested that all affected departments be involved in the comments to the staff report on 
future vacation requests. 
 
MOTION:   Motion by Adams, seconded by Evans to approve V-15-3 – Vacation of a portion 
of excess E. Sherman Avenue right-of-way adjoining the northerly boundary of Lots 1 and 2, 
Block A of the Boughton and Kelso Addition Plat.   
 
ROLL CALL:  Miller Aye; McEvers Aye; Edinger Aye; Gookin Aye; Evans Aye; Adams Aye.  
Motion Carried. 
 
V-15-5– VACATION OF A PORTION OF EXCESS GOVERNMENT WAY RIGHT-OF-
WAY ADJOINING THE WESTERLY BOUNDARY OF LOT 1, BLOCK 1 OF THE 
GOVERNMENT WAY COMMERCIAL PARK PLAT.   
 
STAFF REPORT:  Engineering Project Manager Dennis Grant explained that the applicant has 
requested the vacation of a portion of excess Government Way right-of-way adjoining the 
westerly boundary of Lot 1, Block 1 of the Government Way Commercial Park Plat (1410 
Government Way).  This right-of-way was originally dedicated to the City with the Fort 
Sherman Abandoned Military Reserve Plat.  This property contains street trees so an easement 
will be provided to the City.  Twenty notices were mailed out and one (1) response was received 
that was marked neutral. 
 
Mayor Widmyer called for public comments with none being received.   
 
MOTION:   Motion by McEvers, seconded by Adams to approve V-15-5 – Vacation of a 
portion of excess Government Way right-of-way adjoining the westerly boundary of Lot 1, 
Block 1 of the Government Way Commercial Park Plat.   
 
ROLL CALL:  McEvers Aye; Edinger Aye; Gookin Aye; Evans Aye; Adams Aye; Miller Aye; 
Motion Carried. 
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ADJOURNMENT:  Motion by Evans, seconded by Adams that there being no other business 
this meeting be adjourned.  Motion Carried. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:23 p.m. 
 
 
        _____________________________ 
      Steve Widmyer, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________ 
Renata McLeod, City Clerk  
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RESOLUTION NO. 15-046 
 
  
 
 A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE, KOOTENAI COUNTY, 
IDAHO AUTHORIZING THE BELOW MENTIONED CONTRACTS AND OTHER 
ACTIONS OF THE CITY OF COEUR D’ALENE INCLUDING APPROVING AN 
AMENDMENT TO THE KOOTENAI COUNTY MULTI-JURISDICTIONAL ALL HAZARD 
MITIGATION PLAN; APPROVING S-3-12, COEUR D'ALENE PLACE 25TH ADDITION, 
FINAL PLAT, SUBDIVISION AGREEMENT AND BOND SECURITY APPROVAL; 
APPROVING A STREET TREE EASEMENT AGREEMENT WITH TOMBSTONE 
INVESTMENTS, LLC; AND APPROVING A STREET TREE EASEMENT AGREEMENT 
WITH IDAHO CENTRAL CREDIT UNION. 
         

WHEREAS, it has been recommended that the City of Coeur d’Alene enter into the 
contract(s), agreement(s) or other actions listed below pursuant to the terms and conditions set 
forth in the contract(s), agreement(s) and other action(s) documents attached hereto as Exhibits 
“A through D” and by reference made a part hereof as summarized as follows: 

 
A) Adopting the 2015 Kootenai County Multi-Jurisdictional All Hazard Mitigation Plan 

(excerpts attached) with the full plan on file in the office of the Coeur d'Alene Fire 
Chief; 

 
B) Approving S-3-12, Coeur d'Alene Place 25th Addition, Final Plat, Subdivision 

Agreement and Bond Security approval; 
 
C) Approving a Street Tree Easement Agreement with Tombstone Investments, LLC; 
 
D) Approving a Street Tree Easement Agreement with Idaho Central Credit Union; 
 
AND; 
 
WHEREAS, it is deemed to be in the best interests of the City of Coeur d'Alene and the 

citizens thereof to enter into such agreements or other actions; NOW, THEREFORE, 
 

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Coeur d'Alene that the 
City enter into agreements or other actions for the subject matter, as set forth in substantially the 
form attached hereto as Exhibits "A through D" and incorporated herein by reference with the 
provision that the Mayor, City Administrator, and City Attorney are hereby authorized to modify 
said agreements or other actions so long as the substantive provisions of the agreements or other 
actions remain intact. 
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BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Mayor and City Clerk be and they are hereby 
authorized to execute such agreements or other actions on behalf of the City. 
 

DATED this 15th day of September, 2015.   
 
 
 
                                        
                                   Steve Widmyer, Mayor 
ATTEST 
 
 
 
      
Renata McLeod, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 Motion by _______________, Seconded by _______________, to adopt the foregoing 
resolution.   
 
     ROLL CALL: 
 
 

COUNCIL MEMBER EVANS  Voted _____ 
 
COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER  Voted _____ 

 
COUNCIL MEMBER MCEVERS  Voted _____ 

 
COUNCIL MEMBER ADAMS  Voted _____ 

 
COUNCIL MEMBER GOOKIN  Voted _____ 

 
COUNCIL MEMBER EDINGER  Voted _____ 

 
_________________________ was absent.  Motion ____________. 
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City of Coeur d’Alene 

FIRE DEPARTMENT 

“City of Excellence”  

_________________________________ 
 

Staff Report 
 
Date:  September 10, 2015 
 
From:  Jim Washko, Deputy Chief 
 
Re:  Kootenai County “All Hazard Mitigation Plan 
 
DECISION POINT: 
To accept the Kootenai County All Hazard Mitigation Plan as revised from November 2009.         
 
HISTORY: 
The Kootenai County “All Hazard Mitigation Plan” was developed in 2008/2009 to provide 
information relative to the hazards and vulnerabilities facing the residents of Kootenai County. 
The plan is designed to interface with the State of Idaho’s Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan, 2007. It 
integrates the KC Fire Mitigation Plan, the KC Flood Mitigation Plan, the KC Comprehensive 
Plan and is formulated in support of the FEMA National Flood Insurance Program. This was all 
done to provide information an acceptance from FEMA for hazard and mitigation grant services 
if and when needed.             
 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS: 
Being a part of this plan which has been accepted by the Idaho Bureau of Homeland Security 
(IBHS) and the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) gives us as a city the 
opportunities for federal access to grant funding in major disasters.  
 
PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS: 
The city of Coeur d’Alene has been a part of this process from its conception in 2009. The plan 
is to be revised and upgraded every five years to ensure we are keeping up with the federal 
requirements and to adjust our need for mitigation and preparation according to our ever 
changing world and environment. The revision is a more comprehensive with a better structure 
to be easily understood. Without participating in a planning process such as this would 
jeopardize the city’s ability to recuperate tax payer funds spent on a major event and could 
conceivably put the total cost burden back on us. 
 
DECISION POINT/RECOMMENDATION: 
To approve with a resolution the adoption of the 2015 Kootenai County “All Hazard Mitigation 
Plan” as written    
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Kootenai County 
All Hazard Mitigation Plan 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
Hazard Mitigation Planning in Kootenai County: 

 
In August of 2014, a coalition of Kootenai County cities and special purpose districts embarked 
on a planning process to prepare for and lessen the impacts of specified by updating the Kootenai 
County Multi-Jurisdictional All-Hazard Mitigation Plan. Responding to federal mandates in the 
Disater Mitigation Act of 2000 (Public Law 106-390), the coalition was formed to pool resources 
and to create a uniform hazard mitigation strategy that can be consistently applied to the defined 
planning area and used to ensure eligibility for specified grant funding success. 

This effort represents a comprehensive update to the initial hazard mitigation plan, 
approved by the Federal Emergecny Management Agency (FEMA) on May 27, 2010. The 33 
member coalition of partners involved in this program includes Kootenai County, 12 city and 
town governments and 20 special purpose districts. The planning area for the hazard mitigation 
plan was defined as all incorporated and unincorporated areas of  Kootenai County. The result of 
the organizational effort will be a FEMA and Idaho Bureau of Homeland Security (IBHS) 
approved multi-jurisdictional, multi-hazard mitigation plan. 

Mitigation is defined in this context as any sustained action taken to reduce or eliminate 
long-term risk to life and property from a hazard event. Mitigation planning is the systematic 
process of learning about the hazards that can affect the community, setting clear goals, 
identifying appropriate actions and following through with an effective mitigation strategy. 
Mitigation encourages long-term reduction of hazard vulnerability and can reduce the enormous 
cost of disasters to property owners and all levels of government. Mitigation can also protect 
critical community facilities, reduce exposure to liability, and minimize post-disaster community 
disruption.  

 
The hazard identification and profiling in the hazard mitigation plan addresses the following 
hazards of concern within the planning area: 
 

1. Avalanche 
2. Dam Failure 
3. Drought 
4. Earthquake 
5. Flood  
6. Landslide and other mass movement 
7. Severe weather (including severe winter weather) 
8. Volcano (ash fall) 
9. Wildfire 

 
With the exception of dam failure, this plan does not provide a full risk assessment of 
technological and human-caused hazards. However,  a profile  including qualitative discussions 
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of the following hazards of interest are included: cyber-disruption, hazardous materials incidents, 
pandemic, radiological material exposure, civil unrest and terrorism.  

The Kootenai County Office of Emergency Management has takent the lead agency role 
in developing the hazard mitigation plan.  All participating local jurisdictions have been 
responsible for assisting in the development of the hazard and vulnerability assessments and the 
mitigation action strategies for their respective jurisdictions and organizations. The Plan presents 
the accumulated information in a unified framework to ensure a comprehensive and coordinated 
plan covering the entire Kootenai County planning area.  Each jurisdiction has been responsible 
for the review and approval of their individual sections of the Plan. 

The plan was prepared in accordance with the Idaho Bureau of Homeland Security Local 
Hazard Mitigation Plan preparation guidelines. Additionally, the plan has been aligned with the 
goals, objectives and priorities of the State’s multi-hazard mitigation plan, the Kootenai County 
Flood Mitigation Plan and the Kootenai County Community Wildfire Protection Plan.  

A 17 member Steering Committee (SC) composed of representative stakeholders was 
formed early in the planning process to guide the development of the Plan. In addition, residents 
were asked to contribute by sharing local knowledge of their individual area’s vulnerability to 
natural hazards based on past occurrences. Public involvement has been solicited via a multi-
media campaign that included two rounds of public meetings, web-based information, a 
questionnaire and progress updates via the news media.  
 
Why adopt this Plan? 
 
Once the hazard mitigation plan is adopted by all of the jurisdictional partners and approved by 
FEMA, the partnership will collectively and individually become eligible to apply for hazard 
mitigation project funding from both the Pre-Disaster Mitigation Grant Program (PDM) and the 
Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP).  
 

What is the Pre-Disaster Mitigation competitive grant program?  

The PDM competitive grant program provides funds to State, Tribal, and local governments for 
pre-disaster mitigation planning and projects primarily addressing natural hazards. Cost-
Effective pre-disaster mitigation activities reduce risk to life and property from natural hazard 
events before a natural disaster strikes, thus reducing overall risks to the population and 
structures, while also reducing reliance on funding from actual disaster declarations. Funds will 
be awarded on a competitive basis for mitigation planning and project applications intended to 
make local governments more resistant to the impacts of future natural disasters (For more 
details on this program see Attachment 1). 

What is the Hazard Mitigation Grant Program? 

Authorized under Section 404 of the Stafford Act, the HMGP administered by FEMA provides 
grants to States and local governments to implement long-term hazard mitigation measures after 
a major disaster declaration. The purpose of the program is to reduce the loss of life and property 
due to natural disasters and to enable mitigation measures to be implemented during the 
immediate recovery from a disaster (For more details on this program see Attachment 1). 
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Attachment 1 
Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP) 

Pre-Disaster Mitigation Grant Program (PDM) 

FACT SHEET 

I. HAZARD MITIGATION GRANT PROGRAM (HMGP) 

What is the Hazard Mitigation Grant Program? 

Authorized under Section 404 of the Stafford Act, the Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP) 
administered by the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) provides grants to States and local 
governments to implement long-term hazard mitigation measures after a major disaster declaration. The 
purpose of the program is to reduce the loss of life and property due to natural disasters and to enable 
mitigation measures to be implemented during the immediate recovery from a disaster.  

Who is eligible to apply? 

Hazard Mitigation Grant Program funding is only available to applicants that reside within a Presidentially 
declared disaster area. Eligible applicants are  

• State and local governments  
• Indian tribes or other tribal organizations  
• Certain non-profit organizations  

What types of projects can be funded by the HMGP? 

HMGP funds may be used to fund projects that will reduce or eliminate the losses from future disasters. 
Projects must provide a long-term solution to a problem, for example, elevation of a home to reduce the risk of 
flood damages as opposed to buying sandbags and pumps to fight the flood. In addition, a project’s potential 
savings must be more than the cost of implementing the project. Funds may be used to protect either public or 
private property or to purchase property that has been subjected to, or is in danger of, repetitive damage. 
Examples of projects include, but are not limited to:  

• Acquisition of real property for willing sellers and demolition or relocation of buildings to convert the 
property to open space use  

• Retrofitting structures and facilities to minimize damages from high winds, earthquake, flood, 
wildfire, or other natural hazards  

• Elevation of flood prone structures  
• Development and initial implementation of vegetative management programs  
• Minor flood control projects that do not duplicate the flood prevention activities of other Federal 

agencies  
• Localized flood control projects, such as certain ring levees and floodwall systems, that are designed 

specifically to protect critical facilities  
• Post-disaster building code related activities that support building code officials during the 

reconstruction process  

What are the minimum project criteria? 

There are five issues you must consider when determining the eligibility of a proposed project. 
• Does your project conform to your State’s Hazard Mitigation Plan?  
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• Does your project provide a beneficial impact on the disaster area i.e. the State?  
• Does your application meet the environmental requirements?  
• Does your project solve a problem independently?  
• Is your project cost-effective?  

II. PRE-DISASTER MITIGATION GRANT PROGRAM (PDM) 

What is the Pre-Disaster Mitigation competitive grant program?  

The Pre-Disaster Mitigation (PDM) competitive grant program provides funds to State, Tribal, and local 
governments for pre-disaster mitigation planning and projects primarily addressing natural hazards. Cost-
Effective pre-disaster mitigation activities reduce risk to life and property from natural hazard events before a 
natural disaster strikes, thus reducing overall risks to the population and structures, while also reducing 
reliance on funding from actual disaster declarations. Funds will be awarded on a competitive basis to 
successful Applicants for mitigation planning and project applications intended to make local governments 
more resistant to the pacts of future natural disasters. 

Who can apply for a PDM competitive grant?  

Eligible PDM competitive grant Applicants include State and Territorial emergency management agencies, or 
a similar office of the State, District of Columbia, U.S. Virgin Islands, Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, Guam, 
American Samoa, Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands, and Federally-recognized Indian Tribal 
governments.  

 Eligible Sub-applicants include State agencies; Federally-recognized Indian Tribal governments; and 
local governments (including State recognized Indian Tribal governments and Alaska native villages).  

 Applicants can apply for PDM competitive grant funds directly to FEMA, while Sub-applicants must 
apply for funds through an eligible Applicant.  

 Private non-profit organizations are not eligible to apply for PDM but may ask the appropriate local 
government to submit an application for the proposed activity on their behalf.  

What are eligible PDM projects? 

Multi-hazard mitigation projects must primarily focus on natural hazards but also may address 
hazards caused by non-natural forces. Funding is restricted to a maximum of $3M Federal share 
per project. The following are eligible mitigation projects: 

 Acquisition or relocation of hazard-prone property for conversion to open space in perpetuity; 

 Structural and non-structural retrofitting of existing buildings and facilities (including designs 
and feasibility studies when included as part of the construction project) for wildfire, seismic, 
wind or flood hazards (e.g., elevation, flood proofing, storm shutters, hurricane clips); 

 Minor structural hazard control or protection projects that may include vegetation 
management, Stormwater management (e.g., culverts, floodgates, retention basins), or 
shoreline/landslide stabilization; and, 

 Localized flood control projects, such as certain ring levees and floodwall systems, that are 
designed specifically to protect critical facilities and that do not constitute a section of a larger 
flood control system. 

Mitigation Project Requirements 
Projects should be technically feasible (see Section XII. Engineering Feasibility) and ready to implement. 
Engineering designs for projects must be included in the application to allow FEMA to assess the effectiveness 
and feasibility of the proposed project. The project cost estimate should complement the engineering design, 
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including all anticipated costs. FEMA has several formats that it uses in cost estimating for projects. 
Additionally, other Federal agencies’ approaches to project cost estimating can be used as long as the method 
provides for a complete and accurate estimate. FEMA can provide technical assistance on engineering 
documentation and cost estimation (see Section XIII.D. Engineering Feasibility). 

Mitigation projects also must meet the following criteria: 

1. Be cost-effective and substantially reduce the risk of future damage, hardship, loss, or suffering 
resulting from a major disaster, consistent with 44 CFR 206.434(c)(5) and related guidance, and 
have a Benefit-Cost Analysis that results in a benefit-cost ratio of 1.0 or greater (see Section X. 
Benefit-Cost Analysis). Mitigation projects with a benefit-cost ratio less than 1.0 will not be 
considered for the PDM competitive grant program;  

2. Be in conformance with the current FEMA-approved State hazard mitigation plan; 

3. Solve a problem independently or constitute a functional portion of a solution where there is 
assurance that the project as a whole will be completed, consistent with 44 CFR 206.434(b)(4); 

4. Be in conformance with 44 CFR Part 9, Floodplain Management and Protection of Wetlands, 
and 44 CFR Part 10, consistent with 44 CFR 206.434(c)(3); 

5. Not duplicate benefits available from another source for the same purpose, including assistance 
that another Federal agency or program has the primary authority to provide (see Section VII.C. 
Duplication of Benefits and Programs); 

6. Be located in a community that is participating in the NFIP if they have been identified through 
the NFIP as having a Special Flood Hazard Area (a FHBM or FIRM has been issued). In 
addition, the community must not be on probation, suspended or withdrawn from the NFIP; and, 

7. Meet the requirements of Federal, State, and local laws. 

What are examples of Ineligible PDM Projects? 

The following mitigation projects are not eligible for the PDM program: 

 Major flood control projects such as dikes, levees, floodwalls, seawalls, groins, jetties, 
dams, waterway channelization, beach nourishment or re-nourishment; 

 Warning systems; 

 Engineering designs that are not integral to a proposed project; 

 Feasibility studies that are not integral to a proposed project; 

 Drainage studies that are not integral to a proposed project; 

 Generators that are not integral to a proposed project; 

 Phased or partial projects; 

 Flood studies or flood mapping; and,  

 Response and communication equipment. 
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Attachment 2 
Executive Summary from Volume 1  

Kootenai County Multi-Jurisdictional All-Hazard Mitigation Plan Update 
 

 
The Disaster Mitigation Act (DMA) is federal legislation that requires proactive, pre-disaster 
planning as a prerequisite for some funding available under the Robert T. Stafford Act. The 
DMA encourages state and local authorities to work together on pre-disaster planning. The 
enhanced planning network called for by the DMA helps local governments’ articulate accurate 
needs for mitigation, resulting in faster allocation of funding and more cost-effective risk 
reduction projects. 
Hazard mitigation is the use of long- and short-term strategies to reduce or alleviate the loss of 
life, personal injury, and property damage that can result from a disaster. It involves strategies 
such as planning, policy changes, programs, projects, and other activities that can mitigate the 
impacts of hazards. It is impossible to predict exactly when and where disasters will occur or the 
extent to which they will impact an area, but with careful planning and collaboration among 
public agencies, stakeholders and citizens, it is possible to minimize losses that disasters can 
cause. The responsibility for hazard mitigation lies with many, including private property 
owners; business and industry; and local, state and federal government. 
Kootenai County and a partnership of local governments within the County have developed and 
maintained a hazard mitigation plan to reduce risks from natural disasters and to comply with the 
DMA and Title 44 of the Code of Federal Regulations Section 201.6 (44 CFR 201.6). This plan 
will, and has, acted as the keyway to federal funding afforded under FEMA hazard mitigation 
grant programs. 

PREVIOUS HAZARD MITIGATION PLANNING IN KOOTENAI COUNTY 
Federal regulations require monitoring, evaluation and updating of hazard mitigation plans. An 
update provides an opportunity to reevaluate recommendations, monitor the impacts of actions 
that have been accomplished, and determine if there is a need to change the focus of mitigation 
strategies. A jurisdiction covered by a plan that has expired is no longer in compliance with the 
DMA. 
The 2009 Kootenai County Multi-Jurisdictional All Hazard Mitigation Plan was a FEMA-
required revision and update of the County’s 2004 plan. It was prepared by the Kootenai County 
Office of Emergency Management, the Local Emergency Planning Committee’s standing All 
Hazard Mitigation Committee and Risk Analysis Committee, and a planning consultant. 
Participating jurisdictions included Kootenai County and 10 local municipalities within the 
Kootenai County Operational Area. 
The purpose of the plan was to reduce the physical and economic impacts of natural and man-
made disasters or emergency situations on the residents and businesses of Kootenai County and 
its participating jurisdictions. The plan identified hazards affecting Kootenai County and the 
county’s vulnerabilities. It provided a countywide strategy of mitigation projects to reduce future 
disaster losses. The mitigation plan was approved by the FEMA Region 10 on May 27, 2010 and 
meets the requirements of DMA and Title 44 of the Code of Federal Regulations Section 201.6 
(44 CFR 201.6) 
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DATE:
FROM:
SUBJEGT:

CITY COUNCIL
STAFF REPORT

September 15,2O15
Dennis J. Grant, Engineering Project Manager
Easement for Public Street Trees with Tombstone
lnvestments, LLG located at728 E. Sherman Avenue

On September 1,2015, the City Council held a public hearing on the proposed
vacation V-1 5-3 and directed staff to prepare the vacation ordinance. Staff has done so
and is returning the vacation ordinance to the City Council for final approval. The
ordinance will take effect upon publication of the ordinance.

The applicant, Tombstone lnvestments, LLC indicated that it would grant back, to
the City, easements for street trees following the vacation. Staff has produced the
attached easement for public street trees for the applicant and will be executed and
recorded by the parties following the vacation process.

Staff recommends to the City Council to approve the easement for public street
trees with Tombstone lnvestments, LLC.



EASEMENT FOR PUBLIC STREET TREES 
 
 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that TOMBSTONE INVESTMENTS, LLC, with its 
principal place of business at 110 E. Wallace Avenue, Coeur d'Alene, Idaho, 83814, the GRANTOR, for and in 
consideration of the sum of One Dollar ($1.00), and other good and valuable consideration, paid by the City of 
Coeur d’Alene, Kootenai County, State of Idaho, receipt of which is acknowledged, do hereby grant, quitclaim 
and convey unto the CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE, a municipal corporation, the GRANTEE, whose address 
is 710 E. Mullan Avenue, Coeur d'Alene, Idaho, 83814, its successors and assigns, an easement for public 
purposes set forth below and the right to go upon, occupy, and use a strip of land together with the right of 
ingress and egress to and from said property situated in Kootenai County, Idaho and being more particularly 
described on Exhibit “A & B”, attached hereto and incorporated herein. 
 

Said strip of land shall be used for the purpose of complying with the provisions of the Urban Forestry 
Ordinance of the City of Coeur d'Alene, Municipal Code Section 12.36.005, et seq., particularly provisions 
requiring installation and use of street trees including appurtenances thereto such as irrigation systems and other 
landscaping.  GRANTOR agrees to repair, maintain and replace the same when necessary to maintain 
compliance with the above-stated ordinances. 

  
This conveyance is a grant of an easement for the above-stated public purposes, and if at any time the 

above-stated purposes are no longer required by GRANTEE and therefore said parcel of land ceases to be used 
for public street trees by the GRANTEE herein, or its successors or assigns, then in that event this conveyance 
shall become null and void and of no effect between the Parties hereto, or their successors or assigns.     
 

It is expressly intended that these burdens and restrictions shall run with the land and shall bind the 
GRANTOR, its successors and assigns except as stated in the paragraph above.  

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the GRANTORS have caused this instrument to be executed this 

____ day of September, 2015. 
 
      GRANTOR: 
 
                                          TOMBSTONE INVESTMENTS, LLC 
                                      
 
                                          ________________________________ 
      Steve White, Managing Member  
                                 
STATE OF IDAHO ) 
                      ) ss. 
County of Kootenai ) 
 

On this ____ day of September, 2015, before me, a Notary Public, personally appeared Steve 
White, known to me to be the Managing Member of Tombstone Investments, and the person who executed 
the foregoing instrument on behalf of said LLC and acknowledged to me that such LLC executed the 
same. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my Notarial Seal the day and 
year in this certificate first above written. 
 
                                 ________________________________ 
                                  Notary Public for the State of Idaho, 
                                 Residing at:  ______________________ 
                                  My Commission Expires:  ___________ 
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A strip of land being a portion of Sherman Avenue lying in the Southeast Quarter of Section 13, 
Township 50 North, Range 4 West, Boise sdfMeridian, City of Post Falls, Kootenai County, Idaho and being 
more particularly described as follows: 

BEGINNING AT the Northwest corner of Lot 1, Block A according to the plat of Boughton & Kelso 
Addition, filed at Book A of Plats, Page 115, Records of Kootenai County, Idaho, on the South right of 
way of Sherman Avenue being a City concrete monument from which the Southwest corner of said Lot 
1, Block A bears SOo 06' 10"W 105.00 feet; 

thence NOo 06' 10"E 5.76 feet; 

thence S88° 08' 22"E 86.50 feet; 

thence SOo 04' 48"W 3.09 feet to the northeast corner of Lot 2, Block A of said Plat of Boughton & Kelso 
on said South right of way being a )12 inch rebar with yellow plastic cap marked PLS 4182; 

thence along said South right of way, N89° 54' 44"W 86.46 feet to the True Point of Beginning; 

said strip of land being 382 square feet of land, more or less. 
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SHERMAN A VENUE 
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DATE:
FROM:
SUBJEGT:

September 15,2015
Dennis J. Grant, Engineering Project Manager
Easement for Public Street Trees with ldaho Gentral Credit
Union, lnc. located at 1420 N. Government Way

On September 1,2015, the City Council held a public hearing on the proposed
vacation V-15-5 and directed staff to prepare the vacation ordinance. Staff has done so
and is returning the vacation ordinance to the City Council for final approval. The
ordinance will take effect upon publication of the ordinance.

The applicant, ldaho Central Credit Union, INC indicated that it would grant back, to
the City, easements for street trees following the vacation. Staff has produced the
attached easement for public street trees for the applicant and will be executed and
recorded by the parties following the vacation process.

Staff recommends to the City Council to approve the easement for public street
trees with ldaho Central Credit Union, lnc.

CITY COUNCIL
STAFF REPORT



EASEMENT FOR PUBLIC STREET TREES 
 
 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that IDAHO CENTRAL CREDIT UNION, INC., with its 
principal place of business at 4400 Central Way, Chubbuck, Idaho, 83202, the GRANTOR, for and in consideration 
of the sum of One Dollar ($1.00), and other good and valuable consideration, paid by the City of Coeur d’Alene, 
Kootenai County, State of Idaho, receipt of which is acknowledged, do hereby grant, quitclaim and convey unto the 
CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE, a municipal corporation, the GRANTEE, whose address is 710 E. Mullan Avenue, 
Coeur d'Alene, Idaho, 83814, its successors and assigns, an easement for public purposes set forth below and the 
right to go upon, occupy, and use a strip of land together with the right of ingress and egress to and from said 
property situated in Kootenai County, Idaho and being more particularly described as follows: 

 
All of the fourteen foot (14’) strip of right-of-way adjoining the westerly boundary of Lot 1, Block 1 
according to the plat of Government Way Commercial Park, filed at Book G of Plats, Page 294, Records of 
Kootenai County, Idaho; 
 
said strip of land being 2,523 square feet of land, more or less. 

 
Said strip of land shall be used for the purpose of complying with the provisions of the Urban Forestry 

Ordinance of the City of Coeur d'Alene, Municipal Code Section 12.36.005, et seq., particularly provisions requiring 
installation and use of street trees including appurtenances thereto such as irrigation systems and other landscaping.  
GRANTOR agrees to repair, maintain and replace the same when necessary to maintain compliance with the above-
stated ordinances. 

  
This conveyance is a grant of an easement for the above-stated public purposes, and if at any time the 

above-stated purposes are no longer required by GRANTEE and therefore said parcel of land ceases to be used for 
public street trees by the GRANTEE herein, or its successors or assigns, then in that event this conveyance shall 
become null and void and of no effect between the Parties hereto, or their successors or assigns.     
 

It is expressly intended that these burdens and restrictions shall run with the land and shall bind the 
GRANTOR, its successors and assigns except as stated in the paragraph above.  
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the GRANTORS have caused this instrument to be executed this ____ day of 
September, 2015. 
 
      GRANTOR: 
 
                                          IDAHO CENTRAL CREDIT UNION, INC. 
                                      
 
                                          ________________________________ 
      Kent Oram, CEO 
                                 
STATE OF IDAHO ) 
                      ) ss. 
County of Kootenai ) 
 

On this ____ day of September, 2015, before me, a Notary Public, personally appeared Kent Oram, known 
to me to be the CEO of Idaho Central Credit Union, Inc., and the person who executed the foregoing instrument on 
behalf of said corporation, and acknowledged to me that such corporation executed the same.  
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my Notarial Seal the day and year in 
this certificate first above written. 
 
                                 ________________________________ 
                                 Notary Public for the State of Idaho, 
                                 Residing at:  ______________________ 
                                 My Commission Expires:  ___________ 
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ANNOUNCEMENTS 



OTHER BUSINESS 



CITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORT 

DATE: September 15, 2015 

FROM: James Remitz, Capital Program Manager 

SUBJECT: Acceptance of Loan Offer WW # 1601 from the Idaho Department of 
Environmental Quality Clean Water State Revolving Fund for the Design 
and Construction of the Tertiary Treatment Phase 2 Project.  

======================================================================== 

DECISION POINT: 
 Wastewater staff recommends that the City Council City Council approve Resolution 15-047 and 
accept a loan offer from the state of Idaho Department of Environmental Quality (IDEQ) Clean 
Water State Revolving Fund in the amount of $ 20,000,000 for the design and construction of the 
City of Coeur d’Alene Wastewater Department Tertiary Treatment Phase 2 Project.  Resolution 
15- 047 and the Offer of Loan are attached for your review. 

HISTORY:    
Tertiary Treatment Phase 2 is the next phase of improvements to the Coeur d’Alene Advanced 
Wastewater Treatment Facility (AWTF) that will allow the City of Coeur d’Alene to comply with the 
new National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Permit effluent limits.  The loan 
will fund the design and construction of additional primary improvements (including a new primary 
clarifier), secondary treatment improvements (including a new secondary clarifier), modifications 
to the existing chemical systems and expansion of the tertiary filtration system to treat current and 
future plant flows.  

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS:  
The terms of the loan for this project are very advantageous to the City to fund this project.  The 
$20,000,000 loan has a fixed interest rate of 2.75% with a term of 20 years.  The City received 
the authority to incur debt for this project through judicial confirmation issued April 2, 2013. The 
current wastewater rate analysis included the revenue necessary to make the debt service 
payment.   

RECOMMENDATION: 
Wastewater staff recommends that the City Council approve Resolution 15-047 to accept the 
offer of Loan # WW 1601 from the State of Idaho Department of Environmental Quality and 
authorize the Mayor to sign said loan offer. 

Attachments:  
• Resolution 15 – 047
• IDEQ Loan Offer

City Council Staff Report 9/15/15 –Acceptance of Loan Offer # WW 1601 



RESOLUTION NO. 15-047 

WHEREAS, the City of Coeur d’Alene, Kootenai County, Idaho (the “City”) is a body 
politic and corporate duly organized, operating and existing under and pursuant to the provisions 
of the Constitution and the laws of the State of Idaho; 

WHEREAS, the City Council (the “Council”) of the City is authorized and empowered 
by the Revenue Bond Act, Idaho Code Sections 50-1027 through 50-1042, inclusive, and the 
Municipal Bond Law of the State of Idaho, being Idaho Code, Title 57, Chapter 2, to authorize, 
issue, sell and deliver revenue bonds to finance the acquisition and construction of improvements 
and additions to the wastewater system of the City (the “System”);  

WHEREAS, on April 15, 2013, the District Court of the First Judicial District of the State 
of Idaho, in and for the County of Kootenai, in Case No. CV-13-338, issued its Judgment (the 
“Judicial Confirmation”) ordering and decreeing, among other things, that the City has the 
authority to issue revenue bonds, without a public vote, to finance improvements to the City’s 
System (the “Project”);  

WHEREAS, the City has received from the State of Idaho Department of Environmental 
Quality (“DEQ”) that certain Loan Offer, Acceptance and Agreement for Wastewater Treatment 
Facility Design and Construction (Project No. WW1601) (the “Loan Offer”), attached hereto as 
Exhibit A, providing for a loan from DEQ to the City in the principal amount of up to 
$20,000,000, the proceeds of which are to be used by the City to finance a portion of the Project;  

WHEREAS, the City desires to accept the Loan Offer and authorize the Mayor or the 
City’s Finance Director to execute the Loan Offer, and deliver the same to DEQ together with all 
required documentation as itemized in the Loan Offer; 

WHEREAS, the City desires to authorize the City’s officials to  take all action necessary 
or reasonably required to effectuate the Loan Offer provisions, including, as authorized by the 
Judicial Confirmation,  to approve the substantial form of the bond to be issued to DEQ to 
evidence the loan in the principal amount up to $20,000,000 (the “Revenue Bond”) in the form 
attached hereto as Exhibit B, which Revenue Bond will be issued pursuant to the City’s 
Wastewater Bond Ordinance No. 3453, on parity with outstanding bonds issued thereunder. 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Council as follows: 

Section 1. Approval of Loan Offer.  The form, terms and provisions of the Loan Offer to 
be entered into, accepted, approved and/or acknowledged, as applicable, by the City be, and they 
are hereby, approved and authorized, and the Mayor or City Finance Director are hereby 
authorized to execute and deliver the Loan Offer.   

Section 2. Approval of Form of Revenue Bond.  The Revenue Bond in substantially the 
form attached hereto as Exhibit B is hereby approved, together with such changes as required at 
the time the City issues the Revenue Bond as shall be consistent with the Loan Offer. 

Section 3. Delivery of Documents to DEQ.  The officials of the City are authorized to 
deliver to DEQ the executed Loan Offer, together with a copy of this Resolution and form of 
Revenue Bond, together with all other required documentation required by the Loan Offer. 

Resolution No. 15-047 Page  1 of 4 

44518.0008.7585473.1 



Section 4. Necessary Actions.  The Mayor and other officers and agents of the City shall 
take all actions necessary or reasonably required by the Loan Offer to effectuate its provisions, 
and, upon completion of the Project, shall take all action necessary or desirable to authorize the 
issuance of the Revenue Bond to DEQ substantially in the form hereby approved. 

Adopted ___________, 2015. 
 

CITY OF COEUR D’ALENE, 
KOOTENAI COUNTY, IDAHO 
 
 
By _______________________________________ 

Steve Widmyer, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
By _________________________________ 
     Renata McLeod, City Clerk 

 

     Motion by _______________, Seconded by _______________, to adopt the foregoing 
resolution.   
 
ROLL CALL:  

 COUNCIL MEMBER GOOKIN Voted _____ 

 COUNCIL MEMBER MCEVERS Voted _____ 

 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER Voted _____ 

 COUNCIL MEMBER EDINGER Voted _____ 

 COUNCIL MEMBER EVANS Voted _____ 

 COUNCIL MEMBER ADAMS Voted _____ 

 
_________________________ was absent.  Motion ____________. 
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EXHIBIT A 
 

LOAN OFFER 
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EXHIBIT B 

SUBSTANTIAL FORM OF REVENUE BOND 
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UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

No. R-1  $______________ 
   

STATE OF IDAHO 
CITY OF COEUR D’ALENE, KOOTENAI COUNTY 

   
SEWER REVENUE BOND, SERIES 201__ 

   
 

INTEREST RATE: 
 

MATURITY DATE: 
 
DATED DATE: 

CUSIP 
       NO: ___ 

_____% _____________ ____________ N/A 
     
   
REGISTERED OWNER: STATE OF IDAHO DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL 
    QUALITY, BOISE, IDAHO 
   
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT:   _________________________________ AND ___/100 DOLLARS 
 

The City of Coeur d’Alene, Kootenai County, Idaho, a body politic and corporate 
organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the State of Idaho (herein called the 
“City”) hereby acknowledges itself to owe and for value received promises to pay, but only from 
the sources and as hereinafter provided, to the Registered Owner identified above, or registered 
assigns, the principal sum of __________________________________________________ and 
___/100 Dollars ($__________________) pursuant to the State of Idaho Department of 
Environmental Quality Loan Offer, Acceptance and Agreement for Wastewater Treatment 
Facility Design and Construction dated August ___, 2015 (the “Loan Agreement”) between the 
City and the State of Idaho Department of Environmental Quality (the “Lender”), plus interest 
accruing on the outstanding principal at the rate of ______ percent (______%) per annum on the 
basis of a 360-day year and twelve 30-day months.  Payments of principal and accrued interest 
hereon are payable pursuant to Schedule 1 attached hereto, payable semiannually on 
_________________ and _______________ of each year, commencing __________________, 
based on the outstanding principal under this Sewer Revenue Bond, Series 201___ (this “Bond”), 
amortized over twenty (20) years, with the final payment of the outstanding principal and 
accrued interest thereon due and payable on the Maturity Date above.   

The principal and interest payments on this Bond shall be payable in lawful money of the 
United States of America, to the Registered Owner hereof, at the address of such Registered 
Owner shown on the registration books of the City. Any Registered Owner of this Bond 
subsequent to its original Registered Owner is hereby placed on notice of all payments of  
principal and interest on this Bond prior to its transfer and all subsequent Registered Owners 
hereof hereby acknowledge that they have ascertained the actual unpaid amount of this Bond as 
of the date of transfer to them and hereby release the City from all obligations as to all principal 
and interest paid by the City prior to such date. 
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The Bond is subject to redemption at par, in whole or in part, on any date prior to the 
stated Maturity Date.  

This Bond is issued for the purpose of financing the Cost of Acquisition of certain 
improvements (the “Project”) to the City’s wastewater system (the “System”), pursuant to the 
Revenue Bond Act of the State of Idaho, being Section 50-1027 to 50-1042, inclusive, Idaho 
Code, and the Municipal Bond Law of the State of Idaho, being Idaho Code, Title 57, Chapter 2, 
and as authorized by the judicial confirmation of the Project and the City’s Wastewater Bond 
Ordinance No. 3453 adopted November 29, 2012 (“Ordinance No. 3453”), as supplemented by 
the City’s Supplemental Ordinance No. ______ adopted _______________, 201___ (the 
“Supplemental Ordinance,” and collectively with Ordinance No. 3453, the “Bond Ordinance”). 
Capitalized terms used but not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings as set forth in 
Ordinance No. 3453 and the Supplemental Ordinance.  

The Treasurer of the City is acting as the Bond Registrar, authenticating agent and paying 
agent for this Bond (the “Bond Registrar”).  

This Bond is payable solely from the special fund of the City defined as the “Bond Fund” 
under the Bond Ordinance, and the 201___ Debt Service Account created thereunder. The City 
has irrevocably obligated and bound itself to pay into the Bond Fund out of the Revenue of the 
System or from such other moneys as may be provided therefor certain amounts necessary to pay 
and secure the payment of the principal and interest on this Bond on parity with all Parity Bonds 
issued under the Bond Ordinance. This Bond is not a general obligation of the City.  The City 
hereby covenants and agrees with the owner of this Bond that it will keep and perform all the 
covenants of this Bond and of the Bond Ordinance to be by it kept and performed, and reference 
is hereby made to the Bond Ordinance for a complete statement of such covenants. 

The City does hereby pledge and bind itself to set aside from the Revenue Fund out of the 
Revenue of the System and to pay into the Bond Fund and the 201___ Reserve Account 
thereunder the various amounts required by the Bond Ordinance to be paid into and maintained 
in such fund and account, all within the times provided by the Bond Ordinance. To the extent 
more particularly provided by the Bond Ordinance, the amounts so pledged to be paid from the 
Revenue Fund out of the Revenue of the System into the Bond Fund shall be a lien and prior first 
charge thereon, equal in rank to the lien and charge of the Parity Bonds, and the amounts 
required to pay and secure the payment of Additional Bonds (as defined in the Ordinance) of the 
City hereafter issued on a parity of lien with the Parity Bonds, including this Bond, and superior 
to all other liens and charges of any kind or nature, except the Operation and Maintenance 
Expenses of the System.  

The pledge of Revenue of the System and other obligations of the City under the Bond 
Ordinance may be discharged at or prior to the maturity or redemption of this Bond upon the 
making of provision for the payment thereof on the terms and conditions set forth in the Bond 
Ordinance. 
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This Bond shall not be valid or become obligatory for any purpose or be entitled to any 
security or benefit under the Bond Ordinance until the Certificate of Authentication hereon shall 
have been manually signed by the Bond Registrar. 

It is hereby certified that all acts, conditions, and things required by the Constitution and 
statutes of the State of Idaho to exist, to have happened, been done, and performed precedent to 
and in the issuance of this Bond have happened, been done, and performed. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Coeur d’Alene, Kootenai County, Idaho, has 
caused this Bond to be signed with the facsimile or manual signatures of the Mayor and the City 
Treasurer, to be attested by the facsimile or manual signature of the City Clerk, all as of this 
_____ day of ________________, 201___. 

 CITY OF COEUR D’ALENE, KOOTENAI 
COUNTY, IDAHO 

  
  

By: _____________________________ 
                           Mayor 

   
By: _____________________________ 

City Treasurer 
  
ATTEST:  
  
 
____________________________________ 

Clerk 

 

  
 

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION 

Date of Authentication:       

This Bond is the Sewer Revenue Bond, Series 201___, of the City of Coeur d’Alene, 
Kootenai County, Idaho, in the principal amount of $_________________, dated 
_______________, 201___, as described in the within-mentioned Bond Ordinance.  

  
 
___________________________________ 
Registrar 
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ASSIGNMENT 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto 

Name of Transferee:            

Address:             
              

Tax Identification No.:             

the within Bond and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints       
      of          
to transfer said bond on the books kept for registration thereof with full power of substitution in 
the premises. 

Dated:        

 

_________________________________________ 
Registered Owner 

NOTE:  The signature on this Assignment must 
correspond with the name of the Registered Owner 
as it appears upon the face of the within Bond in 
every particular, without alteration or enlargement 
or any change whatever. 

SIGNATURE GUARANTEED: 

       

 

NOTICE:  Signature(s) must be guaranteed by an “eligible guarantor institution” that is a member of or a 
participant in a “signature guarantee program” (e.g., the Securities Transfer Agents Medallion Program, 
the Stock Exchange Medallion Program or the New York Stock Exchange, Inc. Medallion Signature 
Program). 

****** 
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CERTIFICATE OF THE TREASURER 

STATE OF IDAHO ) 
   ) ss. 
County of Kootenai ) 

I, the undersigned, the duly constituted, legally qualified and acting Treasurer of the City 
of Coeur d’Alene, Kootenai County, Idaho, hereby certify that the within Bond has been 
registered and recorded in my office pursuant to the provisions of chapter 9, Title 57, Idaho 
Code, and all acts amendatory thereof and supplementary thereto. 

WITNESS my hand this _____ day of ________________, 201___. 

 

 
      
Treasurer 
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Schedule 1 - Payment Schedule 

City of Coeur d’Alene, Kootenai County, Idaho 
Sewer Revenue Bond, Series 201___ 
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CITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORT 

 
DATE:  September 15, 2015 
 
FROM:  James Remitz, Capital Program Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Approval of Professional Services Agreement between City of Coeur 

d’Alene and HDR Engineering, Inc. for the Planning and Design of 
Tertiary Treatment Phase 2 Improvements  

======================================================================== 
 
DECISION POINT:  The City Council may wish to approve the proposed Agreement between the 
City of Coeur d’Alene and HDR Engineering, Inc. for Professional Services related to the planning 
and design of Tertiary Treatment, Phase 2 Improvements to the City of Coeur d’Alene Advanced 
Wastewater Treatment Facility (AWTF).  A copy of the proposed agreement with the scope of 
services and fee proposal is attached. 

HISTORY:  Construction of the Tertiary Treatment Phase 2 Improvements will enable the City to 
meet the new National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit effluent 
requirements (particularly low phosphorus) for discharge into the Spokane River.  Proposed 
improvements in Tertiary Treatment Phase 2 include primary treatment improvements (new 
primary clarifier), secondary treatment improvements (new secondary clarifier), modifications to 
the chemical systems and expansion of the tertiary membrane filtration system to treat current 
and future plant flows.  Phase 2 follows the completion of Tertiary Treatment Phase 1 in 
December 2014 (1 MGD flow) and will allow for the entire plant flow (up to 5 MGD) through the 
tertiary membrane filtration system. 
   
PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS:  HDR Engineering, Inc. has a long history of successfully assisting 
the Wastewater Department in the planning, design and construction for a variety of upgrades, 
expansions and improvements to the City’s Advanced Wastewater Treatment Facility.  Tertiary 
Treatment Phase 2 is a continuation of the improvements as defined in the 2000 Wastewater 
Facility Plan and subsequent 2009 Wastewater Facility Plan Amendment.   
 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS:  This proposed agreement will be funded entirely by a low interest loan 
from the Idaho Department of Environmental Quality (Loan # WW 1601). The loan will be repaid 
by wastewater user rate charges.  Funds for this project have been budgeted in the FY 
2015/2016 Wastewater Operating Budget. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Wastewater Department staff recommends that the City Council approve 
the attached Professional Services Agreement between the City of Coeur d’Alene and HDR 
Engineering, Inc. for Tertiary Treatment Phase 2 Improvements and authorize the Mayor to 
execute said Agreement. 
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RESOLUTION NO. 15-048 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE, KOOTENAI COUNTY, IDAHO 
AUTHORIZING AN AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES WITH HDR 
ENGINEERING, INC. FOR TERTIARY TREATMENT PHASE 2 IMPROVEMENTS. 
         

WHEREAS, it is recommended that the City of Coeur d'Alene enter into an Agreement for 
Professional Services with HDR Engineering, Inc. for Tertiary Treatment Phase 2 Improvements, 
pursuant to terms and conditions set forth in said agreement, a copy of which is attached hereto as 
Exhibit "1" and by reference made a part hereof; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is deemed to be in the best interests of the City of Coeur d'Alene and the 
citizens thereof to enter into  such agreement; NOW, THEREFORE, 
  

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Coeur d'Alene that the City 
enter into an Agreement for Professional Services, in substantially the form attached hereto as 
Exhibit "1" and incorporated herein by reference with the provision that the Mayor, City 
Administrator, and City Attorney are hereby authorized to modify said agreement to the extent the 
substantive provisions of the agreement remain intact. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Mayor and City Clerk be and they are hereby 
authorized to execute such agreement on  behalf of the City. 
 

DATED this 15th day of September, 2015.   
 
 
 
 
                                   _____________________________ 
                                   Steve Widmyer, Mayor   
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Renata McLeod, City Clerk 
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     Motion by _______________, Seconded by _______________, to adopt the foregoing 
resolution.   
 
ROLL CALL:  

 COUNCIL MEMBER GOOKIN Voted _____ 

 COUNCIL MEMBER MCEVERS Voted _____ 

 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER Voted _____ 

 COUNCIL MEMBER EDINGER Voted _____ 

 COUNCIL MEMBER EVANS Voted _____ 

 COUNCIL MEMBER ADAMS Voted _____ 

 
_________________________ was absent.  Motion ____________. 
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AGREEMENT 

FOR 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
 

between 
 

CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE 
 

and 
 

HDR ENGINEERING, INC. 

for 

TERTIARY TREATMENT PHASE 2 IMPROVEMENTS 
 

 THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into this 15th day of September, 2015, between the 
City of Coeur d'Alene, Kootenai County, Idaho, a municipal corporation organized and existing 
under the laws of the state of Idaho, hereinafter referred to as the “City,” and HDR Engineering, 
Inc., a Nebraska corporation, with its place of business at 412 E. Parkcenter Blvd., Suite 100, Boise, 
Idaho 83706, hereinafter referred to as the “Consultant.” 

 
W I T N E S S E T H: 

 
WHEREAS, the City faces changing effluent discharge conditions in the Spokane River 

as a result of water quality studies conducted by the Washington State Department of Ecology 
and  renewal  of  the  City’s  effluent  discharge  permit  by  Region  10  of  the  Environmental 
Protection Agency; 

 
WHEREAS, the City has undertaken an analysis of the implications of these regulatory 

actions in preparation of a “Wastewater Facility Plan Amendment”; 
 

WHEREAS, the Phase 5 improvements will complete plant expansion to 6 mgd average 
daily capacity while addressing low effluent phosphorus concentrations; 

 
WHEREAS, the City has completed the design, construction and start-up of the Phase 

5C.1 Initial TMF/Nitrification improvements; 
 

WHEREAS, the City desires to design and construct an additional 4 mgd daily average 
capacity of low phosphorus improvements (Tertiary Treatment Phase 2 Improvements) required 
by their current permit; 
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WHEREAS, the City, a public agency or political subdivision of the state, has previously 
competitively selected and awarded a professional services contract for an associated or phased 
project to Consultant, and the public agency or political subdivision may, at its discretion, 
negotiate an extended or new professional services contract with that person or firm, per Section 
67-2320 of the Idaho Code; 

 
WHEREAS, Consultant is available and is willing to provide personnel and services to 

accomplish the work according to the City’s schedule. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, the City and the Consultant agree as follows: 

Section 1. Definitions. In this agreement: 

A.       The term "City" means the City of Coeur d'Alene, 710 Mullan Avenue, Coeur 
d'Alene, Idaho  83814. 

 
B.        The term "Consultant" means HDR Engineering, Inc., 412 E. Parkcenter Blvd, 

Boise, Idaho 83706. 
 

C.        The  term  "Mayor"  means  the  mayor  of  the  City  of  Coeur  d'Alene  or  his 
authorized representative. 

 
D.        The term "Cost Plus Fixed Fee" shall mean compensation based on Direct Labor 

times Overhead Multiplier plus reimbursable expenses plus payment of a fixed amount agreed 
upon in advance, subject to modifications and amendments, for Consultant's services. 

 
E.        The term "Reimbursable Expenses" shall mean the actual direct expenses incurred 

specifically for the Project, other than the Consultant's cost of labor, administrative overhead, 
and fixed fee, that are identified in Exhibit "B" and are included in the total estimated cost for the 
scope of work. Reimbursable Expenses will include a 0% markup over Consultant's cost.  Such 
expenses include the cost of transportation and subsistence incidental thereto, toll telephone 
calls, express mail, facsimiles, reproductions, copies, and operating time for computers and 
highly specialized equipment. Reimbursable expenses shall also include subconsultant costs 
which will be allowed a 5% markup over Consultant’s cost. The maximum estimated 
Reimbursable Expenses are listed under the columns "Direct Costs" and "Subconsultant" in 
Table 2 of Exhibit "B."  The total estimated expenses shall not be exceeded without prior written 
approval of the City.  The Consultant shall advise the City when 75% of the listed expenses are 
exceeded. 

 
Section 2. Employment  of  Consultant. The  City  hereby  agrees  to  engage  the 

Consultant and the Consultant hereby agrees to perform the services hereinafter set forth. 
 

Section 3.       Scope of Services.  The Consultant shall perform the services described in 
Exhibit "A," entitled Scope of Services, subject to and consistent with the terms of Exhibit "A," 
attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. 
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Section 4. Personnel. 
 

A.          The  Consultant  represents  that  it  has  or  will  secure  at  its  own  expense  all 
personnel required to perform its services under this agreement.  Such personnel shall not be 
employees of or have any contractual relationship with the City. 

 
B.        All of the services required hereunder will be performed by the Consultant or 

under his direct supervision, and all personnel engaged in the work shall be fully qualified and 
shall be authorized under state and local law to perform such services. 

 
C.       The Consultant agrees to maintain Workmen's Compensation coverage on all 

employees, including employees of subcontractors, during the term of this agreement as required 
by Idaho Code Section 72-101 through 72-806.  Should the Consultant fail to maintain such 
insurance during the entire term hereof, the Consultant shall indemnify the City against any loss 
resulting to the City from such failure, either by way of compensation or additional premium 
liability.  The Consultant shall furnish to the City, prior to commencement of the work, such 
evidence as the City may require guaranteeing contributions which will come due under the 
Employment Security Law including, at the option of the City, a surety bond in an amount 
sufficient to make such payments. 

 
Section 5.       Time of Performance.   The services of the Consultant shall commence 

upon written "Notice To Proceed" following execution of this agreement and shall proceed in 
accordance with the project schedule as shown in Exhibit "A." 

 
Section 6. Compensation. 

 
A.        For Engineering Services as described in Exhibit "A," payment shall be on the 

basis of Cost Plus Fixed Fee.  The Fixed Fee shall be as provided in Exhibit "B."  Labor Costs 
shall be an amount equal to the Direct Labor Cost times a factor of 2.75. Labor rates may be 
subject to change on an annual basis escalated to an amount equal to the annual rate of inflation 
only if the Scope of the Work listed in Exhibit “A” is accomplished within the budget and fee 
established in Exhibit “B.” Reimbursable Expenses incurred in connection with such services 
shall be in addition to the foregoing compensation. 

 
B.        Total compensation for all services and expenses for the term of this Agreement 

shall not exceed the amount provided in Exhibit "B" without amendment of this Agreement.  The 
amount of compensation shall be subject to renegotiation only if the scope of the services are 
significantly expanded or modified beyond the tasks identified herein. 

 
C.        Consultant is not obligated to continue performance hereunder or otherwise to 

incur costs in excess of the total estimated fee cited above as Consultant's compensation for all or 
part of the Project, unless and until the City has notified Consultant in writing that such total 
estimated fee has been increased and specifying the estimated fee then allocated for the Services 
to be covered by the Consultant's Compensation. 
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D.       Except as otherwise provided in this agreement, the City shall not provide any 
additional compensation, payment, use of facilities, service or other thing of value to the 
Consultant in connection with performance of agreement duties. 

 
Section 7.       Method and Time of Payment.     Consultant invoices will be submitted 

once every month and will be based upon services completed at the time of the billing. Invoices 
shall reflect the total work performed during the invoice period and shall show the costs incurred 
as well as a percentage of the total fixed fee.  The invoicing of the fixed fee shall correspond to 
the Consultant's estimate of the work completed.   The Consultant shall maintain records 
documenting all labor and material charges for this project.  The Consultant will notify the City 
when 75% of the total cost is attained and will determine how the remainder of the work will be 
completed for the remaining cost authorization.  Documentation of major expenditures shall be 
submitted with the monthly invoices.  Payment will be made on the 4th Tuesday of the month for 
invoices that are received and reviewed as being acceptable by the second Tuesday of that 
month. 

 
Section 8.       Termination  of  Agreement  for  Cause.    If,  through  any  cause  within 

Consultant’s reasonable control, the Consultant shall fail to fulfill in a timely and proper manner 
his obligations under this agreement, or if the Consultant shall violate any of the covenants, 
agreements, or stipulations of this agreement, the City shall thereupon have the right to terminate 
this agreement by giving written notice to the Consultant of such termination and specifying the 
effective date thereof, at least five (5) days before the effective date of such termination.  In that 
event, all finished or unfinished documents, data, studies, surveys, and reports or other material 
prepared by the Consultant under this agreement shall at the option of the City become its 
property, and the Consultant shall be entitled to receive just and equitable compensation for any 
satisfactory work completed on such documents and materials.  Equitable compensation shall not 
exceed the amount reasonably billed for work actually done and expenses reasonably incurred. 

 
Section 9.        Termination for Convenience of City.  The City may terminate this 

agreement  at  any  time  by  giving  ten  (10)  days  written  notice  to  the  Consultant  of  such 
termination and specifying the effective date of such termination.  In that event, all finished or 
unfinished documents, data, studies, surveys, and reports or other material prepared by the 
Consultant under this agreement shall at the option of the City become its property, and the 
Consultant shall be entitled to receive just and equitable compensation for any satisfactory work 
completed on such documents and materials.  Equitable compensation shall not exceed the 
amount reasonably billed for work actually done and expenses reasonably incurred. 

 
Section 10.      Modifications.  The City may, from time to time, require modifications in 

the  general  scope  of  initial  basic  services  of  the  Consultant  to  be  performed  under  this 
agreement.  The type and extent of such services cannot be determined at this time; however, the 
Consultant agrees to do such work as ordered in writing by the City, and the City agrees to 
compensate the Consultant for such work accomplished by written amendment to this agreement. 

 
Section 11. Equal Employment Opportunity. 

 

A.      The Consultant will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for 
employment because of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.  The Consultant shall take 
affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed and that employees are treated during 
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employment without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.  Such actions 
shall  include,  but  not  be  limited  to  the  following:  employment,  upgrading,  demotions,  or 
transfers; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoffs or terminations; rates of pay or other 
forms of compensation; selection for training, including apprenticeship; and participation in 
recreational and educational activities.  The Consultant agrees to post in conspicuous places 
available for employees and applicants for employment, notices to be provided setting forth the 
provisions of this nondiscrimination clause.   The Consultant will, in all solicitations or 
advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the Consultant, state that all qualified 
applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, 
or national origin.  The Consultant will cause the foregoing provisions to be inserted in all 
subcontracts for any work covered by this agreement so that such provisions will be binding 
upon each subconsultant, provided that the foregoing provisions shall not apply to contracts or 
subcontracts for standard commercial supplies or raw materials. 

 
B.        The Consultant shall keep such records and submit such reports concerning the 

racial and ethnic origin of applicants for employment and employees as the City may require. 
 

C.        The Consultant will make efforts to award subconsultant agreements to Minority 
and Women-owned business (MBE/WBE).   Consultant will document efforts to negotiate 
contracts with MBE/WBE firms. 

 
Section 12.    Interest of Members of City and Others.  No officer, member, or employee 

of the City and no member of its governing body, and no other public official of the governing 
body shall participate in any decision relating to this agreement which affects his personal 
interest or the interest of any corporation, partnership, or association in which he is, directly or 
indirectly,  interested  or  has  any  personal  or  pecuniary  interest,  direct  or  indirect,  in  this 
agreement or the proceeds thereof. 

 

Section 13. Assignability. 
 

A.        The  Consultant  shall  not  assign  any  interest  in  this  agreement  and  shall  not 
transfer any interest in the same (whether by assignment or novation) without the prior written 
consent of the City thereto.  Provided, however, that claims for money due or to become due to 
the Consultant from the City under this agreement may be assigned to a bank, trust company, or 
other financial institution without such approval.  Notice of any such assignment or transfer shall 
be furnished promptly to the City. 

 
B.        The Consultant shall not delegate duties or otherwise subcontract work or services 

under this agreement without the prior written approval by the City. 
 

Section 14.     Interest of Consultant.  The Consultant covenants that he presently has no 
interest and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which would conflict in any manner 
or degree with the performance of services required to be performed under this agreement.  The 
Consultant further covenants that in the performance of this agreement, no person having any 
such interest shall be employed. 

 
Section 15.     Findings Confidential.  Any reports, information, data, etc., given to or 

prepared or assembled by the Consultant under this agreement which the City requests to be kept 
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confidential shall not be made available to any individual or organization by the Consultant 
without the prior written approval of the City. 

 
Section 16. Publication, Reproduction and Use of Materials.  No material produced, in 

whole or in part, under this agreement shall be subject to copyright in the United States or in any 
other country.  The City shall have unrestricted authority to publish, disclose, distribute and 
otherwise use, in whole or in part, any reports, data, electronic files, or other materials prepared 
under this agreement.  Consultant shall provide copies of such work products to the City upon 
request. 

 
City may make and retain copies of Documents for information and reference in connection with 
use on the Project by the City.  Such Documents are not intended or represented to be suitable for 
reuse by City or others on extensions of the Project or on any other project.  Any such reuse or 
modification without written verification or adaptation by the Consultant, as appropriate for the 
specific purpose intended, will be at the City’s sole risk and without liability or legal exposure to 
the Consultant and Consultant’s subconsultants.   

 
Section 17.     Audits and Inspection.  Consultant shall provide access for the City and any 

duly authorized representatives to any books, documents, papers, and records of the Consultant that 
are directly pertinent to this specific agreement for the purpose of making audit, examination, 
excerpts, and transcriptions.   Consultant shall retain all records pertinent to the project for three 
years after final payment and all other pending matters are closed. 

 

Section 18.   Jurisdiction; Choice of Law.  Any civil action arising from this agreement 
shall be brought in the District Court for the First Judicial District of the State of Idaho at Coeur 
d'Alene, Kootenai County, Idaho.  The law of the state of Idaho shall govern the rights and 
obligations of the parties. 

 
Section 19.   Non-Waiver.  The failure of the City at any time to enforce a provision of 

this agreement shall in no way constitute a waiver of the provisions, nor in any way affect the 
validity of this agreement or any part thereof, or the right of the City thereafter to enforce each 
and every protection hereof. 

 
Section 20.     Permits, Laws and Taxes.  The Consultant shall acquire and maintain in 

good standing all permits, licenses and other documents necessary to its performance under this 
agreement.  All actions taken by the Consultant under this agreement shall comply with all 
applicable statutes, ordinances, rules, and regulations.   The Consultant shall pay all taxes 
pertaining to its performance under this agreement. 

 
Section 21.  Relationship of the Parties.  The Consultant shall perform its obligations 

hereunder as an independent contractor of the City.  The City may administer this agreement and 
monitor the Consultant's compliance with this agreement but shall not supervise or otherwise 
direct the Consultant except to provide recommendations and to provide approvals pursuant to 
this agreement. 
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Section 22.     Integration.   This instrument and all appendices and amendments hereto 
embody the entire agreement of the parties.   There are no promises, terms, conditions, or 
obligations other than those contained herein; and this agreement shall supersede all previous 
communications, representations or agreements, either oral or written, between the parties. 

 
Section 23. City Held Harmless. 

 
A.        The Consultant shall save, hold harmless, indemnify, and defend the City, its 

officers, agents and employees from and against any and all damages or liability arising out of 
the Consultant's wrongful acts or negligence, including costs and expenses, for or on account of 
any and all legal actions or claims of any character resulting from injuries or damages sustained 
by any person or persons or property arising from Consultant's performance of this agreement 
and not arising from Consultant’s professional services.  To this end, Consultant shall maintain 
general liability insurance in at least the amounts set forth in Section 25A. 

 
B.        The Consultant shall save, hold harmless, indemnify, and defend the City, its 

officers, agents, and employees from and against any and all damages or liability arising out of 
the Consultant's negligent acts, errors, or omissions, including costs and expenses for or on 
account of any and all legal actions or claims of any character resulting from injuries or damages 
sustained by persons or property to the extent arising from Consultant's negligent performance of 
this agreement, including but not limited to Consultant’s professional services. To this end, 
Consultant shall maintain Errors and Omissions insurance in at least the amounts set forth in 
Section 25B. 

 
Section 24. Notification.   Any notice under this agreement may be served upon the 

Consultant or the City by mail at the address provided in Section 1 hereof. 
 

Section 25. Special Conditions.  Standard of Performance and Insurance. 
 

A.        Consultant shall maintain general liability insurance naming the City, its entities, 
and its representatives as additional insureds in the amount of at least $500,000.00 for property 
damage or personal injury, death or loss as a result of any one occurrence or accident regardless 
of the number of persons injured or the number of claimants, it being the intention that the 
minimum limits shall be those provided for under Chapter 9, Title 6, Section 24 of the Idaho 
Code. 

 
B. In performance of professional services, the Consultant will use that degree 

of care and skill ordinarily exercised under similar circumstances by members of the Consultant's 
profession.  Should the Consultant or any of the Consultants’ employees be found to have been 
negligent in the performance of professional services from which the City sustains damage, the 
Consultant has obtained Errors and Omission Insurance in at least the amount of two million 
dollars ($2,000,000.00).  The Consultant shall maintain, and furnish proof thereof, coverage for a 
period of two years following the completion of the project. 

 
C. The Consultant shall obtain and maintain auto liability insurance in the amount of 

$1,500,000.00 for the duration of the project. 
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D.       Prior to work under this agreement, the Consultant shall furnish to the City 
certificates of the insurance coverages required herein, which certificates must be approved by 
the City Attorney.  Certificates shall provide cancellation notice information that assures at least 
thirty (30) days written notice to the City prior to cancellation of the policy for any reason. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this agreement executed the day and year first written above. 

 
 
 
CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE                                    HDR ENGINEERING, INC. 

 
 
 
 
Steve Widmyer, Mayor Kate Eldridge, Vice President 

 
 
 
ATTEST: ATTEST: 

 
 
 
 
Renata McLeod, City Clerk Zelma Miller, Department Accountant 
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STATE OF IDAHO   ) 
) ss. 

County of Kootenai ) 

 On this 15th day of September, 2015, before me, a Notary Public, personally appeared 
Steve  Widmyer  and  Renata  McLeod,  known  to  me  to  be  the  Mayor  and  City  Clerk, 
respectively, of the City of Coeur d'Alene that executed the foregoing instrument and 
acknowledged to me that said City of Coeur d'Alene executed the same. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my Notarial Seal the 
day and year in this certificate first above written. 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Notary Public for Idaho 
Residing at    
My Commission expires:    

 

 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF                          ) 

) ss. 
County of   ) 

 
On this day of September, 2015, before me, a Notary Public, personally appeared Kate 

Eldridge, known to me to be the Vice President, of HDR Engineering, Inc., and the person who 
executed the foregoing instrument on behalf of said corporation, and acknowledged to me that 
such corporation executed the same. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my Notarial Seal the day 

and year in this certificate first above written. 
 
 
 
 
 

Notary Public for    
Residing at      
My Commission Expires:    
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EXHIBIT A 
TERTIARY TREATMENT PHASE 2 IMPROVEMENTS 

SCOPE OF SERVICES AND SCHEDULE 

Introduction 
The City of Coeur d’Alene Wastewater Department received their final National Pollution 
Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit in late 2014. The effective date of the permit 
was November 30, 2014. The effluent limits for carbonaceous biological oxygen demand 
(CBOD), total phosphorus, and ammonia  are all more stringent than in the city’s previous 
permit. The city received a ten year compliance schedule to comply with these new effluent 
limits as compared to the standard five year compliance schedule. This ten year schedule 
includes yearly milestone requirements for compliance as shown in the following table. Scope 
tasks and activities are noted where applicable to this Tertiary Treatment Phase 2 
Improvements (formerly Phase 5C.2 Improvements) project. 

Permit 
Article 

Effective 
Date Permittee Requirements Scope 

Task/Activity 

I.D.1 11/30/15 Provide a preliminary engineering report to EPA and 
IDEQ outlining estimated costs and schedules for 
completing capacity expansion and implementation 
of technologies to achieve final effluent limitations. 

This schedule must include a timeline for pilot testing 
and results of any testing conducted to date. 

Sub-task 303 -
Preliminary 
Engineering and 
Design Report 

I.D.6 11/30/16 Submit to EPA and IDEQ progress reports which 
outline the progress made toward achieving 
compliance with the total phosphorus and total 
ammonia as N effluent limitations. 

Activity 201.2 - 
Permit Progress 
Report 

I.D.2. 11/30/17 Provide written notice to EPA and IDEQ that pilot 
testing of the technology that will be employed to 
achieve the final limits has been completed and 
submit a summary report of results and plan for 
implementation.  

If pilot testing is determined to be unnecessary by 
the permittee, the summary report shall include the 
reasons for this decision. 

Activity 201.1 - 
Pilot Testing 
Summary Report 

I.D.6. 11/30/18 Submit to EPA and IDEQ progress reports, which 
outline the progress made toward achieving 

Future 
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Permit 
Article 

Effective 
Date Permittee Requirements Scope 

Task/Activity 

compliance with the total phosphorus and total 
ammonia as N effluent limitations. 

I.D.3. 11/30/19 Provide EPA and IDEQ with written notice that 
design has been completed and bids have been 
awarded to begin construction to achieve final 
effluent limitations 

City Activity 

I.D.6. 11/30/20 Submit to EPA and IDEQ progress reports which 
outline the progress made toward achieving 
compliance with the total phosphorus and total 
ammonia as N effluent limitations 

Future 

I.D.6. 11/30/21 Submit to EPA and IDEQ progress reports which 
outline the progress made toward achieving 
compliance with the total phosphorus and total 
ammonia as N effluent limitations 

Future 

I.D.4. 11/30/22 Provide EPA and IDEQ with written notice that 
construction has been completed on the facilities to 
achieve final effluent limitations 

Future 

I.D.6. 11/30/23 Submit to EPA and IDEQ progress reports which 
outline the progress made toward achieving 
compliance with the total phosphorus and total 
ammonia as N effluent limitations 

Future 

I.D.5. 11/30/24 Provide EPA and IDEQ with a written report 
providing details of a completed start-up and 
optimization phase of the new treatment system and 
must achieve compliance with the final effluent 
limitations of Part I.B. 

Future 

 

This scope of services provides for design of additional treatment facilities to comply with the 
more stringent effluent limits. The new and modified treatment facilities identified for this Tertiary 
Treatment Phase 2 Improvements project include: 

 New Primary Influent Distribution Structure. 
 New Primary Clarifier No. 3 with odor control cover. 
 New Primary Effluent Distribution Structure. 
 New Secondary Control Building No. 2. 
 New Secondary Clarifier No. 3. 
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 New Tank Drain and Scum Pumping Station to serve the secondary clarifiers. 
 Modified Chemical Systems Center for additional alum and caustic storage. 
 Modified Secondary Effluent Pumping Station for increased pumping capacity 
 Modified Tertiary Membrane Filtration Facility for 5 mgd average capacity. 
 New Odor Control Facilities for new and future primary clarification facilities. 

Professional Consulting Services for the design of the Tertiary Treatment Phase 2 
Improvements project are described in this exhibit. Tasks included in this scope of service 
include the following: 

Task 100 - Project Administration and Management 
 Project Administration Sub-task 101 -
 Project Management Sub-task 102 -
 Quality Assurance Sub-task 103 -
 Project Close-Out Sub-task 104 -

Task 200 - NPDES Permit Support 
 Permit Compliance Assistance Sub-task 201 -

Task 300 - Preliminary Engineering 
 Site Investigation Sub-task 301 -
 Specialty Testing Sub-task 302 -
 Preliminary Engineering and Design Report Sub-task 303 -

Task 400 - Equipment Procurement 
 Sole Source Expenditure Justifications Sub-task 401 -
 Membrane Filtration System Procurement Sub-task 402 -

Task 500 - Detailed Design 
 Project Manual Sub-task 501 -
 Opinion of Probable Construction Cost Sub-task 502 -
 Construction Schedule Sub-task 503 -

Task 600 - Bid Period Services 
 General Contractor Pre-Qualification Assistance Sub-task 601 -
 Informational Workshop Sub-task 602 -
 Bid Assistance Sub-task 603 -

Each of these tasks is described in more detail below. 
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Scope of Services 

Task 100 - Project Administration and Management 

 Project Administration Sub-task 101 -

Objective 
Administer the project to a level of service and responsiveness consistent with the project 
schedule and budget.  

Approach 
This sub-task includes services related to the administration of Consultant’s activities. Specific 
activities conducted by Consultant will include the following: 

ACTIVITY 101.1 PROJECT INITIATION WORKSHOP 
 Conduct a workshop with City and Consultant to discuss scope, project schedule, 

deliverables, initial data requests, topographic site survey limits, and potholing needs. 

o Workshop will occur at the beginning of the preliminary engineering workshop 
(Activity 303.1 - Preliminary Engineering Kick-Off Workshop). 

 Prepare agenda and distribute to anticipated attendees one (1) week prior to 
workshop. 

 Prepare and distribute notes to attendees within three (3) days after workshop. 

 Update project decision log to include items addressed in the workshop. 

ACTIVITY 101.2 PROJECT COORDINATION CONFERENCE CALLS 
 Conduct up to twenty-five (25) project conference calls, one every other week, with 

City staff and Consultant’s project manager and up to two (2) members of the project 
team, as appropriate, to discuss project schedule and budget, work elements 
accomplished, upcoming work items, data requests, and scope issues. 

 Prepare agendas and distribute to anticipated attendees at least one (1) day prior to 
conference calls. 

 Prepare and distribute notes to attendees within three (3) days after conference calls.   

 Update project decision log to include items addressed during these conference calls. 

ACTIVITY 101.3 PROJECT COORDINATION MEETINGS 
 Conduct up to four (4) project coordination meetings, one per yearly quarter, with City 

and Consultant’s principal-in-charge and project manager. 

 Prepare agendas and distribute to anticipated attendees at least one (1) week prior to 
project coordination meetings. 
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 Prepare and distribute notes to attendees within three (3) days after project 
coordination meetings. 

 Update project decision log to include items addressed during these meetings. 

ACTIVITY 101.4 DECISION LOG 
 Maintain a decision log to record project decisions and key actions to be addressed by 

City and Consultant. 

 Include decisions made during the kick-off meeting, project coordination conference 
calls, and project coordination meetings.  

 Document information including date, issue or concern, assumptions and constraints, 
decision or directive, parties involved, and plant process area impacted.  

 Distribute decision log to City staff and Consultant’s design team following new 
additions.   

ACTIVITY 101.5 PROGRESS REPORTS AND INVOICES 
 Prepare up to twelve (12) monthly project status reports that compare work 

accomplished with scheduled activities, provide support documentation for the 
invoices, compare expenditures with task budgets, and describe changes to the scope 
that have occurred.   

 Submit progress reports combined with invoices for the duration of the project. 

Assumptions 
The budget is based upon the following assumptions: 

 Project duration will be up to twelve (12) months as detailed in the schedule. 

 City will participate in meetings and conference calls. 

 Project initiation workshop will last up to two (2) hours and will occur on the same day 
as the preliminary engineering kick-off workshop. Travel is not included for this project 
initiation workshop as it is included in Activity 303.1 - Preliminary Engineering Kick-Off 
Workshop. 

 Project coordination meetings will occur in City’s administration building conference 
room and will last up to four (4) hours each. 

 Hard copies of agendas for up to four (4) City staff plus Consultant staff will be 
furnished by Consultant for project initiation workshop and project coordination 
meetings. 

 Project coordination conference calls will last up to one (1) hour each. 

 City will review and approve modifications to approach, schedule, and deliverables 
resulting from discussions during project coordination conference calls meetings. 

 City will review progress reports and approve invoices. 
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 Invoice and progress report format will follow Consultant standard format. 

 Labor costs and expenses for this contract will be tracked at the task level. 

 Budget may be transferred between tasks and from sub-consultant to Consultant 
without an amendment to the Agreement, unless such transfers also require a change 
in total fee. 

 Consultant may adjust labor rates to actual salary and wage increases for individuals 
throughout the duration of this project. 

 Direct expenses for travel, subsistence, printing, photocopying, technology, and 
telephone conferences will be billed to City. 

Deliverables 
Deliverable work products consist of the following: 

 Meeting agendas transmitted to City via e-mail in .pdf format prior to project initiation 
workshop, project coordination conference calls, and project coordination meetings. 

 Meeting agendas delivered to City in hard copy form at project initiation workshop and 
project coordination meetings. 

 Meeting notes and updated decision log transmitted to City via e-mail in .pdf format 
following project initiation workshop, project coordination conference calls, and project 
coordination meetings. 

 Monthly progress reports and invoices transmitted to City via e-mail in .pdf format. 

 Project Management Sub-task 102 -

Objective 
Manage and coordinate project technical resources to a level of service and responsiveness 
consistent with the project schedule and budget established in this scope of services.   

Approach 
This sub-task includes services related to the management and coordination of Consultant 
activities. Specific activities conducted by Consultant will include the following: 

ACTIVITY 102.1 PROJECT INITIATION 
 Furnish City with copies of insurance certificates. 

 Prepare a detailed Work Breakdown Structure (WBS) list of all activities as well as a 
dictionary of the WBS Items.   

 Prepare a detailed project schedule following the WBS. 

 Establish project in Consultant's accounting system. 
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ACTIVITY 102.2 PROJECT MANAGEMENT PLAN 
 Prepare a Project Management Plan (PMP) which clearly communicates project 

objectives, scopes, budgets, schedule, communications protocols, constraints, 
applicable regulations, health and safety requirements for field work, and guidelines to 
project team members.  

 As part of the PMP, develop a Quality Management Plan (QMP) that defines the 
QA/QC process for this project and identifies the key reviewers. See Activity 103.1 - 
Quality Management Plan for this effort. 

 As part of the PMP, develop a building information modeling (BIM) execution plan for 
use by Consultant’s staff during the design process.  

 As part of the PMP, develop a health and safety plan for use by Consultant’s staff 
during field work. 

 Submit the PMP to City for their information, if requested. 

 Update PMP periodically throughout duration of project when significant events impact 
the scope and/or schedule of the project, and distribute the updated PMP to team 
members. 

ACTIVITY 102.3 SUB-CONSULTANT AGREEMENTS 
 Prepare sub-consultant agreement with Welch-Comer for surveying services 

associated with this project.  

o Activity 301.1 - Topographical Survey defines their work activities. 

o A budget of $20,500.00 has been included for Welch-Comer and is estimated 
based on sub-consultant's experience with these activities, current knowledge of 
existing survey information, and anticipated limits of topographical survey. 

 Prepare sub-consultant agreement with Strata for geotechnical services associated 
with this project.  

o The following list activities define their major work effort: 

 Activity 303.4 - Geotechnical Recommendations 

 Activity 501.3 - Civil Specifications and Drawings 

o A budget of $4,000.00 has been included for Strata and is estimated based on 
sub-consultant's experience with these activities, current knowledge of existing 
geotechnical investigation information, and anticipated project elements. 

 Prepare a sub-consultant agreement with Trindera Engineering for electrical, 
instrumentation, and controls design services associated with this project.  

o The following list activities define their major work effort. 

 Activity 303.10 - Preliminary Electrical Design 

 Activity 303.11  - Preliminary Instrumentation and Control Design 
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 Activity 402.1 - Procurement Project Manual 

 Activity 402.3 - Procurement Submittals 

 Activity 501.8 - Electrical Specifications and Drawings 

 Activity 501.9 - Instrumentation and Control Specifications and Drawings 

o A budget of $273,300.00 has been included for Trindera Engineering and is 
estimated based on sub-consultant's experience with these activities, current 
knowledge of existing electrical and control information, and anticipated project 
elements. 

 Prepare sub-consultant agreement with Satterlund Testing and Inspection (STI) for 
coating design services associated with this project.  

o Activity 501.5 - Architectural Specifications and Drawings defines their work 
activities. 

o A budget of $5,000.00 has been included for STI and is estimated based on 
anticipated project elements. 

ACTIVITY 102.4 DOCUMENT MANAGEMENT SYSTEM 
 Establish and maintain an electronic document management system (DMS) for storing 

and archiving electronic files associated with this project.  

ACTIVITY 102.5 MONITOR PROJECT PROGRESS 
 Monitor project progress using earned value management by evaluating on a monthly 

basis the work completed, work remaining, schedule, budget expended, estimated 
cost of remaining work, and estimated cost at completion. 

 Update Consultant’s WorkPlan tool on a monthly basis to estimate cost of remaining 
work. 

 Inform City in Consultant’s monthly progress report (Activity 101.5 - Progress Reports 
and Invoices) of any budget or schedule related issues. 

ACTIVITY 102.6 MANAGE PROJECT TEAM 
 Communicate scope, schedule, and budget status with the project team and review 

technical content of work products.   

Assumptions 
 This task is for the administration and management of Consultant’s contract.  

 Sub-consultants’ scopes of work shall include quality assurance and quality control 
activities related to their deliverables.   

 When field work is being performed by sub-consultants, the sub-consultant shall 
provide a project-specific health and safety plan for the work for which it is responsible. 

 Bentley ProjectWise will be used for the DMS. 
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 Files maintained in the DMS will include as a minimum: contractual documents, sub-
consultant agreements, decision log, project coordination meeting agendas and notes, 
project coordination conference call agendas and notes, general correspondence, 
reference data, operational performance data in Consultant’s Data Viewer, design 
calculations, technical specifications, and computer aided drafting and building 
information modeling (CAD/BIM) files. 

 A hard copy of project documentation will not be maintained in addition to the DMS.  

Deliverables 
 Project Management Plan transmitted to City via e-mail in .pdf format, if requested. 

 Filing system index for DMS transmitted to City via e-mail in .pdf format, if requested. 

 Quality Assurance  Sub-task 103 -

Objective 
Consistently provide professional services that satisfy statutory and regulatory requirements and 
that meet or exceed the expectations of our clients.  

Approach 
This sub-task includes services related to adherence to Consultant’s Quality Policy as defined in 
Consultant’s Quality Management System (QMS) Manual. Specific activities conducted by 
Consultant will include the following: 

ACTIVITY 103.1 QUALITY MANAGEMENT PLAN 
 Develop a Quality Management Plan (QMP) prior to commencing work.  

o The QMP will define the specific quality practices, resources, and sequence of 
activities that will be used to fulfill the requirements for quality relevant to this 
project.  

 Quality assurance (QA) components will define the systematic activities 
that will be completed to provide adequate confidence that deliverables 
will satisfactorily fulfill quality requirements. These QA components are 
described within this Sub-task 103 - Quality Assurance. 

 Quality control (QC) components will define the techniques and activities 
that will be used to verify an established level of quality has been 
achieved. The QC components are described for each major deliverable 
throughout this scope of services.  

o Incorporate QMP in to PMP (Activity 102.2 - Project Management Plan). 

 Sub-consultants shall provide a sub-consultant QMP or equivalent document that 
identifies the specific quality practices relative to the deliverables provided by sub-
consultant.  
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o Consultant’s Project Manager shall review and approve sub-consultant’s QMP 
prior to substantial expenditure of sub-consultant resources. 

ACTIVITY 103.2 PROJECT APPROACH AND RESOURCE REVIEW 
 Conduct a project approach and resource review (PARR) with Consultant’s project 

manager, four (4) design team members, and up to four (4) senior design technical 
experts to assess the project’s solution approach and resource allocations to align the 
delivery to meet client expectations. 

ACTIVITY 103.3 PROJECT MANAGEMENT REVIEW MEETINGS 
 Conduct up to four (4) project management review meetings, one per yearly quarter, 

with Consultant’s local operations manager, business group manager, project 
manager, project controller and up to two (2) project team members. The purpose of 
these meetings will be to discuss project status and identify areas where actions may 
be required to improve project performance. 

 Report any pertinent issues to City Project Manager. 

Assumptions 
The budget is based upon the following assumptions: 

 PARR will occur in Consultant’s Coeur d’Alene, Idaho office, will last up to eight (8) 
hours, and will incorporate a site visit to the Coeur d’Alene Wastewater Treatment 
Plant.   

 Project review meetings will occur in Consultant’s Boise, Idaho office and will last up to 
one (1) hour each. 

Deliverables 
Deliverable work products consist of the following: 

 PARR form transmitted to City via e-mail in .pdf format, if requested. 

 Project Close-Out Sub-task 104 -

Objective 
Timely and organized close-out of project contractual and business activities. 

Approach 
This sub-task includes services related to closure of financial transactions and verification of 
final project records retention. Specific activities conducted by Consultant will include the 
following: 

ACTIVITY 104.1 SUB-CONSULTANT CLOSE-OUT 
 Verify that the terms and conditions of sub-consultant agreements (Activity 102.3 - 

Sub-consultant Agreements) and all related service and deliverable obligations have 
been completed.  
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 Verify receipt of completion notice from sub-consultants is included with their final 
invoice and status reports. 

ACTIVITY 104.2 DOCUMENTATION CLOSE-OUT 
 Consolidate working files into final records folders. 

 Destroy duplicate, draft, and obsolete documents. 

 Verify record documents are included in final records folders. 

ACTIVITY 104.3 CONTRACT CLOSE-OUT 
 Verify and document that the contract terms and conditions have been met and all 

service and deliverable obligations completed.  

 Issue a contract completion notice to City. 

Assumptions 
The budget is based upon the following assumptions: 

  Contract completion notice will be included with final progress report and invoice. 

Deliverables 
Deliverable work products consist of the following: 

  Contract completion notice transmitted to City via e-mail in .pdf format. 

Task 200 - NPDES Permit Support 

 Permit Compliance Assistance Sub-task 201 -

Objective 
 Assist in preparation of analyses and reports required by City’s NPDES permit. 

Approach 
This sub-task includes services related to analysis of data and preparation of the reports. 
Specific activities conducted by Consultant will include the following: 

ACTIVITY 201.1 PILOT TESTING SUMMARY REPORT 
 Update Consultant's Data Viewer (prepared in Activity 302.1 - Data Review) with 

additional data following completion of pilot testing.  
 Prepare draft Pilot Summary Report capturing the requirements identified in Article I.D.2. 

of City’s NPDES permit.  
 Perform a quality control review of draft Pilot Summary Report to verify that the 

deliverable and supporting documentation are complete, understandable, conform to 
applicable and reasonable standards relative to their intended purpose, and meet City 
and Consultant requirements. 
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 Submit draft Pilot Summary Report to City for review and comment. 
 Conduct a conference call with City and Consultant’s principal-in-charge, project 

manager, and up to three (3) team members to discuss City comments. 
 Prepare final Pilot Summary Report and transmit to City for submittal to EPA and IDEQ 

along with written notice that pilot testing has been completed.    

ACTIVITY 201.2 PERMIT PROGRESS REPORT  
 Update Consultant's Data Viewer (prepared in Activity 201.1 - Pilot Testing Summary 

Report) with the plant operational data from the past year. 
 Plot total phosphorus and ammonia as N effluent data. 
 Summarize actual plant effluent data and compare to interim and final limits. 
 Conduct a conference call with City and Consultant’s Principal-in-Charge, Project 

Manager, and up to two (2) team members to discuss data and progress made within 
the past year as well as identify actions and milestones for the upcoming year. 

 Prepare agenda and distribute to anticipated attendees at least one (1) week prior to 
conference call. 

 Prepare and distribute notes to attendees within three (3) days after conference call. 
 Prepare draft Permit Progress Report capturing requirements identified in Article I.D.6. of 

City’s NPDES permit. Contents will include as a minimum: 
o Assessment of effluent from previous year and comparison to interim and final 

effluent limits. 
o Summary of progress made toward achieving compliance with the total 

phosphorus and total ammonia effluent limitations. 
o Outline of actions and milestone targeted for the upcoming year. 

 Perform a quality control review of draft Permit Progress Report to verify that the 
deliverable and supporting documentation are complete, understandable, conform to 
applicable and reasonable standards relative to their intended purpose, and meet City 
and Consultant requirements. 

 Submit draft Permit Progress Report to City for review and comment. 
 Prepare final Permit Progress Report and transmit to City for submittal to EPA and 

IDEQ.  

Assumptions 
The budget is based upon the following assumptions: 

 Coordination conference calls to discuss City comments on the draft Pilot Summary 
Report and to discuss data and progress made for the Permit Progress Report (two (2) 
calls total) will last up to two (2) hours each. 

 An agenda will not be prepared for the conference call to discuss City comments on 
the draft Pilot Summary Report as the comments themselves will serve as the 
discussion items. 

 Review procedures, comment resolution, and documentation of reviews will be as 
defined in the QMP (Activity 103.1 - Quality Management Plan). 
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 Comments received from the City shall be considered additional external review 
comments and appropriately documented and resolved. 

 City will perform a timely review of the draft reports and provide a single set of 
reconciled review comments. Consultant’s schedule includes an allowance of up to 
two (2) weeks for City review. Any duration longer than this will result in Consultant’s 
schedule adjusting accordingly. 

Deliverables 
Deliverable work products consist of the following: 

 Draft Pilot Summary Report transmitted to City via e-mail in .pdf format. 

 Final Pilot Summary Report transmitted to City via e-mail in .pdf format. 

 Agenda and meeting notes transmitted to City via e-mail in .pdf format. 

 Draft Permit Progress Report transmitted to City via e-mail in .pdf format. 

 Final Permit Progress Report transmitted to City via e-mail in .pdf format. 

Task 300 - Preliminary Engineering  

 Site Investigation Sub-task 301 -

Objective 
Conduct site investigation activities necessary to inform preliminary engineering activities. 

Approach 
This sub-task includes services related to investigation of the project site including topographic 
survey and geotechnical evaluation of sub-surface materials. Specific activities conducted by 
Consultant will include the following: 

ACTIVITY 301.1 TOPOGRAPHICAL SURVEY 
 Consultant’s sub-consultant, Welch Comer, will conduct a topographical survey of the 

project site. 

 Limits of survey will be determined by existing information and limits identified during 
Project Initiation Workshop (Activity 101.1 - Project Initiation Workshop).  

Assumptions 
The budget is based upon the following assumptions: 

 Topographical survey will include areas around anticipated work elements and will also 
extend into the existing plant to provide information for future use by City in updating 
their site storm water drainage plan.  

Deliverables 
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Deliverable work products consist of the following: 

 Topographical survey transmitted to City via e-mail in AutoCAD .dwg format. 

 Specialty Testing Sub-task 302 -

Objective 
Assist City with identifying specialty testing to address challenges that arose during the 
operation of the full-scale pilot facility. 

Approach 
This sub-task includes services related to identifying challenges, testing potential solutions, and 
documenting modifications to the full-scale facilities. Specific activities conducted by Consultant 
will include the following: 

ACTIVITY 302.1 DATA REVIEW 
 Update Consultant’s Data Viewer with plant operational data since date of 

commissioning the full-scale pilot facilities in Phase 5C.1. 

 Review Operator Log since date of commissioning the full-scale pilot facilities in Phase 
5C.1. 

 Analyze plant operational data and correlate with process upset activities or other 
anomalies noted.  

 Summarize data review findings in a technical memorandum. 

ACTIVITY 302.2 SPECIALTY TESTING WORKSHOP 
 Conduct a workshop with City staff and Consultant’s principal-in-charge, project 

manager, and up to four (4) design team members to discuss potential specialty tests 
and City staff ideas. 

 Provide agenda and distribute to anticipated attendees one (1) week prior to 
workshop.  

 Provide and distribute notes to attendees within three (3) days after workshop. 

ACTIVITY 302.3 TESTING PLAN 
 Prepare up to two (2) testing plans in the form of technical memorandums. 

 Consult with City staff during specialty testing by participating in conference calls. 

 Amend testing plan memorandums to summarize findings and conclusions including 
lessons learned and recommended modifications to full-scale design. 

Assumptions 
The budget is based upon the following assumptions: 
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 City will provide complete monthly data and operator logs at least two (2) weeks prior 
to workshop  

 Workshop will occur in City’s Administration Building conference room and will last up 
to eight (8) hours. 

 Up to fifteen (15) hard copies of agendas will be furnished by Consultant for workshop. 

 City operations staff will implement specialty tests and monitor process performance 
during and after tests. 

 An allowance of up to $10,000.00 of Consultant assistance has been budgeted for 
each specialty test.  

 The recommended modifications to full-scale design resulting from the specialty 
testing could impact the tertiary membrane filtration and chemical addition facilities. 
Recommended modifications that result in new treatment facilities or processes may 
result in the need for a scope amendment.  

Deliverables 
Deliverable work products consist of the following: 

 Data review technical memorandum transmitted to City via e-mail in .pdf format. 

 Testing plan memoranda prior to commencement of specialty testing transmitted to 
City via e-mail in .pdf format. 

 Amended testing plan memoranda following completion of specialty testing transmitted 
to City via e-mail in .pdf format. 

 Preliminary Engineering and Design Report Sub-task 303 -

Objective 
Comply with requirement in NPDES Compliance Schedule (Article I.D.1.) to provide a 
preliminary engineering report to EPA and IDEQ outlining estimated costs and schedule for 
completing capacity expansion and implementation of technologies to achieve final effluent 
limitations.  

Approach 
This sub-task includes services related to preparing the Tertiary Treatment Phase 2 
Improvements Preliminary Engineering Report (PER) to comply with the NPDES Compliance 
Schedule by defining the project with a unified design concept that will allow development of an 
opinion of probable construction cost and project schedule. The Tertiary Treatment Phase 2 
Improvements PER will address the requirements of Idaho Code (IDAPA 58.01.16 Section 411: 
Facility and Design Standards for Municipal Wastewater Treatment or Disposal Facilities – 
Preliminary Engineering Reports). 
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Following submittal and approval from EPA and IDEQ of the Tertiary Treatment Phase 2 
Improvements PER, the preliminary engineer concepts will be further developed in the Tertiary 
Treatment Phase 2 Improvements Preliminary Design Report (PDR) prior to detailed design.  

Some of the report sections will update the 2013 Phase 5C Preliminary Engineering Report or 
the 2009 Phase 5 Preliminary Design Report. Specific activities conducted by Consultant will 
include the following: 

ACTIVITY 303.1 PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING KICK-OFF WORKSHOP 
 Conduct a workshop with City and Consultant’s principal-in-charge, project manager, 

and up to five (5) design team members to discuss the Tertiary Treatment Phase 2 
Improvements PER and PDR formats, layouts and content from the two previous 
reports which will be revised or updated in this report. 

 Prepare agenda and distribute to anticipated attendees one (1) week prior to 
workshop. 

 Prepare and distribute notes to attendees within three (3) days after workshop. 

 Discuss any additional data required by Consultant to complete the PER. 

 Conduct a site walk-through to document existing conditions and noting discrepancies 
between record drawings.  

ACTIVITY 303.2 PRELIMINARY PROCESS DESIGN 
 Develop preliminary process design concepts including: 

o Process unit design criteria and projected operating conditions. 

o Process narrative for individual unit processes. 

o Plant mass balance. 

o Hydraulic analysis. 

 Develop preliminary process design drawings including: 

o Process flow diagrams. 

o Hydraulic profile. 

 Update the following sections of the 2013 Phase 5C Preliminary Engineering Report: 

o Section 1: Design Objectives, Design Criteria, and Mass Balance. 

o Section 3: Hydraulic Profile 

ACTIVITY 303.3 PRELIMINARY CIVIL DESIGN 
 Develop preliminary civil design concepts including: 

o Limits of construction. 

o Yard piping corridor. 
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o Relocation strategy for existing utilities located within the former railroad right-of-
way corridor, including the Riverside Interceptor. 

o Preliminary siting of future Operations Control Building. 

 Develop preliminary civil design drawings including: 

o Overall site plan showing new and existing structures. 

o Yard piping plan. 

o Grading and paving plan. 

 Update the following sections of the 2013 Phase 5C Preliminary Engineering Report: 

o Section 2: Site Evaluation and Layout 

ACTIVITY 303.4 GEOTECHNICAL RECOMMENDATIONS 
 Consultant’s sub-consultant, Strata, will develop geotechnical engineering 

recommendations to assist with planning, design and construction of the new 
structures in this project. 

 Update the following sections of the 2009 Phase 5 Preliminary Design Report: 

o Appendix G: Geotechnical Investigation. 

 Update the following sections of the 2013 Phase 5C Preliminary Engineering Report: 

o Section 2: Site Evaluation and Layout. 

ACTIVITY 303.5 PRELIMINARY STRUCTURAL DESIGN 
 Develop preliminary structural design concepts including: 

o Design code requirements. 

o Materials of construction. 

o Design of foundations. 

o Sizing of wall and slab thicknesses. 

o Replacement of Primary Clarifier No. 1 outfall structure. 

o Addition of cover to existing Centrate Storage Tank. 

 Develop preliminary structural design drawings for major structures including 

o Foundation plans. 

o Structure sections. 

 Update the following sections of the 2009 Phase 5 Preliminary Design Report: 

o Section 16: Architectural/Structural Approach and Design and Space 
Programming 

ACTIVITY 303.6 PRELIMINARY ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN 
 Develop preliminary architectural design concepts including: 
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o Site perimeter visual buffering. 

o Building material selections. 

o Preliminary sizing and layout of future Operations Control Center. 

 Develop preliminary architectural design drawings for major structures including: 

o Code compliance sheet. 

o Exterior elevations. 

o Floors plan indicating planned egress paths. 

 Update the following sections of the 2009 Phase 5 Preliminary Design Report: 

o Section 16: Architectural/Structural Approach and Design and Space 
Programming 

ACTIVITY 303.7 PRELIMINARY PROCESS MECHANICAL DESIGN 
 Develop preliminary process mechanical concepts including: 

o Equipment design considerations. 

o Equipment lists and data sheets 

o Sizing of major equipment. 

o Utility requirements. 

o Piping system design considerations. 

o Replacement of existing centrate pump and new mixing system. 

o Evaluate covers for secondary clarifiers to reduce nuisance algae growth. 

 Develop preliminary process mechanical design drawings for major process units 
including: 

o Process mechanical equipment layout and access requirements 

o Major piping systems. 

o Process and instrumentation diagrams. 

 Update the following sections of the 2013 Phase 5C Preliminary Engineering Report: 

o Section 4: Process Units 

o Appendix A: Phase 5C Equipment List Update 

o Appendix D: Phase 5C Piping Design Guide Update 

o Appendix E: Phase 5C Equipment Design Guide Update 

ACTIVITY 303.8 PRELIMINARY ODOR CONTROL AND TREATMENT DESIGN 
 Conduct a review of the original odor control study completed in 1997/1998, the Phase 

4 and Phase 5 facilities plans and the Phase 5 preliminary design report 
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 During Activity 303.1 - Preliminary Engineering Kick-Off Workshop: 

o Discuss goals for odor control and treatment. 

o Review changes made to the facility since the original odor control study was 
completed. 

o Discuss odor sources and air volumes. 

o Discuss performance of the existing biofilter system, including data review. 

o Identify initial foul air management changes. 

o Identify potential alternatives for odor control collection and treatment. 

 Develop preliminary odor control and treatment concepts including: 

o Ventilation and airflow analyses. 

o Material alternatives assessment. 

o Process control modifications 

o Process control descriptions  

o Alternatives for each unit process for further evaluation and analysis 

 Develop preliminary odor control and treatment design drawings including: 

o Odor Control Schematic. 

o Site layout. 

o Process and instrumentation diagram 

 Process air and waste handling systems will also be evaluated as they apply to the 
development of the final updated odor control plan 

 Update the following sections of the 2009 Phase 5 Preliminary Design Report: 

o Section 17: Odor Control 

ACTIVITY 303.9 PRELIMINARY MECHANICAL DESIGN 
 Develop preliminary mechanical concepts including: 

o Heating and ventilation equipment design considerations. 

o Plumbing fixture considerations 

 Develop preliminary mechanical design drawings for major structures including: 

o Mechanical equipment layout and access requirements. 

o Major ductwork and piping systems. 

 Update the following sections of the 2013 Phase 5C Preliminary Engineering Report: 

o Section 4: Process Units 
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ACTIVITY 303.10 PRELIMINARY ELECTRICAL DESIGN 
 Consultant’s sub-consultant, Trindera Engineering, will develop preliminary electrical 

design concepts including: 

o Electrical load list. 

o Electrical service requirements. 

o Standby power requirements. 

 Consultant’s sub-consultant, Trindera Engineering, will develop preliminary electrical 
design drawings including: 

o Power one-line diagrams. 

o Electrical site plan. 

 Consultant’s sub-consultant, Trindera Engineering, will update the following sections of 
the 2013 Phase 5C Preliminary Engineering Report: 

o Section 4: Process Units 

o Appendix H: Electrical Power Options Report 

ACTIVITY 303.11 PRELIMINARY INSTRUMENTATION AND CONTROL DESIGN 
 Consultant’s sub-consultant, Trindera Engineering, will develop preliminary 

instrumentation and control design concepts including: 

o Control philosophy. 

o Process control descriptions. 

 Consultant’s sub-consultant, Trindera Engineering, will develop preliminary 
instrumentation and control design drawings including: 

o Process and instrumentation diagrams. 

o Control system block diagram. 

 Consultant’s sub-consultant, Trindera Engineering, will update the following sections of 
the 2013 Phase 5C Preliminary Engineering Report: 

o Section 4: Process Units 

ACTIVITY 303.12 PRELIMINARY SPECIFICATION AND DRAWINGS LISTS 
 Develop a preliminary list of specifications required for this project. 

 Develop a preliminary list of drawings required for this project. 

ACTIVITY 303.13 PRELIMINARY PROJECT SCHEDULE 
 Develop preliminary project schedule including equipment procurement plan and 

construction schedule. 

ACTIVITY 303.14 PRELIMINARY OPINION OF PROBABLE COST 
 Develop an engineer’s preliminary opinion of probable cost. 
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 Update the following sections of the 2013 Phase 5C Preliminary Engineering Report: 

o Section 5: Phase 5C Opinion of Probable Cost Summary. 

o Appendix B: Phase 5C Cost Opinion Update 

ACTIVITY 303.15 PRELIMINARY DESIGN COORDINATION MEETINGS 
 Conduct up to fifteen (15) coordination meetings, one per week, with Consultant 

design team and active sub-consultants.   

o Discuss critical design issues and identify next actions for resolution. 

o Document meetings by preparing and distributing meeting agendas and notes for 
each meeting. 

ACTIVITY 303.16 QUALITY CONTROL REVIEW  
 Perform quality checking of preliminary design calculations and preliminary drawings 

during development.  

 Perform a quality control review of each PER section to verify that the deliverable and 
supporting documentation are complete, understandable, conform to applicable and 
reasonable standards relative to their intended purpose, and meet City and Consultant 
requirements. 

ACTIVITY 303.17 PREPARE PER SUBMITTALS 
 Prepare the draft Tertiary Treatment Phase 2 Improvements PER. 

 Submit draft report to City for review and comment. 

 Following Activity 303.18 - Review Workshop, address City comments. 

 Prepare the final Tertiary Treatment Phase 2 Improvements PER. 

 Submit report to Idaho DEQ and EPA for review and approval. 

ACTIVITY 303.18 REVIEW WORKSHOPS 
 Conduct a conference call with City and Consultant’s principal-in-charge, project 

manager, and up to three (3) team members to review comments and solicit input 
regarding the draft Tertiary Treatment Phase 2 Improvements PER.  

 Conduct a workshop with City and Consultant’s principal-in-charge, project manager, 
and up to three (3) team members to review comments and solicit input regarding the 
draft Tertiary Treatment Phase 2 Improvements PDR. 

 Prepare agenda and distribute to anticipated attendees one (1) week prior to 
workshop. 

 Prepare and distribute notes to attendees within three (3) days after workshop. 

 Update project decision log to include items addressed in the workshops. 

ACTIVITY 303.19 PREPARE PDR SUBMITTALS 
 Prepare the draft Tertiary Treatment Phase 2 Improvements PDR. 
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 Submit draft report to City for review and comment. 

 Following Activity 303.18 - Review Workshop, address City comments. 

 Prepare the final Tertiary Treatment Phase 2 Improvements PDR. 

 Submit report to City. 

Assumptions 
The budget is based upon the following assumptions: 

 City will furnish additional data requested by Consultant within two (2) weeks following 
the kick-off workshop. 

 Conference call will last up to two (2) hours. 

 Workshop will occur in City’s Administration Building conference room and will last up 
to four (4) hours. 

 Hard copies of agendas for up to four (4) City staff plus Consultant staff will be 
furnished by Consultant for workshop. 

 No additional site exploration or laboratory testing will be required for this project. 

 Geotechnical recommendations for this project will be provided as an amendment to 
the previous geotechnical report. 

 Preliminary cost opinion will be for budgetary planning purposes. For the Tertiary 
Treatment Phase 2 Improvements PER, Consultant will provide a range of accuracy of 
+40 percent to -20 percent with a contingency for undefined scope of work of 20 
percent based upon 1 to 15 percent project definition.  

 Preliminary design coordination meetings will last up to one (1) hour each. 

 Review procedures, comment resolution, and documentation of reviews will be as 
defined in the QMP (Activity 103.1 - Quality Management Plan). 

 Comments received from the City shall be considered additional external review 
comments and appropriately documented and resolved. 

 City will perform timely reviews of the draft PER and PDR, and will provide a single set 
of reconciled review comments. Consultant’s schedule includes an allowance of up to 
two (2) weeks for each City review. Any duration longer than this will result in 
Consultant’s schedule adjusting accordingly. 

 No Idaho DEQ comments are anticipated. Therefore, no response to comments is 
included in the scope. 

Deliverables 
Deliverable work products consist of the following: 
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 Meeting agenda transmitted to City via e-mail in .pdf format prior to PER review 
conference call. 

 Meeting agenda transmitted to City via e-mail in .pdf format prior to, and hard copies 
delivered at, PDR review workshop. 

 Meeting notes and updated decision log transmitted to City via e-mail in .pdf format. 

 Draft Tertiary Treatment Phase 2 Improvements PER transmitted to City via e-mail in 
.pdf format. 

 Final Tertiary Treatment Phase 2 Improvements PER transmitted to City and Idaho 
DEQ in hard copy [one (1) copy each] and .pdf format [one (1) copy each on CD]. 

 Draft Tertiary Treatment Phase 2 Improvements PDR transmitted to City via e-mail in 
.pdf format. 

 Final Tertiary Treatment Phase 2 Improvements PDR transmitted to City in hard copy 
[one (1) copy] and .pdf format [one (1) copy on CD]. 

Task 400 - Equipment Procurement 

 Sole Source Expenditure Justifications Sub-task 401 -

Objective 
Assist City in preparing documentation required to purchase new equipment that matches 
existing equipment already in use at the plant. 

Approach 
This sub-task includes services related to preparing technical justification for sole-source 
expenditures as allowed by Idaho procurement law in order to match existing equipment. 
Specific activities conducted by Consultant will include the following: 

ACTIVITY 401.1 MEMORANDUM 
 Prepare draft sole-source expenditure technical justification memorandum. 

 Perform a quality control review of draft memorandum to verify that the deliverable and 
supporting documentation are complete, understandable, conform to applicable and 
reasonable standards relative to their intended purpose, and meet City and Consultant 
requirements. 

 Submit draft memorandum to City for review and comment. 

 Receive and address City comments. 

 Prepare final memorandum. 

 Submit final memorandum to City for approval and advertisement per Idaho Statute. 

Assumptions 
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The budget is based upon the following assumptions: 

 Technical justification will be prepared for the membrane filtration system, the high 
speed turbo blowers. 

 Review procedures, comment resolution, and documentation of reviews will be as 
defined in the QMP (Activity 103.1 - Quality Management Plan). 

 Comments received from the City shall be considered additional external review 
comments and appropriately documented and resolved. 

 City will perform a timely review of the draft memorandum and provide a single set of 
reconciled review comments. Consultant’s schedule includes an allowance of up to 
two (2) weeks for City review. Any duration longer than this will result in Consultant’s 
schedule adjusting accordingly. 

Deliverables 
Deliverable work products consist of the following: 

 Draft memorandum transmitted to City via e-mail in .docx or .pdf format. 

 Final memorandum transmitted to City via e-mail in .pdf format. 

 Membrane Filtration System Procurement Sub-task 402 -

Objective 
Assist the City in procuring long lead-time equipment that could affect design considerations 
and the scheduled completion date if not procured until after award of the construction contract. 
The membrane filtration system has been identified as being long lead-time equipment. 

Approach 
This sub-task includes services related to procuring the membrane filtration system. Specific 
activities conducted by Consultant will include the following: 

ACTIVITY 402.1 PROCUREMENT PROJECT MANUAL 
 Prepare draft Procurement Project Manual including contract equipment procurement 

provisions and technical specifications for equipment procurement.   

o Consultant’s sub-consultant, Trindera Engineering, will assist with the electrical, 
instrumentation and control components of the Procurement Project Manual. 

 Perform a quality control review of draft Project Manual to verify that the deliverable 
and supporting documentation are complete, understandable, conform to applicable 
and reasonable standards relative to their intended purpose, and meet City and 
Consultant requirements. 

 Submit draft Project Manual to City for review and comment. 

 Receive and address City comments. 
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 Prepare final draft Project Manual. 

 Submit final draft Project Manual to City for use in negotiating at contract with the sole-
sourced membrane filtration system manufacturer. 

 Prepare final Project Manual for distribution and signatures following negotiations 
described in Activity 402.2 - Membrane Filtration System Manufacturer Contract 
Negotiations. 

ACTIVITY 402.2 MEMBRANE FILTRATION SYSTEM MANUFACTURER CONTRACT NEGOTIATIONS 
 Receive and review manufacturer’s comments on final draft Project Manual. 

 Receive and review manufacturer’s initial pricing and justification. 

 Conduct up to two (2) conference calls with City, manufacturer, Consultant’s project 
manager and up to two (2) design team members to discuss manufacturer’s comments 
while working towards a negotiated final Project Manual. 

 Prepare recommendation of award following satisfactory negotiations. 

ACTIVITY 402.3 PROCUREMENT SUBMITTALS 
 Receive, log, and maintain shop drawing submittal documents in the DMS. 

 Conduct review of shop drawing submittals to confirm manufacturer's compliance with 
administrative requirements and distribute to appropriate design team member(s) for 
review. 

 Review submittals for compliance with the specifications and provide written 
comments to manufacturer. 

o Consultant’s sub-consultant, Trindera Engineering, will assist with review of the 
electrical, instrumentation and control shop drawing submittals. 

 Review manufacturer Operations and Maintenance Manual. 

ACTIVITY 402.4 MANUFACTURER DESIGN COORDINATION MEETINGS 
 Conduct the following conference calls with City, manufacturer, Consultant’s project 

manager and up to two (2) design team members: 

o Project kick-off coordination call to review project requirements, introduce team 
members, and establish communication protocols. 

o Coordination calls to review and resolve City and Consultant comments on the 
following submittals (separate calls for each submittal): 

 Process and instrumentation diagrams. 

 Process equipment data technical cut sheets. 

 Instrumentation power and control wiring diagrams. 

 Electrical power drawings. 

 Electrical equipment data technical cut sheets. 
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 Control panel I/O wiring diagrams. 

o Facility design integration coordination call to discuss manufacturer’s comments 
on Consultant’s equipment and piping layout and integration of manufacturer’s 
equipment into the design. 

 Prepare and distribute notes for each meeting to attendees within three (3) days after 
meeting. 

Assumptions 
The budget is based upon the following assumptions: 

 Specifications will be prepared using the six-digit MasterFormat of the Construction 
Specifications Institute.   

 Front-end specifications will be based upon Engineers Joint Contract Documents 
Committee (EJCDC) procurement contract documents, 2010 version. 

 Review procedures, comment resolution, and documentation of reviews will be as 
defined in the QMP (Activity 103.1 - Quality Management Plan). 

 Comments received from the City shall be considered additional external review 
comments and appropriately documented and resolved. 

 City will perform a timely review of the draft Project Manual and provide a single set of 
reconciled review comments. Consultant’s schedule includes an allowance of up to 
two (2) weeks for City review. Any duration longer than this will result in Consultant’s 
schedule adjusting accordingly. 

 Manufacturer contract negotiation and design coordination conference calls will last up 
to two (2) hours each. 

 Receiving and reviewing six (6) shop drawing submittals and six (6) resubmittals. 

 Receiving and reviewing one (1) operation and maintenance manual submittal and 
One (1) resubmittal. 

 If a submittal is determined to be incomplete when compared against the requirements 
in the Project Manual, it will be rejected. 

 Submittal reviews following one (1) re-submittal will be billed to City as a separate, out-
of-scope activity from which City can, at its discretion, deduct the amount from 
manufacturer's payment application(s). 

 City will issue Notice to Proceed to manufacturer. 

 City will administer manufacturer’s payment applications. 

Deliverables 
Deliverable work products consist of the following: 

 Draft Procurement Project Manual transmitted to City via e-mail in .pdf format. 
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 Final draft Procurement Project Manual transmitted to City via e-mail in .pdf format. 

 Recommendation of award to manufacturer transmitted to City via e-mail in .pdf 
format. 

 Final Procurement Project Manual transmitted to City via e-mail in .pdf format. 

 Responses to manufacturer’s shop drawing submittals transmitted to manufacturer via 
e-mail in .pdf format and copied to City. 

 Response to manufacturer’s operations and maintenance manual shop drawing 
submittal transmitted to manufacturer via e-mail in .pdf format and copied to City. 

 Notes from manufacturer design coordination meetings transmitted to City and 
manufacturer via e-mail in .pdf format. 

Task 500 - Detailed Design 

 Project Manual Sub-task 501 -

Objective 
Complete drawing sheets and specifications (Project Manual) for the Tertiary Treatment Phase 
2 Improvements project for submittal to Idaho DEQ and for bidding the project to general 
contractors.    

Approach 
This sub-task includes services related to preparation of a Project Manual for construction of the 
Tertiary Treatment Phase 2 Improvements project. Specific activities conducted by Consultant 
will include the following: 

ACTIVITY 501.1 BIDDING DOCUMENTS AND GENERAL CONDITIONS 
 Develop general conditions and bidding document specifications: Division 00 - Bidding 

Documents, Contract Forms, and Conditions of the Contract. 

ACTIVITY 501.2 GENERAL SPECIFICATIONS AND DRAWINGS 
 Develop general specifications:  

o Division 01 - General Requirements 

o Division 02 - Existing Conditions 

 Develop general drawings depicting overall project including site plan and survey 
control, process design criteria, process flow diagrams, and the hydraulic profile. 

ACTIVITY 501.3 CIVIL SPECIFICATIONS AND DRAWINGS 
 Develop civil specifications:  

o Division 31 - Earthwork 

o Division 32 - Exterior Improvements 
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o Division 33 - Utilities 

o Division 34 - Transportation 

 Develop civil drawings depicting demolition, site improvements, grading, paving, 
underground pipelines and utilities. 

 Develop an early-out utility relocation package specific for utilities located within the 
old railroad right-of-way corridor, including the Riverside Interceptor. 

 Consultant’s sub-consultant, Strata, will review 90 percent draft Project Manual for 
consistency with their recommendations prior to preparing final Project Manual for 
bidding. 

ACTIVITY 501.4 STRUCTURAL SPECIFICATIONS AND DRAWINGS 
 Develop structural specifications: 

o Division 03 - Concrete 

o Division 04 - Masonry 

o Division 05 - Metals 

o Division 06 - Wood and Plastics 

 Develop structural drawings depicting foundations, walls, slabs and roofing systems. 

ACTIVITY 501.5 ARCHITECTURAL SPECIFICATIONS AND DRAWINGS 
 Develop architectural specifications: 

o Division 07 - Thermal and Moisture Protection 

o Division 08 - Openings 

o Division 09 - Finishes 

 Consultant’s sub-consultant, Satterlund Testing and Inspection, will assist 
in development of the Division 09 - Finishes specifications, specifically 
those related to high performance industrial coatings and NACE 
inspection. 

o Division 10 - Specialties 

o Division 12 - Furnishings 

 Develop architectural drawings depicting floor plans, egress paths, building envelope 
details, and exterior elevations. 

ACTIVITY 501.6 PROCESS MECHANICAL SPECIFICATIONS AND DRAWINGS 
 Develop process mechanical specifications: 

o Division 11 - Equipment 

o Division 13 - Special Construction (partial) 

o Division 40 - Process Interconnections (partial) 
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o Division 43 - Process Gas and Liquid Handling, Purification, And Storage 
Equipment 

o Division 44 - Pollution and Waste Control Equipment 

o Division 45 - Industry-Specific Manufacturing Equipment 

o Division 46 - Water and Wastewater Equipment 

 Develop process mechanical drawings depicting equipment layout and piping systems. 

ACTIVITY 501.7 HVAC AND PLUMBING SPECIFICATIONS AND DRAWINGS 
 Develop HVAC and Plumbing specifications:  

o Division 22 - Plumbing 

o Division 23 - Heating, Ventilating, and Air-Conditioning (HVAC) 

 Develop HVAC and plumbing drawings depicting ventilation and plumbing systems. 

ACTIVITY 501.8 ELECTRICAL SPECIFICATIONS AND DRAWINGS 
 Consultant’s sub-consultant, Trindera Engineering, will develop electrical 

specifications:  

o Division 24 - Electrical General Requirements 

o Division 26 - Electrical 

 Consultant’s sub-consultant, Trindera Engineering, will develop electrical drawings 
depicting one-line diagrams, duct banks, and building electrical systems 

 Consultant’s sub-consultant, Trindera Engineering, will assist in the development of an 
early-out utility relocation package specific for utilities located within the old railroad 
right-of-way corridor. 

ACTIVITY 501.9 INSTRUMENTATION AND CONTROL SPECIFICATIONS AND DRAWINGS 
 Consultant’s sub-consultant, Trindera Engineering, will develop instrumentation and 

control specifications:  

o Division 40 - Process Interconnections (partial). 

 Consultant’s sub-consultant, Trindera Engineering, will develop instrumentation and 
control drawings depicting process and instrumentation diagrams (P&IDs) and control 
panel wiring diagrams and layouts. 

ACTIVITY 501.10 DESIGN COORDINATION MEETINGS 
 Conduct up to twenty-five (25) coordination meetings, one per week, with Consultant 

design team and active sub-consultants.   

o Discuss critical design issues and identify next actions for resolution. 

o Document meetings by preparing and distributing meeting agendas and notes for 
each meeting. 
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ACTIVITY 501.11 QUALITY CONTROL REVIEW  
 Perform quality checking of design calculations, specifications, and drawings during 

development.  

 Perform a quality control review of each specification section and drawing to verify that 
the deliverables are complete, understandable, conform to applicable and reasonable 
standards relative to their intended purpose, and meet City and Consultant 
requirements. 

ACTIVITY 501.12 PREPARE SUBMITTALS 
 Prepare draft utility relocation package. 

 Submit draft utility relocation package to City for review and comment. 

 Prepare final utility relocation package for bidding by general contractors. 

 Prepare 60 and 90 percent draft Tertiary Treatment Phase 2 Improvements Project 
Manual (specification and drawing) submittals. 

 Submit draft Project Manuals to City for review and comment. 

 Prepare final draft Tertiary Treatment Phase 2 Improvements Project Manual for 
submittal to Idaho DEQ and Coeur d’Alene Building Department for review and 
approval. 

 Prepare final Tertiary Treatment Phase 2 Improvements Project Manual for bidding by 
general contractors. 

ACTIVITY 501.13 REVIEW WORKSHOPS 
 Conduct two (2) review workshops with City and Consultant’s principal-in-charge, 

project manager, and up to two (2) team members to review comments and solicit 
input regarding the draft 60 and 90 percent Tertiary Treatment Phase 2 Improvements 
Project Manuals. 

 Prepare agenda and distribute to anticipated attendees one (1) week prior to 
workshop. 

 Prepare and distribute notes to attendees within three (3) days after workshop. 

 Update project decision log to include items addressed in the workshop. 

Assumptions 
The budget is based upon the following assumptions: 

 No potholing by Consultant is included in this Scope of Services. City crews will 
conduct this work as requested by Consultant. 

 The design will be based around the equipment procured in Task 400 - Equipment 
Procurement. 

 The design will be completed using 3D building information modeling (BIM) software. 
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 Drawings will be prepared per industry standards and specifications will be prepared 
using the six-digit MasterFormat of the Construction Specifications Institute.   

 Front-end specifications will be based upon Engineers Joint Contract Documents 
Committee (EJCDC) construction contract documents, 2013 version. 

 The design will incorporate City and Consultant engineering and equipment standards 
to maintain consistency and compatibility with the City's existing facilities.   

 Design coordination meetings will last up to one (1) hour each. 

 Review procedures, comment resolution, and documentation of reviews will be as 
defined in the QMP (Activity 103.1 - Quality Management Plan). 

 City will perform a timely review of the draft utility relocation package and Project 
Manual and provide a single set of reconciled review comments. Consultant’s 
schedule includes an allowance of up to two (2) weeks for City review. Any duration 
longer than this will result in Consultant’s schedule adjusting accordingly. 

 Consultant’s schedule includes an allowance of up to six (6) weeks for Idaho DEQ and 
Building Department review. Any duration longer than this will result in Consultant’s 
schedule adjusting accordingly. 

 City will download Navisworks Freedom (free software) to review the 3D BIM models. 

 Comments received from the City shall be considered additional external review 
comments and appropriately documented and resolved. 

 City comments on the 60 percent draft Project Manual will be incorporated into the 90 
percent draft Project Manual. Similarly, City comments on the 90 percent draft Project 
Manual will be incorporated into the final draft Project Manual. No “final” 60 or 90 
percent draft Project Manuals will be produced. 

 City requested changes after the 60 percent draft Project Manuals may impact the 
design phase and may be negotiated via additional services. 

 Workshops will occur in City’s Administration Building conference room and will last up 
to four (4) hours each. 

 Hard copies of agendas for up to four (4) City staff plus Consultant staff will be 
furnished by Consultant for workshops. 

 A preliminary drawing list is included in Attachment 1. 

Deliverables 
Deliverable work products consist of the following: 

 60 percent draft Project Manual transmitted to City via e-mail in .pdf format. 

 60 percent draft 3D BIM Models posted to FTP site in .nwd format. 

 90 percent draft Project Manual transmitted to City via e-mail in .pdf format. 
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 90 percent draft 3D BIM Models posted to FTP site in .nwd format. 

 Workshop agendas transmitted to City via e-mail in .pdf format prior to, and hard 
copies delivered at, workshop. 

 Workshop notes and updated decision log transmitted to City via e-mail in .pdf format. 

 Final draft Project Manual transmitted to City via compact disc in .pdf format [two (2) 
copies] and in half-size (11x17) hard copy format [two (2) copies] for Idaho DEQ and 
Coeur d’Alene Building Department reviews. 

 Final Project Manual posted to FTP site in .pdf format for bidding. 

 Addenda posted to FTP site in .pdf format during bid period. 

 Opinion of Probable Construction Cost Sub-task 502 -

Objective 
Update the engineer’s opinion of probable construction cost. 

Approach 
This sub-task includes services related to preparation of an opinion of probable construction 
cost (OPCC) for the Tertiary Treatment Phase 2 Improvements project. Specific activities 
conducted by Consultant will include the following: 

ACTIVITY 502.1 OPINION OF PROBABLE CONSTRUCTION COST 
 Conduct a conference call between estimators and design team members to identify 

major changes since previous OPCC development (Activity 303.14 - Preliminary 
Opinion of Probable Cost). 

 Update Basis of Estimate (BOE) for the OPCC update. 

 Update OPCC details based upon 60 percent draft Project Manual. 

 Perform a quality control review of OPCC updates to verify that the deliverable and 
supporting documentation are complete, understandable, conform to applicable and 
reasonable standards relative to their intended purpose, and meet City and Consultant 
requirements. 

 Submit OPCC update to City. 

 Conduct a conference call with City and Consultant’s project manager and lead 
estimator to review City comments or questions. 

 Submit revised OPCC update to City addressing their comments and questions.  

Assumptions 
The budget is based upon the following assumptions: 

 OPCC updates will occur following issuance of the deliverables. 
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 60 percent updated opinion of probable construction cost will be for cost baseline 
monitoring. Consultant will provide a range of accuracy of +20 percent to -10 percent 
with a contingency for undefined scope of 10 percent based upon 30 to 70 percent 
project definition. 

 Review procedures, comment resolution, and documentation of reviews will be as 
defined in the QMP (Activity 103.1 - Quality Management Plan). 

 City will perform a timely review of the OPCC updates and provide a single set of 
reconciled review comments. Consultant’s schedule includes an allowance of up to 
two (2) weeks for City review. Any duration longer than this will result in Consultant’s 
schedule adjusting accordingly. 

Deliverables 
Deliverable work products consist of the following: 

 60 percent opinion of probable construction cost transmitted to City via e-mail in .pdf 
format.  

 Revised 60 percent opinion of probable construction cost transmitted to City via e-mail 
in .pdf format, if necessary. 

 Construction Schedule Sub-task 503 -

Objective 
Establish a defensible sequence and schedule for constructing the Tertiary Treatment Phase 2 
Improvements project which will serve as the basis for contractor’s duration to achieve 
substantial and final completion. 

Approach 
This sub-task includes services related to preparation of a construction schedule. Specific 
activities conducted by Consultant will include the following: 

ACTIVITY 503.1 CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE 
 Develop detailed construction sequence in conjunction with preparation of the 60 and 

90 percent draft Project Manuals.    

 Coordinate necessary schedule acceleration and cold weather construction identified 
with Sub-task 502 - Opinion of Probable Construction Cost. 

 Perform a quality control review of schedule to verify that the deliverable and 
supporting documentation are complete, understandable, conform to applicable and 
reasonable standards relative to their intended purpose, and meet City and Consultant 
requirements 

 Submit schedules to City for review and comment. 

 Receive and address City comments. 
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 Prepare updated schedules prior to workshop conducted in Sub-task 602 - 
Informational Workshop so that updated schedules can be reviewed with pre-qualified 
contractors. 

 Conduct two (2) conference calls, one (1) following each of the first two workshops 
conducted in Sub-task 602 - Informational Workshop, with City and Consultant’s 
project manager to review feedback from pre-qualified contractors and determine if 
schedule updates are appropriate. 

 Prepare final schedule to use as the basis for establishing the contractual substantial 
and final completion durations assigned to contractor.  

ACTIVITY 503.2 4D VIRTUAL CONSTRUCTION REHEARSAL 
 Develop an intelligent 4D phasing model of proposed phasing activities linked to the 

construction schedule (Activity 503.1 - Construction Schedule).  

 Link the construction schedule items with the 3D BIM geometry to create a 4D model. 

 Facilitate an understanding and coordination of complex simultaneous activities that 
will take place during the Tertiary Treatment Phase 2 Improvements project.  

 Identify potential constructability problems during design so that construction activities 
are optimized and existing plant operations are maintained. 

 Utilize the 4D model as a key focal point of coordination during the general contractor 
design review meetings (Sub-task 602 - Informational Workshop). 

Assumptions 
The budget is based upon the following assumptions: 

 Schedule will be developed in Microsoft Project scheduling software. 

 4D virtual construction rehearsal will be developed in Synchro 4D construction project 
management software. 

 City will download Synchro viewer (free software) to review the 4D model. 

 3D BIM models will be utilized and optimized for use in 4D phasing effort. 

 Review procedures, comment resolution, and documentation of reviews will be as 
defined in the QMP (Activity 103.1 - Quality Management Plan). 

 City will perform a timely review of the schedule updates and provide a single set of 
reconciled review comments. Consultant’s schedule includes an allowance of up to 
two (2) weeks for City review. Any duration longer than this will result in Consultant’s 
schedule adjusting accordingly. 

Deliverables 
Deliverable work products consist of the following: 

 60 percent construction schedule transmitted to City via e-mail in .pdf format. 
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 Updated 60 percent construction schedule addressing City comments transmitted to 
City via e-mail in .pdf format. 

 Updated 60 percent construction schedule addressing comments received during 
general contractor design review workshop transmitted to City via e-mail in .pdf format. 

 90 percent construction schedule transmitted to City via e-mail in .pdf format. 

 Updated 90 percent construction schedule addressing City comments transmitted to 
City via e-mail in .pdf format. 

 Updated 90 percent construction schedule addressing comments received during 
general contractor design review workshop transmitted to City via e-mail in .pdf format. 

 Final construction schedule transmitted to City via e-mail in .pdf format. 

 90 percent 4D virtual construction rehearsal transmitted to City via e-mail in .sp 
(Synchro) format. 

Task 600 - Bid Period Services 

 General Contractor Pre-Qualification Assistance Sub-task 601 -

Objective 
Consultant will assist the City in conducting a general contractor pre-qualification process to 
identify qualified contractors for wastewater treatment plant construction.  The objectives of 
general contractor pre-qualification will be as follows: 

 Identify contractors bidding the Tertiary Treatment Phase 2 Improvements project that 
are qualified for the work included in this contract. 

 Establish a systematic basis for qualifications submittal and review for bidding. 
 Establish a list of the pre-qualified contractors for bidding 

Approach 
This sub-task includes services related to preparing a pre-qualification questionnaire and 
evaluating responses from prospective general contractors. Specific activities conducted by 
Consultant will include the following: 

ACTIVITY 601.1 PREPARE QUESTIONNAIRE 
 Prepare a draft pre-qualification questionnaire and request for qualifications. 

 Prepare a scoring system for rating the answers given by the respondents and by their 
references. 

 Develop an appeal procedure to address potential requests from candidate general 
contractors not included on the pre-qualified list for bidding. 

 Perform a quality control review of draft questionnaire verify that the deliverable and 
supporting documentation are complete, understandable, conform to applicable and 
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reasonable standards relative to their intended purpose, and meet City and Consultant 
requirements. 

 Submit draft questionnaire to City for review and comment. 

 Receive and address City comments. 

 Prepare final questionnaire. 

 Submit final questionnaire to City for advertisement. 

ACTIVITY 601.2 ADVERTISEMENT 
 Prepare an announcement for General Contractor Pre-qualification package 

submittals.  

 Assist City with distribution of questionnaire packages to registered recipients. 

 Assist City in response to questions about the questionnaire. 

ACTIVITY 601.3 EVALUATION 
 Develop a review panel consisting of City staff and Consultant’s project manager and 

one (1) project engineer. 

 Review the pre-qualification questionnaire submittals from prospective general 
contractors.  

 Conduct reference reviews for the candidate general contractors. 

 Score the submittals and prepare a listing of the pre-qualified general contractors. 

 Prepare an evaluation summary and recommendation and submit to City for approval. 

 Participate in City’s appeal procedure to address potential appeals from candidate 
general contractors not included on the pre-qualified list for bidding. 

Assumptions 
The budget is based upon the following assumptions: 

 Review procedures, comment resolution, and documentation of reviews will be as 
defined in the QMP (Activity 103.1 - Quality Management Plan). 

 Comments received from the City shall be considered additional external review 
comments and appropriately documented and resolved. 

 City will perform a timely review of the draft memorandum and provide a single set of 
reconciled review comments. Consultant’s schedule includes an allowance of up to 
two (2) weeks for City review. Any duration longer than this will result in Consultant’s 
schedule adjusting accordingly. 

 City will advertise pre-qualification questionnaire using City’s established procedure. 

 City will answer legal questions during advertisement period. 

 City will distribute questionnaires and log an official list. 
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 City will receive responses and transmit to Consultant for review. 

Deliverables 
Deliverable work products consist of the following: 

 Draft pre-qualification questionnaire transmitted to City via e-mail in .pdf format. 

 Final pre-qualification questionnaire transmitted to City via e-mail in .pdf format. 

 Recommendation of general contractors qualified to bid transmitted to City via e-mail 
in .pdf format. 

 Informational Workshop Sub-task 602 -

Objective 
Establish a workshop approach to review the design documents with pre-qualified contractors 
and community members such that their feedback may be incorporated into the design.  

Approach 
This sub-task includes services related to conducting constructability review workshops with 
pre-qualified general contractors. Specific activities conducted by Consultant will include the 
following: 

ACTIVITY 602.1 WORKSHOP 
 Conduct a informational workshop with City, pre-qualified contractors, neighbors, and 

Consultant’s project manager, and one (1) team member following the 90 percent draft 
Project Manual review workshop (Activity 501.13 - Review Workshops).  

 Prepare agenda and distribute to anticipated attendees one (1) week prior to 
workshop. 

 Prepare and distribute notes to attendees within three (3) days after workshop. 

 Present the proposed construction schedule (Activity 503.1 - Construction Schedule) 
and 4D virtual construction rehearsal (Activity 503.2 - 4D Virtual Construction 
Rehearsal). 

Assumptions 
The budget is based upon the following assumptions: 

 Workshops will occur in City’s Administration Building conference room and will last up 
to four (4) hours each. 

 Hard copies of agendas for up to four (4) City staff, up to ten (10) pre-qualified 
contractors, and Consultant staff will be furnished by Consultant for workshop and 
coordination meetings. 

 All pre-qualified general contractors will attend each workshop so that individual 
workshops are not required for each pre-qualified general contractors. 
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Deliverables 
Deliverable work products consist of the following: 

 Meeting agendas transmitted to City and pre-qualified general contractors via e-mail in 
.pdf format prior to, and hard copies delivered at, workshops. 

 Meeting notes transmitted to City and pre-qualified general contractors via e-mail in 
.pdf format. 

 Bid Assistance Sub-task 603 -

Objective 
Assist City with bidding the Tertiary Treatment Phase 2 Improvements project. 

Approach 
This sub-task includes services related to assisting City with bidding. Specific activities 
conducted by Consultant will include the following: 

ACTIVITY 603.1 FTP SITE / ELECTRONIC ADVERTISEMENT 
 Establish and maintain an electronic FTP site for registered plan holders to access the 

bid documents and addenda. 

ACTIVITY 603.2 PRE-BID CONFERENCE 
 Prepare a pre-bid conference meeting agenda. 

 Conduct a pre-bid conference with City, Consultant’s project manager, and up to one 
(1) team member. 

 Document pre-bid conference attendees. 

 Document questions raised and answers provided during the pre-bid conference.   

 Issue notes of the pre-bid conference and the list of attendees as part of an 
addendum. 

ACTIVITY 603.3 PREPARE ADDENDA 
 Prepare up to three (3) addenda to address bidder questions. 

 Perform a quality control review of each addendum to verify that the deliverable is 
complete, understandable, conform to applicable and reasonable standards relative to 
their intended purpose, and meet City and Consultant requirements. 

 Assist City Clerk in issuing addenda to registered plan holders. 

ACTIVITY 603.4 BID EVALUATION AND RECOMMENDATION OF AWARD 
 Evaluate bids received from pre-qualified contractors to determine responsiveness. 

 Consult with City’s legal representative before making any recommendations of award 
that may involve waiver of formalities or irregularities in the bid. 
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 Prepare a recommendation of award documenting the evaluation process and submit 
to City for consideration of formal award. 

Assumptions 
The budget is based upon the following assumptions: 

 Pre-bid conference will occur in City’s Administration Building conference room and 
will last up to four (4) hours including site walk with attendees. 

 Hard copies of the pre-bid conference agenda for up to four (4) City staff, up to ten 
(10) potential bidders, and Consultant staff will be furnished by Consultant. 

 Review procedures, comment resolution, and documentation of reviews will be as 
defined in the QMP (Activity 103.1 - Quality Management Plan). 

Deliverables 
Deliverable work products consist of the following: 

 Pre-bid conference agenda transmitted to City via e-mail in .pdf format and hard 
copies provided at conference. 

 Notes and attendee list from pre-bid conference transmitted to City and attendees via 
e-mail in .pdf format. 

 Recommendation of Award transmitted to City via e-mail in .pdf format. 
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Schedule 
Assuming that Notice to Proceed will be issued on September 16, 2015, the project schedule is 
as follows.  If the NTP occurs after this date, the schedule will be moved by an equal number of 
days.  

Task Description Schedule  

100 Project Administration and Management Through August 31, 2016 

200 NPDES Permit Support Through August 31, 2016 

300 Preliminary Engineering Through December 31, 2015 

400 Equipment Procurement Through June 30, 2016 

500 Detailed Design  Through June 30, 2016 

600 Bid Period Services Through August 31, 2016 
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EXHIBIT B 
TERTIARY TREATMENT PHASE 2 IMPROVEMENTS 

COMPENSATION 

 

Consultant’s total compensation for professional services provided pursuant to this agreement, 
including labor and overhead costs and expenses, sub-consultant compensation, sub-
consultant mark-up, and Consultant’s fixed fee of $141,433.00, shall not exceed $1,710,810.00 
without written authorization by City.   

Consultant shall invoice City monthly for Consultant’s services.  Invoices shall itemize costs 
incurred for each task identified in the scope of work. 
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COUNCIL BILL NO. 15-1018 
ORDINANCE NO. ____ 

 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE, VACATING A PORTION OF 
PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY IN THE BOUGHTON & KELSO ADDITION, RECORDED IN BOOK 
“A” OF PLATS, PAGE 115, RECORDS OF KOOTENAI COUNTY, GENERALLY DESCRIBED 
AS A PORTION OF SHERMAN AVENUE RIGHT-OF-WAY ADJOINING THE NORTH SIDE 
OF LOT 1 & 2, BLOCK A LYING IN THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER  OF SECTION 13, 
TOWNSHIP 50 NORTH, RANGE 4 WEST, BOISE MERIDIAN, CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE, 
KOOTENAI COUNTY, IDAHO; REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES AND PARTS OF 
ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND 
PROVIDING FOR THE PUBLICATION OF A SUMMARY OF THIS ORDINANCE AND AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE HEREOF. 
 

WHEREAS, after public hearing, the City Council finds it to be in the best interests of the 
City of Coeur d'Alene and the citizens thereof that said portions of right-of-way be vacated; NOW, 
THEREFORE, 
 

BE IT ORDAINED, by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Coeur d'Alene: 
 
SECTION 1.  That the following described property, to wit: 
 

Legal description and drawing, attached as Exhibits “A & B” 
 

 be and the same is hereby vacated.   
 
SECTION 2.  That said vacated right-of-way shall revert to the adjoining property owner of 
the south. 
 
 
SECTION 3.  That the existing right-of-way, easements, and franchise rights of any lot 
owners, public utility, or the City of Coeur d’Alene shall not be impaired by this vacation, as 
provided by law, and that the adjoining property owners shall in no manner place any obstruction 
over any public utilities.   
 
 
SECTION 4.   All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are 
hereby repealed. 
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SECTION 5.   After its passage and adoption, a summary of this Ordinance, under the 
provisions of the Idaho Code, shall be published once in the official newspaper of the City of 
Coeur d'Alene, and upon such publication shall be in full force and effect.  
 
 Passed under suspension of rules upon which a roll call vote was duly taken and duly 
enacted an Ordinance of the City of Coeur d’Alene at a regular session of the City Council on 
September 15, 2015. 
 
 

APPROVED by the Mayor this 15th day of September, 2015. 
 
 

____________________________ 
Steve Widmyer, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Renata McLeod, City Clerk 
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SUMMARY OF COEUR D'ALENE ORDINANCE NO. ____ 
V-15-3, SHERMAN AVENUE RIGHT-OF-WAY VACATION 

 
 The City of Coeur d'Alene, Idaho hereby gives notice of the adoption of Coeur d'Alene 
Ordinance No. ____, vacating a portion of Sherman Avenue right-of-way adjoining the north 
side of Lot 1 & 2, Block A of the Boughton & Kelso Addition Plat. 
 
 Such right-of-way is more particularly described as follows: 
 

Attached Exhibits “A & B” 
 

 
 The ordinance further provides that the ordinance shall be effective upon publication of 
this summary.  The full text of the summarized Ordinance No. ____ is available at Coeur d'Alene 
City Hall, 710 E. Mullan Avenue, Coeur d'Alene, Idaho 83814 in the office of the City Clerk. 
 
 
 
             
       Renata McLeod, City Clerk 
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STATEMENT OF LEGAL ADVISOR 
 
      I, Warren J. Wilson, am a Deputy City Attorney for the City of Coeur d'Alene, Idaho.  I 
have examined the attached summary of Coeur d'Alene Ordinance No. ____, V-15-3, vacating a 
portion of Sherman Avenue right-of-way and find it to be a true and complete summary of said 
ordinance which provides adequate notice to the public of the context thereof.  
 
     DATED this 15th day of September, 2015. 
 
 
                                          
                                  Warren J. Wilson, Chief Civil Deputy City Attorney 
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A strip of land being a portion of Sherman Avenue lying in the Southeast Quarter of Section 13, 
Township 50 North, Range 4 West, Boise sdfMeridian, City of Post Falls, Kootenai County, Idaho and being 
more particularly described as follows: 

BEGINNING AT the Northwest corner of Lot 1, Block A according to the plat of Boughton & Kelso 
Addition, filed at Book A of Plats, Page 115, Records of Kootenai County, Idaho, on the South right of 
way of Sherman Avenue being a City concrete monument from which the Southwest corner of said Lot 
1, Block A bears SOo 06' 10"W 105.00 feet; 

thence NOo 06' 10"E 5.76 feet; 

thence S88° 08' 22"E 86.50 feet; 

thence SOo 04' 48"W 3.09 feet to the northeast corner of Lot 2, Block A of said Plat of Boughton & Kelso 
on said South right of way being a )12 inch rebar with yellow plastic cap marked PLS 4182; 

thence along said South right of way, N89° 54' 44"W 86.46 feet to the True Point of Beginning; 

said strip of land being 382 square feet of land, more or less. 
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COUNCIL BILL NO. 15-1019 
ORDINANCE NO. ____ 

 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE, VACATING A PORTION OF 
PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY IN THE GOVERNMENT WAY COMMERCIAL PARK PLAT, 
RECORDED IN BOOK “G” OF PLATS, PAGE 294, RECORDS OF KOOTENAI COUNTY, 
GENERALLY DESCRIBED AS A PORTION OF GOVERNMENT WAY RIGHT-OF-WAY 
ADJOINING THE WESTERLY BOUNDARY OF LOT 1, BLOCK 1 LYING IN THE 
SOUTHEAST QUARTER  OF SECTION 12, TOWNSHIP 50 NORTH, RANGE 4 WEST, BOISE 
MERIDIAN, CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE, KOOTENAI COUNTY, IDAHO; REPEALING ALL 
ORDINANCES AND PARTS OF ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; PROVIDING A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING FOR THE PUBLICATION OF A SUMMARY OF 
THIS ORDINANCE AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE HEREOF. 
 

WHEREAS, after public hearing, the City Council finds it to be in the best interests of the 
City of Coeur d'Alene and the citizens thereof that said portions of right-of-way be vacated; NOW, 
THEREFORE, 
 

BE IT ORDAINED, by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Coeur d'Alene: 
 
SECTION 1.  That the following described property, to wit: 
 

All of the fourteen foot (14’) strip of right-of-way adjoining the westerly boundary of Lot 1, 
Block 1 according to the plat of Government Way Commercial Park, filed at Book G of 
Plats, Page 294, Records of Kootenai County, Idaho; 
 
said strip of land being 2,523 square feet of land, more or less. 

 
 be and the same is hereby vacated.   
 
SECTION 2.  That said vacated right-of-way shall revert to the adjoining property owner of 
the east. 
 
 
SECTION 3.  That the existing right-of-way, easements, and franchise rights of any lot 
owners, public utility, or the City of Coeur d’Alene shall not be impaired by this vacation, as 
provided by law, and that the adjoining property owners shall in no manner place any obstruction 
over any public utilities.   
 
 
SECTION 4.   All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are 
hereby repealed. 
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SECTION 5.   After its passage and adoption, a summary of this Ordinance, under the 
provisions of the Idaho Code, shall be published once in the official newspaper of the City of 
Coeur d'Alene, and upon such publication shall be in full force and effect.  
 
 Passed under suspension of rules upon which a roll call vote was duly taken and duly 
enacted an Ordinance of the City of Coeur d’Alene at a regular session of the City Council on 
September 15, 2015. 
 
 

APPROVED by the Mayor this 15th day of September, 2015. 
 
 

____________________________ 
Steve Widmyer, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Renata McLeod, City Clerk 
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SUMMARY OF COEUR D'ALENE ORDINANCE NO. ____ 
V-15-5, GOVERNMENT WAY RIGHT-OF-WAY VACATION 

 
 The City of Coeur d'Alene, Idaho hereby gives notice of the adoption of Coeur d'Alene 
Ordinance No. ____, vacating a portion of Government Way right-of-way. 
 
 Such right-of-way is more particularly described as follows: 
 

All of the fourteen foot (14’) strip of right-of-way adjoining the westerly boundary of Lot 1, 
Block 1 according to the plat of Government Way Commercial Park, filed at Book G of 
Plats, Page 294, Records of Kootenai County, Idaho; 
 
said strip of land being 2,523 square feet of land, more or less. 

 
 
 The ordinance further provides that the ordinance shall be effective upon publication of 
this summary.  The full text of the summarized Ordinance No. ____ is available at Coeur d'Alene 
City Hall, 710 E. Mullan Avenue, Coeur d'Alene, Idaho 83814 in the office of the City Clerk. 
 
 
 
             
       Renata McLeod, City Clerk 
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STATEMENT OF LEGAL ADVISOR 
 
      I, Warren J. Wilson, am a Deputy City Attorney for the City of Coeur d'Alene, Idaho.  I 
have examined the attached summary of Coeur d'Alene Ordinance No. ____, V-15-5, vacating a 
portion of Government Way right-of-way and find it to be a true and complete summary of said 
ordinance which provides adequate notice to the public of the context thereof.  
 
     DATED this 15th day of September, 2015. 
 
 
                                          
                                  Warren J. Wilson, Chief Civil Deputy City Attorney 
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Staff Report  
Date:       September 15, 2015  
From:      Troy Tymesen, Finance Director 
Subject:  Public Transit Funding Agreement 
 
Decision Point: 
To approve the one year agreement and funding for the City’s portion of the public transportation within the 
urbanized area of Kootenai County, also called the Kootenai County Transit System. 
 
History: 
The 2000 census designated the cities of Coeur d’Alene, Post Falls, Hayden, Huetter and Dalton Gardens, 
as an urbanized area within Kootenai County.  The transit service in the urbanized area of the County is a 
cooperative effort between the cities, the County, the Coeur d’ Alene Tribe, Kootenai Health, the Post Falls 
Highway District and the Kootenai Metropolitan Planning Organization.  The 2010 population of Kootenai 
County based on the US Census data was 138,494.  Approximately 98,378 residents are within the 
Kootenai county urban transit service area of 47 square miles.  This agreement is for the next fiscal year, 
October 1, 2015 through September 30, 2016.  The City Council approved this agreement last year. 
 
Financial Analysis: 
The City is being asked to fund $43,983, the same amount as last year.  The proposed expenditure is 
included in the current financial plan, under the Engineering Department General Ledger # 001-020-4322-
4810. The City’s portion is based on its population within the urbanized area.  This money is being used as 
a match for funds from the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Section 5307 funds.   Funding covers 
operations, maintenance, vehicle procurements, and administration of the system.  
 
Performance Analysis: 
The funding of the requested $43,983.00 is less than 2.0% of the total public transportation budget.  The 
City also provides the service of the Specialized Needs Recreation Van that was acquired with grant funds. 
 
Quality of Life Analysis: 
The Citylink fixed route service provides 3 routes within the urbanized area and facilitated over 400,000 
passenger trips last year.    Citylink also provides fixed route and paratransit service in the rural southern 
part of the county rural.  Kootenai Health provides paratransit service for medical trips providing 
approximately 18,873 trips annually.  Kootenai County contracts a private transit service contractor to 
provide service under the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA).  This service provides door to door 
service for qualified disabled individuals, service start-up was August of 2011. Last year Kootenai County 
Paratransit provided in excess of 12,685 passenger trips.      
 
Decision Point/Recommendation: 
To approve the one year agreement and funding for the City’s portion of the public transportation within the 
urbanized area of Kootenai County, also called the Kootenai County Transit System. 





RESOLUTION NO. 15-049 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE, KOOTENAI COUNTY, IDAHO 
AUTHORIZING A PUBLIC TRANSIT LETTER OF AGREEMENT WITH KOOTENAI 
COUNTY. 

WHEREAS, staff is recommending that the City of Coeur d'Alene enter into a Public Transit 
Letter of Agreement with Kootenai County, pursuant to terms and conditions set forth in an 
agreement, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit "1" and by reference made a part hereof; 
and 

WHEREAS, it is deemed to be in the best interests of the City of Coeur d'Alene and the 
citizens thereof to enter into  such agreement; NOW, THEREFORE, 

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Coeur d'Alene that the City 
enter into a Public Transit Letter of Agreement with Kootenai County, in substantially the form 
attached hereto as Exhibit "1" and incorporated herein by reference with the provision that the 
Mayor, City Administrator, and City Attorney are hereby authorized to modify said agreement to the 
extent the substantive provisions of the agreement remain intact. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Mayor and City Clerk be and they are hereby 
authorized to execute such agreement on  behalf of the City. 

DATED this 15th day of September, 2015.  

_____________________________ 
Steve Widmyer, Mayor   

ATTEST: 

_____________________________ 
Renata McLeod, City Clerk 
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     Motion by _______________, Seconded by _______________, to adopt the foregoing 
resolution.   
 
ROLL CALL:  

 COUNCIL MEMBER GOOKIN Voted _____ 

 COUNCIL MEMBER MCEVERS Voted _____ 

 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER Voted _____ 

 COUNCIL MEMBER EDINGER Voted _____ 

 COUNCIL MEMBER EVANS Voted _____ 

 COUNCIL MEMBER ADAMS Voted _____ 

 
_________________________ was absent.  Motion ____________. 
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 FINANCE DEPARTMENT  

710 E. Mullan Avenue  
Coeur d’ Alene, Idaho 83814 

(208)769-2225 – FAX (208)769-2284 
www.cdaid.org  

 

 

 
 
 
Date:   September 15, 2015 
 
      
From:      Troy Tymesen, Finance Director 
Subject:  Annual agreement for the City audit 
 
Decision Point: To enter into the annual engagement agreement with Anderson Bros., CPA’s, P.A. 
accounting firm to conduct the 2014-2015 Fiscal Year audit. 
 
History:  The City conducts an annual audit to comply with Idaho State Statues and the National 
Recognized Municipal Securities Information Repositories (NRMSIRs).  
   
Financial Analysis:  The City solicited quotes for audit services from two other qualified municipal 
audit firms.  One quote was received from Eide Bailey CPA firm in Boise and one was received from 
Magnuson, McHugh & Co. The cost for this service is included in the Fiscal Year 2015-2016 financial 
plan at the amount of $32,500 in the Finance Department under GL #001-003-4151-3100.  Anderson 
Bros. has quoted the cost at $27,500.00, which includes a Single Audit.  This is a $4,698 decrease 
from what the City paid for the Fiscal Year 2013-14 audit.  
 
Performance Analysis:  The City has not had an audit done with Anderson Bros in the past. The 
personnel that would be conducting this audit have over 44 years of combined governmental 
accounting  and auditing experience and are offering their services at a very reasonable cost. 
 
Decision Point:  To enter into the annual engagement agreement with Anderson Bros., CPA’s, P.A. 
accounting firm to conduct the 2014-2015 Fiscal Year audit. 
 
 
 



  
 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-050 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE, KOOTENAI COUNTY, IDAHO 
AUTHORIZING THE APPROVAL OF AN AGREEMENT WITH ANDERSON BROS. CPA’S, 
P.A. FOR THE ANNUAL CITY AUDIT. 
         

WHEREAS, staff is recommending that the City of Coeur d'Alene enter into an Agreement 
with Anderson Bros. CPA’s, pursuant to terms and conditions set forth in said agreement, a copy of 
which is attached hereto as Exhibit "A" and by reference made a part hereof; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is deemed to be in the best interests of the City of Coeur d'Alene and the 
citizens thereof to enter into such agreement; NOW, THEREFORE, 
  

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Coeur d'Alene that the City 
enter into an Agreement with Anderson Bros. CPA’s, in substantially the form attached hereto as 
Exhibit "A" and incorporated herein by reference with the provision that the Mayor, City 
Administrator, and City Attorney are hereby authorized to modify said agreement to the extent the 
substantive provisions of the agreement remain intact. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Mayor and City Clerk be and they are hereby 
authorized to execute such agreement on  behalf of the City. 
 

DATED this 15th day of September, 2015.   
 
 
 
 
                                   _____________________________ 
                                   Steve Widmyer, Mayor  
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Renata McLeod, City Clerk 
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     Motion by _______________, Seconded by _______________, to adopt the foregoing 
resolution.   
 
     ROLL CALL: 
 

COUNCIL MEMBER GOOKIN  Voted _____ 
 

COUNCIL MEMBER MCEVERS  Voted _____ 
 

COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER  Voted _____ 
 

COUNCIL MEMBER EVANS   Voted _____ 
 
COUNCIL MEMBER ADAMS   Voted _____ 

 
COUNCIL MEMBER EDINGER  Voted _____ 

 
_________________________ was absent.  Motion ____________. 
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1810 E Schneidmiller Ave. Ste. 310 
Post Falls, Idaho   83854 

208-777-1099 (phone) 208-773-5108 (fax) 
 
 

AUDIT ENGAGEMENT LETTER 
 
 
September 9, 2015 
 
 
City of Coeur d’Alene 
City Council 
710 E. Mullan Ave. 
Coeur d’Alene, ID  83814 
 
Dear City Council 
 
We are pleased to confirm our understanding of the services we are to provide City of Coeur d’Alene for the 
year ended September 30, 2015.   We will audit the financial statements of governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the 
aggregate remaining fund information, including the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise the basic financial statements of the City of Coeur d’Alene as of and for the year ended 
September 30, 2015.  Accounting standards generally accepted in the United States of America provide for 
certain required supplementary information (RSI), such as management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A), to 
supplement the City of Coeur d’Alene’s basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of 
the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it 
to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context. As part of our engagement, we will apply certain limited 
procedures to City of Coeur d’Alene’s RSI in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America. These limited procedures will consist of inquiries of management regarding the 
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s 
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of 
the basic financial statements. We will not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information 
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any 
assurance. The following RSI is required by generally accepted accounting principles and will be subjected to 
certain limited procedures, but will not be audited: 
 

1. Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
2. Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

         Budget and Actual – General Fund 
3. Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

         Budget and Actual – Insurance Special Revenue Fund 
4. Police Retirement Trust Fund – Schedule of Employer Contributions, Five-Year Trend and Annual 

Development of Pension Costs 
5. Schedule of Funding Progress for Postemployment Benefit Plans 
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City of Coeur d’Alene 
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Page 2 
 
 
 
We have also been engaged to report on supplementary information other than RSI that accompanies City of 
Coeur d’Alene’s financial statements. We will subject the following supplementary information to the auditing 
procedures applied in our audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, and we will provide an 
opinion on it in relation to the financial statements as a whole, in a report combined with our auditor’s report 
on the financial statements: 
 

1. Schedule of expenditures of federal awards 
2. Combining Balance Sheet – By Fund Type – Nonmajor Governmental Funds 
3. Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Nonmajor 

Governmental Funds 
4. Explanation of Nonmajor Governmental Funds – Special Revenue Funds 
5. Combining Balance Sheet Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds 
6. Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Nonmajor Special 

Revenue Funds 
7. Explanation of Debt Service Funds 
8. Combining Balance Sheet Nonmajor Debt Service Funds 
9. Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Nonmajor Debt 

Service Funds 
10. Explanation of Capital Projects Funds 
11. Combining Balance Sheet Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds 
12. Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Nonmajor Capital 

Projects Funds 
13. Explanation of Nonmajor Business-Type Activities 
14. Combining Statement of Net Position – Nonmajor Proprietary Funds 
15. Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Nonmajor 

Proprietary Funds 
16. Combining Statement of Cash Flows – Nonmajor Proprietary Fund Types 

 
Audit Objectives 
 
The objective of our audit is the expression of opinions as to whether your financial statements are fairly 
presented, in all material respects, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and to 
report on the fairness of the supplementary information referred to in the second paragraph when considered in 
relation to the financial statements as a whole. The objective also includes reporting on-    
 

• Internal control related to the financial statements and compliance with the provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a material effect 
on the financial statements in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. 

 
• Internal control related to major programs and an opinion (or disclaimer of opinion) on compliance 

with laws, regulations, and the provisions of contracts or grant agreements that could have a direct and 
material effect on each major program in accordance with the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 
and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations 

 
The Government Auditing Standards report on internal control over financial reporting and on compliance and 
other matters will include a paragraph that states that (1) the purpose of the report is solely to describe the 
scope of testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion 
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on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on compliance, and (2) the report is an integral part of an 
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control 
and compliance. The OMB Circular A-133 report on internal control over compliance will include a paragraph 
that states that the purpose of the report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB 
Circular A-133. Both reports will state that the report is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
Our audit will be conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America; the standards for financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States; the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996; and the provisions of 
OMB Circular A-133, and will include tests of accounting records, a determination of major program(s) in 
accordance with OMB Circular A-133, and other procedures we consider necessary to enable us to express 
such opinions. We will issue written reports upon completion of our Single Audit. Our reports will be 
addressed to management and City Council of the City of Coeur d’Alene. We cannot provide assurance that 
unmodified opinions will be expressed. Circumstances may arise in which it is necessary for us to modify our 
opinions or add emphasis-of-matter or other-matter paragraphs. If our opinions on the financial statements or 
the Single Audit compliance opinions are other than unmodified, we will discuss the reasons with you in 
advance. If, for any reason, we are unable to complete the audit or are unable to form or have not formed 
opinions, we may decline to express opinions or issue reports, or may withdraw from this engagement. 
 
Audit Procedures - General 
 
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements; therefore, our audit will involve judgment about the number of transactions to be examined and the 
areas to be tested. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. We will plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable rather than 
absolute assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether from (1) 
errors, (2) fraudulent financial reporting, (3) misappropriation of assets, or (4) violations of laws or 
governmental regulations that are attributable to the entity or to acts by management or employees acting on 
behalf of the government. Because the determination of abuse is subjective, Government Auditing Standards 
do not expect auditors to provide reasonable assurance of detecting abuse. 
 
Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, combined with the inherent limitations of internal control, and 
because we will not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, there is a risk that material 
misstatements or noncompliance may exist and not be detected by us, even though the audit is properly 
planned and performed in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and Government 
Auditing Standards. In addition, an audit is not designed to detect immaterial misstatements or violations of 
laws or governmental regulations that do not have a direct and material effect on the financial statements or 
major programs. However, we will inform the appropriate level of management of any material errors, any 
fraudulent financial reporting, or misappropriation of assets that come to our attention.  We will also inform 
the appropriate level of management of any violations of laws or governmental regulations that come to our 
attention, unless clearly inconsequential, and of any material abuse that comes to our attention.  We will 
include such matters in the reports required for a Single Audit.  Our responsibility as auditors is limited to the 
period covered by our audit and does not extend to any later periods for which we are not engaged as auditors. 
 
Our procedures will include tests of documentary evidence supporting the transactions recorded in the 
accounts, and may include tests of the physical existence of inventories, and direct confirmation of receivables 
and certain other assets and liabilities by correspondence with selected individuals, funding sources, creditors, 
and financial institutions. We will request written representations from your attorneys as part of the 
engagement, and they may bill you for responding to this inquiry.  At the conclusion of our audit, we will 
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require certain written representations from you about your responsibilities for the financial statements; 
schedule of expenditures of federal awards; federal award programs; compliance with laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements; and other responsibilities required by generally accepted auditing standards. 
 
Audit Procedures - Internal Control 
 
Our audit will include obtaining an understanding of the entity and its environment, including internal control, 
sufficient to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements and to design the nature, 
timing, and extent of further audit procedures. Tests of controls may be performed to test the effectiveness of 
certain controls that we consider relevant to preventing and detecting errors and fraud that are material to the 
financial statements and to preventing and detecting misstatements resulting from illegal acts and other 
noncompliance matters that have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. Our tests, if 
performed, will be less in scope than would be necessary to render an opinion on internal control and, 
accordingly, no opinion will be expressed in our report on internal control issued pursuant to Government 
Auditing Standards. 
 
As required by OMB Circular A-133, we will perform tests of controls over compliance to evaluate the 
effectiveness of the design and operation of controls that we consider relevant to preventing or detecting 
material noncompliance with compliance requirements applicable to each major federal award program. 
However, our tests will be less in scope than would be necessary to render an opinion on those controls and, 
accordingly, no opinion will be expressed in our report on internal control issued pursuant to OMB Circular A-
133. 
 
An audit is not designed to provide assurance on internal control or to identify significant deficiencies or 
material weaknesses. However, during the audit, we will communicate to management and those charged with 
governance internal control related matters that are required to be communicated under AICPA professional 
standards, Government Auditing Standards, and OMB Circular A-133. 
 
Audit Procedures – Compliance 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement, we will perform tests of the City of Coeur d’Alene’s compliance with the provisions of 
applicable laws, regulations, contracts, agreements, including grant agreements. However, the objective of 
those procedures will not be to provide an opinion on overall compliance and we will not express such an 
opinion in our report on compliance issued pursuant to Government Auditing Standards. 
 
OMB Circular A-133 requires that we also plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the auditee has complied with applicable laws and regulations and the provisions of contracts and 
grant agreements applicable to major programs. Our procedures will consist of tests of transactions and other 
applicable procedures described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement for the types of 
compliance requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each of the City of Coeur d’Alene’s 
major programs. The purpose of these procedures will be to express an opinion on the City of Coeur d’Alene’s 
compliance with requirements applicable to each of its major programs in our report on compliance issued 
pursuant to OMB Circular A-133. 
 
Management Responsibilities 
 
Management is responsible for (1) establishing and maintaining effective internal controls, including 
evaluating and monitoring ongoing activities, to help ensure that appropriate goals and objectives are met; (2) 
following laws and regulations; (3) ensuring that there is reasonable assurance that government programs are 
administered in compliance with compliance requirements; and (4) ensuring that management and financial 
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information is reliable and properly reported.  Management is also responsible for implementing systems 
designed to achieve compliance with applicable laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements.  You are 
responsible for the selection and application of accounting principles: for the preparation and fair presentation 
of the financial statements, schedule of expenditures of federal awards, and all accompanying information in 
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; and for compliance with applicable laws and 
regulations and the provisions of contracts and grant agreements. 
 
Management is also responsible for making all financial records and related information available to us and for 
the accuracy and completeness of that information.  You are also responsible for providing us with (1) access 
to all information of which you are aware that is relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements, (2) additional information that we may request for the purpose of the audit, and (3) 
unrestricted access to persons within the government from whom we determine it necessary to obtain audit 
evidence.    
 
Your responsibilities also include identifying significant vendor relationships in which the vendor has 
responsibility for program compliance and for the accuracy and completeness of that information. Your 
responsibilities include adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements and confirming to 
us in the management representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements aggregated by us 
during the current engagement and pertaining to the latest period presented are immaterial, both individually 
and in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole. 
 
You are responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent and detect fraud, 
and for informing us about all known or suspected fraud affecting the government involving (1) management, 
(2) employees who have significant roles in internal control, and (3) others where the fraud could have a 
material effect on the financial statements. Your responsibilities include informing us of your knowledge of 
any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the government received in communications from 
employees, former employees, grantors, regulators, or others. In addition, you are responsible for identifying 
and ensuring that the government complies with applicable laws, regulations, contracts, agreements, and 
grants. Management is also responsible for taking timely and appropriate steps to remedy fraud and 
noncompliance with provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, or abuse that we report. 
Additionally, as required by OMB Circular A-133, it is management’s responsibility to follow up and take 
corrective action on reported audit findings and to prepare a summary schedule of prior audit findings and a 
corrective action plan. The summary schedule of prior audit findings should be available for our review on 
September 15, 2015. 
 
You are responsible for identifying all federal awards received and understanding and complying with the 
compliance requirements and for the preparation of the schedule of expenditures of federal awards (including 
notes and noncash assistance received) in conformity with OMB Circular A-133. You agree to include our 
report on the schedule of expenditures of federal awards in any document that contains and indicates that we 
have reported on the schedule of expenditures of federal awards. You also agree to include the audited 
financial statements with any presentation of the schedule of expenditures of federal awards that includes our 
report thereon. Your responsibilities include acknowledging to us in the written representation letter that (1) 
you are responsible for presentation of the schedule of expenditures of federal awards in accordance with 
OMB Circular A-133; (2) you believe the schedule of expenditures of federal awards, including its form and 
content, is fairly presented in accordance with OMB Circular A-133; (3) the methods of measurement or 
presentation have not changed from those used in the prior period (or, if they have changed, the reasons for 
such changes); and (4) you have disclosed to us any significant assumptions or interpretations underlying the 
measurement or presentation of the schedule of expenditures of federal awards. 
 
You are responsible for the preparation of the other supplementary information, which we have been engaged 
to report on, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. You agree to include our report 
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on the supplementary information in any document that contains and indicates that we have reported on the 
supplementary information. You also agree to include the audited financial statements with any presentation of 
the supplementary information that includes our report thereon. Your responsibilities include acknowledging 
to us in the written representation letter that (1) you are responsible for presentation of the supplementary 
information in accordance with GAAP; (2) you believe the supplementary information, including its form and 
content, is fairly presented in accordance with GAAP; (3) the methods of measurement or presentation have 
not changed from those used in the prior period (or, if they have changed, the reasons for such changes); and 
(4) you have disclosed to us any significant assumptions or interpretations underlying the measurement or 
presentation of the supplementary information. 
 
Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining a process for tracking the status of audit findings 
and recommendations. Management is also responsible for identifying and providing report copies of previous 
financial audits, attestation engagements, performance audits or other studies related to the objectives 
discussed in the Audit Objectives section of this letter. This responsibility includes relaying to us corrective 
actions taken to address significant findings and recommendations resulting from those audits, attestation 
engagements, performance audits, or other studies. You are also responsible for providing management’s 
views on our current findings, conclusions, and recommendations, as well as your planned corrective actions, 
for the report, and for the timing and format for providing that information. 
 
You agree to assume all management responsibilities relating to the financial statements, schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards, and related notes. You will be required to acknowledge in the management 
representation letter our assistance with preparation of the financial statements, schedule of expenditures of 
federal awards and related notes and that you have reviewed and approved the financial statements and related 
notes prior to their issuance and have accepted responsibility for them. Further, you agree to oversee the 
nonaudit services by designating an individual, preferably from senior management, with suitable skill, 
knowledge, or experience; evaluate the adequacy and results of those services; and accept responsibility for 
them. 
 
Engagement Administration, Fees, and Other 
 
We may from time to time, and depending on the circumstances, use third-party service providers in serving 
your account. We may share confidential information about you with these service providers, but remain 
committed to maintaining the confidentiality and security of your information. Accordingly, we maintain 
internal policies, procedures, and safeguards to protect the confidentiality of your personal information. In 
addition, we will secure confidentiality agreements with all service providers to maintain the confidentiality of 
your information and we will take reasonable precautions to determine that they have appropriate procedures 
in place to prevent the unauthorized release of your confidential information to others. In the event that we are 
unable to secure an appropriate confidentiality agreement, you will be asked to provide your consent prior to 
the sharing of your confidential information with the third-party service provider. Furthermore, we will remain 
responsible for the work provided by any such third-party service providers. 
 
We understand that your employees will prepare all cash or other confirmations we request and will locate any 
documents selected by us for testing. 
 
At the conclusion of the engagement, we will complete the appropriate sections of the Data Collection Form 
that summarizes our audit findings. It is management’s responsibility to submit the reporting package 
(including financial statements, schedule of expenditures of federal awards, summary schedule of prior audit 
findings, auditors’ reports, and corrective action plan) along with the Data Collection Form to the federal audit 
clearinghouse. We will coordinate with you the electronic submission and certification. If applicable, we will 
provide copies of our report for you to include with the reporting package you will submit to pass-through 
entities. The Data Collection Form and the reporting package must be submitted within the earlier of 30 days 
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after receipt of the auditors’ reports or nine months after the end of the audit period, unless a longer period is 
agreed to in advance by the cognizant or oversight agency for audits. 
 
We will provide copies of our reports to the City of Coeur d’Alene; however, management is responsible for 
distribution of the reports and the financial statements. Unless restricted by law or regulation, or containing 
privileged and confidential information, copies of our reports are to be made available for public inspection. 
 
The audit documentation for these engagements is the property of Anderson Bros. CPA’s, P.A. and constitutes 
confidential information.  However, subject to applicable laws and regulations, audit documentation and 
appropriate individuals will be made available upon request and in a timely manner to Federal or State officials 
or their designees, a federal agency providing direct or indirect funding, or the U.S. Government 
Accountability Office for purposes of a quality review of the audits, to resolve audit findings, or to carry our 
oversight responsibilities.  We will notify you of any such request.  If requested, access to such audit 
documentation will be provided under the supervision of Anderson Bros. CPA’s, P.A. personnel.  
Furthermore, upon request, we may provide copies of selected audit documentation to the aforementioned 
parties.  These parties may intend, or decide, to distribute the copies or information contained therein to others, 
including other governmental agencies. 
 
The audit documentation for these engagements will be retained for a minimum of five years after the report 
release dates or for any additional period requested by Federal or State officials.  If we are aware that a federal 
awarding agency or auditee is contesting an audit finding, we will contact the party(ies) contesting the audit 
finding for guidance prior to destroying the audit documentation. 
 
We expect to begin our audit on approximately September 15, 2015 and to issue our reports no later than 
March 10, 2016.  Toni Hackwith is the engagement partner and is responsible for supervising the engagement 
and signing the reports or authorizing another individual to sign them. 
 
Our fees for these services will be at our standard hourly rates plus out-of-pocket costs (such as report 
reproduction, word processing, postage, travel, copies, telephone, etc.) except that we agree that our gross fee, 
including expenses, will not exceed $27,500.  Our standard hourly rates vary according to the degree of 
responsibility involved and the experience level of the personnel assigned to your audit.  Our invoices for these 
fees will be rendered each month as work progresses and are payable on presentation.  In accordance with our 
firm policies, work may be suspended if your account becomes 60 days or more overdue and may not be 
resumed until your account is paid in full.  If we elect to terminate our services for nonpayment, our 
engagement will be deemed to have been completed upon written notification of termination, even if we have 
not completed our report(s).  You will be obligated to compensate us for all time expended and to reimburse us 
for all out-of-pocket costs through the date of termination.  The above fees are based on anticipated 
cooperation from your personnel and the assumption that unexpected circumstances will not be encountered 
during the audit.  If significant additional time is necessary, we will discuss it with you and arrive at a new fee 
estimate before we incur the additional costs. 
 
We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to City of Coeur d’Alene and believe this letter accurately 
summarizes the significant terms of our engagements.  If you have any questions, please let us know.  If you 
agree with the terms of our engagements as described in this letter, please sign the enclosed copy and return it 
to us. 
 

Sincerely 
 

 
Anderson Bros. CPA’s, P.A. 
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RESPONSE: 
 
This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of City of Coeur d’Alene: 
 
 
Management Signature:     ___________________________________ 
 
Title:  ___________________________________ 
 
Date:  ___________________________________ 
  
 
 
Governance Signature:     ___________________________________ 
 
Title:  ___________________________________ 
 
Date:  ___________________________________ 
 

Resolution No. 15-050 Exhibit "A"



PUBLIC HEARINGS 



FINANCE DEPARTMENT

c6'"'di d'Alene
IDAHO

710 E. Mullan Avenue
Coeur d' Alene, Idaho 83814

(208)76e-2225 - FAX (208)769-2284
www.cdaid.org

STAFF REPORT

Date: September 15,2015

From: Troy Tymesen, Finance Director

Subject: Amendment to the 2014-2015 Fiscal Year Appropriations (Budget)

Decision Point:
To approve Ordinance No 3519 to amend the Fiscal Year 2014-15 Budget by a total of
$3,641 ,525.

History:
The City Council annually amends the original appropriations ordinance for unanticipated
expenditures.

Financial Analysis:
Idaho code allows the City Council at any time during the current fiscal year to amend the

appropriations ordinance to reflect the receipt of revenues and/or the expenditure of funds

that were unanticipated when the ordinance was adopted. The City each year adopts an

amendment or amendments to the appropriation's ordinance.

Performance Analysis:
The budget amendment shows increases in expenditures due to carryovers of projects, a

retirement accumulated leave payout, additional overtime in Fire and Police, State and

Federal grants received, property purchase and a vehicle purchased with funds received

from the School District. Additional revenues of $l ,212,121 is projected to be received in

the General Fund to cover the increased expenses for the fiscal year and $ 1,508,589 is

projected to come from fund balance for project carryovers.

Decision Point:
To approve Ordinance No 3519 to amend the Fiscal Year 2014-15 Budget by a total of
$3,641 ,525.



CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE
FISCAL YEAR 2014-15 BUDGET AMENDMENT

FY 14-15
BUDGETED

FY 14-15
PROJECTED

Projected
lncrease

TAXES
CURRENT YEAR

FEES & LICENSES
CABLE ry
NATURAL GAS
ELECTRICITY
BUSINESS LICENSES
BLDG/INSPECTN
BLDG/INSPECTN MECHANICAL
STORMWATER REVIEW
PLUMBING INSPECTION
ENCROACHMENT PERMITS
ELECTRICAL PERMITS
BUSINESS PERMITS
BURN PERMITS
SIGN PERMITS
ANNEXZONING FEES
FIRE DEPT PERMITS

TOTAL FEES AND LICENSES

INTERGOVERNMENTAL

4,672,938 4,848,87I

17 .029.716 17 ,029,716

335,000
698,000

1,995,000
80,000

1,155,478
90,000
15,000

140,000
22,000
15,000
24,000

460
19,000
16,000
68,000

355,000
776,000

2,015,000
95,400

1,155,478
90,000
20,500

154,500
25,000
15,000
35,000

500
19,000
24,500
68,000

20,000
78,000
20,000
15,400

0

5,500
14,500
3,000

0
1 1,000

40
0

8,500
0

LIQUOR
HIGHWAY USER
REVENUE SHARE
SALES TAx
HIGHWAY DIST
KOOTENAI CNTY EMSS
FEDERAL GRANT
STATE GRANT
SCHOOL RESOURCE OFFICER
COST OF PROSECUTION (THRU CNTY)
OTHER INCOME (THRU CNTY)

TOTAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL

SERVICES
BID SPECS
RESTITUTION
FEES FOR DOCUMENT PREP

POLICE
FIRE
BILLING SERVICES
PARKING PERMITS
RECREATION
PRINTING AND PHOTOCOPYING
MAP/CODE BOOKS

TOTAL SERVICES

1,050,000
1,516,s11
2,123,571

818,902
670,000

1,556,000
167,963

415,000

25,000

1,050,000
1,550,000
2,'t23,571

818,902
670,000

1,s56,000
13,182
64,679

440,000

175,000

17 5,940

0
33,489

0
0
0
0

('154,78't)
64,679
25,000

0
150,000

8,342,947

1 ,100
350
350

'17,000

9,000
1,000
1,600

209,000
200
250

1,100
350

1,200
17,000
10,600

1,000
1,600

209,000
650
250

0
1 ,600

0

0
0

450
0

2,900

0
0

850



CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE
FISCAL YEAR 20,14-15 BUDGET AMENDMENT

FINES/FORFEITS

DISTRICT COURT
PEN/ INTEREST ON PROP TAXES
PARKING
DRUG TASK FORCE
LATE FEE ON UTILITY BILLS
ANIMAL CITATION FINES
ORDINANCE VIOLATIONS
NSF CHECK FEES

TOTAL FINES AND FORFEITS

INTEREST EARNINGS

INTEREST EARNINGS

MISCELLANEOUS

SURPLUS SALE
RENTS & ROYALTIES
CDA TV DONATIONS
PROCEEDS FROM GRADER LEASE
2015 GO BOND PROCEEDS
DONATIONS JR TACKLE
OTHER

TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS

TRANSFERS

INTERFUND TRANSFER
TRANSFERS IN

TOTAL TRANSFERS

DESIGNATED FUND BALANCE
FUND BALANCE

TOTAL FUND BALANCE

TOTALS

FY 14-15
BUDGETED

FY 14-15
PROJECTED

Projected
lncrease

(14,500)

0
0
0

214,075
s05,000

38,319
172,000

---l2e3e4

'1,508,589

0

250,000
140,000
50,000
20,000
42,000
13,100

600
'1,400

250,000
140,000
50,000
20,000
42,000
13,100

600
1 ,400

517.100 517 100

21,000

100,000
19,700
10,000

20,000

6,500

100,000
19,700
10,000

214,075
505,000

38,319
'192,000

149.700 079,094

1,386,533
457 ,490

1,386,533
457 ,490

0
0
0

1,844,023

60,465

844.023 n

1,s69,054

60,465

32,877,739

569,054 1,508,589

35,598,449 ____2120119_

n

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0



CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE
FISCAL YEAR 2014-15 BUDGET AMENDMENT

FY 14-15
BUDGETED

FY 14-15
PROJECTED

Projected
lncreaseSUMMARY

Property Taxes
Fees and Licenses
lntergovernmental
Services
Fines and Forfeits
lnterest
Miscellaneous
lnterfund Transfer
Beginning Balance

TOTAL GENERAL FUND

17,029,716
4,672,938
8,342,947

239,850
517,100

21 ,000
149,700

1,844,023
60,465

17 ,O29,716
4,848,878
8,461,334

242,750
517,100

6,500
1,079,094
1,844,023
1,569,054

U

175,940
118,387

2,900
0

(14,500)
929,394

0
1,508,589

$ 32,877,739 $ 3s,598,449 $ 2,720,710

General Fund - Added Expenses

Building Maintenance - Solid Wast Fees McEuen
Building Maintenance - City Hall Roof
Police Dept - Retirement leave payout
Police Dept - Police Car
Police Dept - Police Car from NIC SRO funding
Police Dept - 3 New offlcers
Police Dept - lncrease to Travel & Training per Contract re: Tuition Reimb from previous year
Police Dept - lncrease to Tuition Reimbursement per Contract
Police Dept - Federal & State Grants for Overtime and Travel
Police Dept - JAG Grants 2013 & 2014 Carryover
Fire Dept - 2 lnspector Vehicles - GO Bond
Fire Dept - 1 Battalion Chief Unit - GO Bond
Fire Dept - 2 Utility Trucks - GO Bond
Fire Dept - 4 Command Vehicles - GO Bond

Fire Dept - 2015 GO Bond Sale Expenses
Fire Dept - PERSI Savings Used to Fund Police Officers
General Government - BNSF Right of Way Property Purchase

Street Dept - Sweeper Replacement
Street Dept - Grader
Street Dept - Grader Lease Payment
Engineering - Overlay Carryover from FY '13-14

Parks Dept - lncrease in Parks Operating Supplies
Parks Dept - Joint Powers Agreement - lnvoice from 2013-14 FY

Recreation - Storage structure at Person Field

4,000
4,000

67 ,400
56, 144

Jr,oc/
57,669
'13,599

11,200
15,725
13,182

100,000
85,000
70,000

250,000
6,700

(57,66e)
1,070,000

177,465
214,075

20,591
448,302

15,300
7,500

38,870

Cost



CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE
FISCAL YEAR 2014-15 BUDGET AMENDMENT

Other Funds - Added Expenses

Library Fund - State Grants for training
Street Lighting - Annual Operation
Capital Projects - Front Avenue Project Carryover
Capital Projects - 15th St - Harrison to Best
Capital Projects - Seltice Way Sidewalks
Capital Projects - Seltice Way
Capital Projects - Government Way Pro.ject - Carryover
2015 A & B G.O. Bond Expenses
Wastewater Fund - Loader Lease Payments
Sanitation Fund - Garbage Collection
Drainage Fund - Sweeper Replacement
Parks Capital lmprovements Fund - Northshire Park pickleball courts
Parks Capital lmprovements Fund - Tubbs Hill Trail
Parks Capital lmprovements Fund - McEuen Park Carryover
Parks Capital lmprovements Fund - 4 Corners / BLM ProJect

Cost

2,700
70,000
63,000
10,000
7,000
5,100

100,000
55,000
26,000

235,000
177 ,465
23,000
55,000
62,000
29,550



 Fiscal Year  

2014-2015  
Budget Amendment 



SUMMARY FY 14-15 
BUDGETED 

FY 14-15 
PROJECTED 

PROJECTED 
INCREASE 

 Property Taxes  17,029,716  
                  

17,029,716  0  

 Fees and Licenses 4,672,938  4,848,878  175,940  

 Intergovernmental 8,342,947  8,461,334  118,387  

 Services 239,850  242,750  2,900  

 Fines and Forfeits 517,100  517,100  0  

 Interest 21,000  6,500  (14,500) 

 Miscellaneous 149,700  1,079,094  929,394  

 Interfund Transfer 1,844,023  1,844,023  0  

 Beginning Balance 60,465  1,569,054  1,508,589  

TOTAL GENERAL 
FUND   $32,877,739  

                   
$35,598,449   $2,720,710  



General Fund – Added Expenses Cost 
Building Maintenance - Solid Waste Fees McEuen  4,000  

Building Maintenance - City Hall Roof 4,000  

Police Dept - Retirement leave payout 67,400  

Police Dept - Police Car 56,144  

Police Dept - Police Car from NIC SRO funding 31,657  

Police Dept - 3 New officers  57,669  

Police Dept - Increase to Travel & Training per Contract re: 
Tuition Reimb from previous year 13,599  

Police Dept - Increase to Tuition Reimbursement per Contract 11,200  



General Fund – Added Expenses Cost 

Police Dept - Federal & State Grants for Overtime and Travel 15,725  

Police Dept - JAG Grants 2013 & 2014 Carryover 13,182  

Fire Dept - 2 Inspector Vehicles - GO Bond 100,000  

Fire Dept - 1 Battalion Chief Unit - GO Bond 85,000  

Fire Dept - 2 Utility Trucks - GO Bond 70,000  

Fire Dept - 4 Command Vehicles - GO Bond 250,000  

Fire Dept - 2015 GO Bond Sale Expenses 6,700  

Fire Dept - PERSI Savings Used to Fund Police Officers (57,669) 



General Fund – Added Expenses Cost 
General Government - BNSF Right of Way Property Purchase 1,070,000  

Street Dept - Sweeper Replacement 177,465  

Street Dept - Grader 214,075  

Street Dept - Grader Lease Payment 20,591  

Engineering - Overlay Carryover from FY 13-14  448,302  

Parks Dept - Increase in Parks Operating Supplies 15,300  

Parks Dept - Joint Powers Agreement - Invoice from 2013-14 FY 7,500  

Recreation - Storage structure at Person Field 38,870  

TOTAL $2,720,710 



Other Funds – Added Expenses Cost 
Library Fund - State Grants for training 2,700  

Street Lighting - Annual Operation 70,000  

Capital Projects - Front Avenue Project Carryover 63,000  

Capital Projects - 15th St - Harrison to Best 10,000  

Capital Projects - Seltice Way Sidewalks 7,000  

Capital Projects - Seltice Way  5,100  

Capital Projects - Government Way Project - Carryover 100,000  

2015 A & B G.O. Bond Expenses 55,000  



Other Funds – Added Expenses Cost 
Wastewater Fund - Loader Lease Payments 26,000  

Sanitation Fund - Garbage Collection 235,000  

Drainage Fund - Sweeper Replacement 177,465  

Parks Capital Improvements Fund - Northshire Park pickleball 
courts 23,000  

Parks Capital Improvements Fund - Tubbs Hill Trail 55,000  

Parks Capital Improvements Fund - McEuen Park Carryover 62,000  

Parks Capital Improvements Fund - 4 Corners / BLM Project 29,550  

TOTAL $920,815 



Questions? 



 

 COUNCIL BILL NO. 15-1020 
ORDINANCE NO. ____ 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE 3493, THE ANNUAL 

APPROPRIATION ORDINANCE FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 
2014 APPROPRIATING THE SUM OF $74,561,945 $78,203,470, WHICH SUM INCLUDES 
ADDITIONAL MONIES RECEIVED BY THE CITY OF COEUR D’ALENE IN THE SUM 
OF $3,641,525; REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES AND PARTS OF ORDINANCES IN 
CONFLICT HEREWITH; PROVIDE FOR THE PUBLICATION OF A SUMMARY OF THIS 
ORDINANCE AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE HEREOF. 
 

BE IT ORDAINED, by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Coeur d'Alene, 
Kootenai County, Idaho: 
 
 Section 1 
 

That Section 1 of Ordinance 3493, Ordinance of the City of Coeur d’Alene, be and the 
same is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 
That the sum of $74,561,945 $78,203,470, be and the same is hereby appropriated to 

defray the necessary expenses and liabilities of the City of Coeur d'Alene, Kootenai County, 
Idaho, for the fiscal year beginning October 1, 2014. 
 
 Section 2 
 

That Section 2 of Ordinance 3493; Ordinances of the City of Coeur d’Alene be and the 
same is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 
That the objects and purposes for which such appropriations are made are as follows: 
 

 

GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES:

Mayor and Council 237,027$      

Administration 294,883

Finance Department 735,745

Municipal Services 1,552,600

Human Resources 246,929

Legal Department 1,476,346

Planning Department 549,988

Building Maintenance 480,102 488,102     
Police Department 11,216,460 11,483,036  
Drug Task Force 25,710
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ADA Sidewalks 265,657

COPS Grant 169,690

Fire Department 8,265,708 8,719,739   
General Government 49,150 1,119,150   
Engineering Services 1,287,825 1,736,127   
Streets/Garage 2,515,577 2,927,708   
Parks Department 1,869,944 1,892,744   
Recreation Department 796,341 835,211     
Building Inspection 842,057

     TOTAL GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES: 32,877,739$   35,598,449$ 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND EXPENDITURES:

Library Fund 1,387,111$    1,389,811   
Community Development Block Grant 359,966

Impact Fee Fund 194,956

Parks Capital Improvements 244,000 413,550     
Annexation Fee Fund 117,000

Insurance / Risk Management 420,000

Cemetery Fund 284,190

Cemetery Perpetual Care Fund 97,500

Jewett House 67,089

Reforestation/Street Trees/Community Canopy 68,500

Arts Commission 6,750

Public Art Funds 210,600

     TOTAL SPECIAL FUNDS:                               3,457,662$    3,629,912$  

ENTERPRISE FUND EXPENDITURES:

Street Lighting Fund 535,600$      605,600     
Water Fund 8,325,955

Wastewater Fund 14,709,771 14,790,771  
Water Cap Fee Fund 700,000

WWTP Cap Fees Fund 1,913,000

Sanitation Fund 3,560,334 3,795,334   
City Parking Fund 220,840

Drainage Fund 1,179,109 1,356,574   
     TOTAL ENTERPRISE EXPENDITURES:         31,144,609$   31,708,074$ 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS: 2,575,420$    

STREET CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS: 3,257,500 3,442,600   
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS: 1,249,015

GRAND TOTAL OF ALL EXPENDITURES:  74,561,945$   78,203,470$ 
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 Section 3 
 
All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 

 
Section 4 

 
This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force upon its passage, approval and 

publication in one (1) issue of the Coeur d’Alene Press, a newspaper of general circulation 
published within the City of Coeur d’Alene and the official newspaper thereof.  
  
 

APPROVED by this Mayor this 15th day of September, 2015. 
 

 
 
 

___________________________ 
Steve Widmyer, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Renata McLeod, City Clerk 
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SUMMARY OF COEUR D’ ALENE ORDINANCE NO. ____ 

 
ANNUAL APPROPRIATION AMENDMENT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2014 - 2015 

 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE 3493, THE ANNUAL 

APPROPRIATION ORDINANCE FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 
2014 APPROPRIATING THE SUM OF $74,561,945 $78,203,470, WHICH SUM INCLUDES 
ADDITIONAL MONIES RECEIVED BY THE CITY OF COEUR D’ALENE IN THE SUM 
OF $3,641,525; REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES AND PARTS OF ORDINANCES IN 
CONFLICT HEREWITH AND PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE. THE 
ORDINANCE SHALL BE EFFECTIVE UPON PUBLICATION OF THIS SUMMARY. THE 
FULL TEXT OF THE SUMMARIZED ORDINANCE NO. ____ IS AVAILABLE AT COEUR 
D’ALENE CITY HALL, 710 E. MULLAN AVENUE, COEUR D’ALENE, IDAHO 83814 IN 
THE OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK.   

 
 
             
      Renata McLeod, City Clerk 
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STATEMENT OF LEGAL ADVISOR 

 
 I, Warren Wilson, am a Deputy City Attorney for the City of Coeur d'Alene, Idaho.  I 
have examined the attached summary of Coeur d'Alene Ordinance No. ____, Annual 
Appropriation Amendment for Fiscal Year 2014 - 2015, and find it to be a true and complete 
summary of said ordinance which provides adequate notice to the public of the context thereof.  
 
 DATED this 15th day of September, 2015. 
 
 
                                          
                                  Warren J. Wilson, Chief Deputy City Attorney 
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OTHER BUSINESS 



  

RESOLUTION NO. 15-051 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE, KOOTENAI COUNTY, IDAHO 
AUTHORIZING A REQUEST FOR RETIREMENT MEDICAL BENEFIT AGREEMENT 
(RMBA) WITH JUDY HOUSE.  

 
 WHEREAS, it is deemed to be in the best interest of the City of Coeur d'Alene and the 
citizens thereof to enter into a RMBA with Judy House pursuant to the terms and conditions set forth 
in the RMBA, which is attached hereto as Exhibit “1” and by reference made a part hereof; NOW, 
THEREFORE, 

 
BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Coeur d'Alene that the City 

enter into a RMBA, with the provision that the Mayor, City Administrator, and City Attorney are 
hereby authorized to modify said RMBA to the extent the substantive provisions of the RMBA 
remain intact. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Mayor and City Clerk be and they are hereby 
authorized to execute such RMBA on behalf of the City. 
 

DATED this 15th day of September, 2015. 
 
 
 

                                   _____________________________ 
                                   Steve Widmyer, Mayor  
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Renata McLeod, City Clerk 

Resolution No. 15-051 1 | P a g e  
 



  

 Motion by _______________, Seconded by _______________, to adopt the foregoing 
resolution.   
 
     ROLL CALL: 
 
COUNCIL MEMBER MCEVERS Voted _____ 
 
COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER Voted _____ 
 
COUNCIL MEMBER GOOKIN Voted _____ 
 
COUNCIL MEMBER EVANS  Voted _____ 

 
COUNCIL MEMBER ADAMS Voted _____ 
 
COUNCIL MEMBER EDINGER Voted _____ 
 
_________________________ was absent.  Motion ____________. 
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CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE 
Treasurer's Report of Cash and Investment Transactions

 BALANCE DISBURSE- BALANCE
    FUND 7/31/2015 RECEIPTS MENTS 8/31/2015

General-Designated $354,651 $54,086 $3,848 $404,889
General-Undesignated 10,350,789    14,601,886    10,194,470     14,758,205  
Special Revenue:
   Library 320,714         26,894           113,675          233,933       
   CDBG 812                4,350             4,350              812              
   Cemetery (7,602)           10,460           22,636            (19,778)        
   Parks Capital Improvements 161,597         8,770             18,919            151,448       
   Impact Fees 3,915,143      57,640           1,680              3,971,103    
   Annexation Fees 5,079             26,250           4                     31,325         
   Insurance (9,453)           5,619             46                   (3,880)          
   Cemetery P/C 1,734,475      7,652             3,945              1,738,182    
   Jewett House 36,207           2,790             2,313              36,684         
   Reforestation 16,657           1,980             2,619              16,018         
   Street Trees 224,058         6,900             3,067              227,891       
   Community Canopy 1,776             1                     1,775           
   CdA Arts Commission 8,190             5,418              2,772           
   Public Art Fund 59,219           824                 58,395         
   Public Art Fund - LCDC 339,126         10,321            328,805       
   Public Art Fund - Maintenance 119,512         65                   119,447       
Debt Service:
   2002 & 2006 G.O. Bonds 1,505,823      33,846           1,069,688       469,981       
   LID Guarantee 28,419           7                     28,412         
   LID 130 Lakeside / Ramsey / Industrial Park 699                630                 69                
   LID 149 4th Street 9,754             4,052             1,737              12,069         
Capital Projects:
  Street Projects (280,364)       434,569         30,700            123,505       
Enterprise:
   Street Lights 66,367           42,955           86,356            22,966         
   Water 405,853         793,259         387,520          811,592       
   Water Capitalization Fees 3,346,674      76,142           1,128              3,421,688    
   Wastewater 5,742,837      734,360         2,028,442       4,448,755    
   Wastewater-Reserved 991,045         27,500           1,018,545    
   WWTP Capitalization Fees 5,629,801      140,676         1,562              5,768,915    
   WW Property Mgmt 60,668           60,668         
   Sanitation (140,981)       332,652         302,309          (110,638)      
   Public Parking (257,915)       3,572              (261,487)      
   Drainage 314,675         83,858           39,682            358,851       
   Wastewater Debt Service 1,013,563      1,494,121      1,493,280       1,014,404    
Fiduciary Funds:
   Kootenai County Solid Waste Billing 211,435         203,411         211,435          203,411       
   LID Advance Payments 2,546             2,546           
   Police Retirement 1,413,569      16,771           25,207            1,405,133    
   Sales Tax 1,431             2,701             1,431              2,701           
   BID 181,073         9,629             31,049            159,653       
   Homeless Trust Fund 317                306                317                 306              

GRAND TOTAL $37,878,239 $19,246,085 $16,104,253 $41,020,071



CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE
BUDGET STATUS REPORT
ELEVEN MONTHS ENDED

August 31, 2015

FUND OR TYPE OF TOTAL SPENT THRU PERCENT
DEPARTMENT EXPENDITURE BUDGETED 8/31/2015 EXPENDED

Mayor/Council Personnel Services $225,227 $204,453 91%
Services/Supplies 11,800 9,114 77%

Administration Personnel Services 245,263 208,159 85%
Services/Supplies 49,620 54,018 109%

Finance Personnel Services 642,985 581,537 90%
Services/Supplies 92,760 90,220 97%

Municipal Services Personnel Services 1,058,369 933,720 88%
Services/Supplies 479,731 429,236 89%
Capital Outlay 14,500 14,500 100%

Human Resources Personnel Services 203,529 173,702 85%
Services/Supplies 43,400 33,245 77%

Legal Personnel Services 1,377,493 1,217,002 88%
Services/Supplies 98,853 66,733 68%

Planning Personnel Services 511,938 423,140          83%
Services/Supplies 38,050 29,475 77%

Building Maintenance Personnel Services 320,587 269,261 84%
Services/Supplies 159,515 115,505 72%
Capital Outlay

Police Personnel Services 10,161,453 8,944,718 88%
Services/Supplies 913,287 966,281 106%
Capital Outlay 141,720 376,533 266%

Fire Personnel Services 7,846,872 6,792,315 87%
Services/Supplies 418,836 305,158 73%
Capital Outlay 4,006

General Government Services/Supplies 49,150 48,822 99%
Capital Outlay 1,070,299

Byrne Grant (Federal) Personnel Services
Services/Supplies 13,182
Capital Outlay

COPS Grant Personnel Services 169,690
Services/Supplies

CdA Drug Task Force Services/Supplies 25,710 24,268 94%
Capital Outlay 25,350

Streets Personnel Services 1,864,947 1,638,968 88%
Services/Supplies 575,130 527,491 92%
Capital Outlay 75,500 227,103 301%



CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE
BUDGET STATUS REPORT
ELEVEN MONTHS ENDED

August 31, 2015

FUND OR TYPE OF TOTAL SPENT THRU PERCENT
DEPARTMENT EXPENDITURE BUDGETED 8/31/2015 EXPENDED

ADA Sidewalk Abatement Personnel Services 226,757 194,542 86%
Services/Supplies 38,900 19,326 50%

Engineering Services Personnel Services 543,375 490,701 90%
Services/Supplies 744,450 490,503 66%
Capital Outlay

Parks Personnel Services 1,302,194 1,102,560 85%
Services/Supplies 475,250 405,942 85%
Capital Outlay 92,500 97,554 105%

Recreation Personnel Services 627,711 503,025 80%
Services/Supplies 142,130 119,846 84%
Capital Outlay 26,500 57,110 216%

Building Inspection Personnel Services 810,926 738,778 91%
Services/Supplies 31,131 27,236 87%

    Total General Fund 32,877,739 30,064,637 91%

Library Personnel Services 1,077,761 958,862 89%
Services/Supplies 189,350 164,885 87%
Capital Outlay 120,000 101,891 85%

CDBG Services/Supplies 359,966 193,517 54%

Cemetery Personnel Services 145,526 145,291 100%
Services/Supplies 98,664 68,246 69%
Capital Outlay 40,000 39,585 99%

Impact Fees Services/Supplies 194,956 177,385 91%

Annexation Fees Services/Supplies 117,000 117,000 100%

Parks Capital Improvements Capital Outlay 244,000 381,948 157%

Insurance Services/Supplies 420,000 350,658 83%

Cemetery Perpetual Care Services/Supplies 97,500 88,862 91%

Jewett House Services/Supplies 67,089 46,134 69%

Reforestation Services/Supplies 2,000 8,815 441%

Street Trees Services/Supplies 65,000 43,550 67%

Community Canopy Services/Supplies 1,500 2,361 157%

CdA Arts Commission Services/Supplies 6,750 5,864 87%

Public Art Fund Services/Supplies 210,600 99,339 47%

     Total Special Revenue 3,457,662 2,994,193 87%

Debt Service Fund 1,249,015 1,281,483 103%



CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE
BUDGET STATUS REPORT
ELEVEN MONTHS ENDED

August 31, 2015

FUND OR TYPE OF TOTAL SPENT THRU PERCENT
DEPARTMENT EXPENDITURE BUDGETED 8/31/2015 EXPENDED

Seltice Way Design Capital Outlay 530,000 5,036 1%
Seltice Way Sidewalks Capital Outlay 7,000
Front Avenue Project Capital Outlay 62,699
Govt Way - Hanley to Prairie Capital Outlay 2,300,000 2,346,724 102%
Levee Certification Capital Outlay 362,500         254,321 70%
I-90 Curb Ramps Capital Outlay 65,000
15th Street Capital Outlay 9,650

      Total Capital Projects Funds 3,257,500 2,685,430 82%

Street Lights Services/Supplies 535,600         496,627          93%

Water Personnel Services 1,844,726 1,640,826 89%
Services/Supplies 4,196,929 1,241,157 30%
Capital Outlay 2,284,300 1,444,925 63%

Water Capitalization Fees Services/Supplies 700,000 483,467 69%

Wastewater Personnel Services 2,440,897 2,147,718 88%
Services/Supplies 6,527,764 2,059,374 32%
Capital Outlay 3,714,470 2,428,218 65%
Debt Service 2,026,641 2,026,641 100%

WW Capitalization Services/Supplies 1,913,000

Sanitation Services/Supplies 3,560,334 3,383,425 95%

Public Parking Services/Supplies 220,839 122,291 55%
Capital Outlay

Drainage Personnel Services 133,179 95,226 72%
Services/Supplies 610,930 264,199 43%
Capital Outlay 435,000 449,983 103%

     Total Enterprise Funds 31,144,609 18,284,077 59%

Kootenai County Solid Waste 2,200,000      1,938,831       88%
Police Retirement 183,920 152,702 83%
Business Improvement District 186,000 111,000 60%
Homeless Trust Fund 5,500 4,183 76%

     Total Fiduciary Funds 2,575,420 2,206,716 86%

     TOTALS: $74,561,945 $57,516,536 77%
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